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GLOSSARY

As used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Annual Report”), the terms identified below have the meanings specified below unless otherwise noted or the context indicates
otherwise. Except where the context otherwise requires or where otherwise indicated, the terms “OLAPLEX” “we,” “us,” “our,” “our company,” “the Company,” and “our
business” refer to Olaplex Holdings, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

• “2020 Credit Agreement” refers to the Credit Agreement, dated as of January 8, 2020, by and among Olaplex, Inc., Penelope Intermediate Corp., MidCap Financial
Trust, as administrative agent, collateral agent and swingline lender, and each lender and issuing bank from time to time party thereto, as amended by the First
Incremental Amendment to the 2020 Credit Agreement, dated as of December 18, 2020. The 2020 Credit Agreement was refinanced and replaced by the 2022 Credit
Agreement.

• “2022 Credit Agreement” refers to the Credit Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2022, by and among Olaplex, Inc., Penelope Intermediate Corp, Goldman Sachs
Bank USA, as administrative agent, collateral agent and swingline lender, and each lender and issuing bank from time to time party thereto. The 2022 Credit
Agreement refinanced and replaced the 2020 Credit Agreement, and includes, among other things, a $675 million seven-year senior-secured term loan facility (the
“2022 Term Loan Facility”) and a $150 million five-year senior-secured revolving credit facility (the “2022 Revolver”).

• “IPO” refers to the initial public offering of shares of common stock of Olaplex Holdings, Inc., completed on October 4, 2021.

• “Penelope” refers to Penelope Holdings Corp., which is an indirect parent of Olaplex, Inc., the Company’s primary operating subsidiary.

• “Penelope Group Holdings” refers to Penelope Group Holdings L.P., which prior to the IPO was the direct parent of Penelope.

• “Pre-IPO Stockholders” refers to, collectively, (i) the former limited partners of Penelope Group Holdings prior to the Reorganization Transactions and (ii) holders of
options to purchase shares of common stock of Penelope that were vested as of the consummation of the Reorganization Transactions.

• “Pre-IPO Tax Assets” refers to, collectively, certain tax attributes existing prior to the IPO, including tax basis in intangible assets and capitalized transaction costs
relating to taxable years ending on or before the date of the IPO (calculated by assuming the taxable year of the relevant entity closes on the date of the IPO), that are
amortizable over a fixed period of time (including in tax periods beginning after the IPO) and which are available to us and our wholly-owned subsidiaries.

• “Reorganization Transactions” refers to the internal reorganization completed in connection with our IPO, pursuant to which Olaplex Holdings, Inc. became an indirect
parent of Olaplex, Inc. For further information, see “Reorganization Transactions” in “Note 1 - Nature of Operations and Basis of Presentation” to our Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report.

• “Tax Receivable Agreement” refers to the income tax receivable agreement entered into by the Company in connection with the Reorganization Transactions under
which the Company is required to pay the Pre-IPO Stockholders 85% of the cash savings, if any, in United States (“U.S.”) federal, state or local tax that the Company
actually realizes on its taxable income following the IPO, as specified in the Tax Receivable Agreement.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements and information relating to us that are based on the beliefs of our management as well as assumptions made by,
and information currently available to, us. These statements include, but are not limited to, statements about our strategies, plans, objectives, expectations, intentions,
expenditures and assumptions and other statements contained in or incorporated by reference in this Annual Report that are not historical or current facts. When used in this
document, words such as “may,” “will,” “could,” “should,” “intend,” “potential,” “continue,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “expect,” “plan,” “target,” “predict,”
“project,” “forecast,” “seek” and similar expressions as they relate to us are intended to identify forward-looking statements.

The forward-looking statements in this Annual Report reflect our current expectations and projections about future events and financial trends that we believe may affect our
business, financial condition and results of operation. Examples of forward-looking statements include, among others, statements we make regarding: our financial position,
sales and operating results; our business plans, strategies, investments and objectives; general economic and industry trends; our business prospects; our reputation and brand;
our product technology and intellectual property; future product development and introduction, including entry into adjacent categories in hair care and other categories; growth
and expansion opportunities, including expansion in existing markets and into new markets; our sales channels and omnichannel strategy; legal proceedings; changes in laws
and regulations; future payments under our Tax Receivable Agreement; our customer base; our supply chain and global distribution network; our information technology and
cybersecurity profile; our employees and culture; our operational capabilities; interest rate derivatives; and our expenses, inventory levels, other working capital, indebtedness
and liquidity. Forward-looking statements are predictions based upon assumptions that may not prove to be accurate, and they are not guarantees of future performance. As
such, you should not place significant reliance on our forward-looking statements. Neither we nor any other person assumes responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of
the forward-looking statements, including any such statements taken from third party industry and market reports.

Forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, inherent uncertainties and other factors that are difficult to predict which may cause our actual results,
performance, time frames or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance, time frames or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-
looking statements, including, without limitation, the following:

• competition in the beauty industry;

• our ability to effectively maintain and promote a positive brand image, expand our brand awareness and maintain consumer confidence in the quality, safety and
efficacy of our products;

• our ability to anticipate and respond to market trends and changes in consumer preferences and execute on our growth strategies and expansion opportunities,
including with respect to new product introductions;

• our ability to accurately forecast customer and consumer demand for our products;

• our dependence on the success of our long-term strategic plan;

• our ability to limit the illegal distribution and sale by third parties of counterfeit versions of our products or the unauthorized diversion by third parties of our
products;

• our dependence on a limited number of customers for a large portion of our net sales;

• our ability to develop, manufacture and effectively and profitably market and sell future products;

• our ability to attract new customers and consumers and encourage consumer spending across our product portfolio;

• our ability to successfully implement new or additional marketing efforts;

• our relationships with and the performance of our suppliers, manufacturers, distributors and retailers and our ability to manage our supply chain;

• impacts on our business from political, regulatory, economic, trade and other risks associated with operating internationally;

• our ability to manage our executive leadership change and to attract and retain senior management and other qualified personnel;

• our reliance on our and our third-party service providers’ information technology;

• our ability to maintain the security of confidential information;
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• our ability to establish and maintain intellectual property protection for our products, as well as our ability to operate our business without infringing,
misappropriating or otherwise violating the intellectual property rights of others;

• the outcome of litigation and regulatory proceedings;

• the impact of changes in federal, state and international laws, regulations and administrative policy;

• our existing and any future indebtedness, including our ability to comply with affirmative and negative covenants under the 2022 Credit Agreement;

• our ability to service our existing indebtedness and obtain additional capital to finance operations and our growth opportunities;

• volatility of our stock price;

• our “controlled company” status and the influence of investment funds affiliated with Advent International, L.P. over us;

• the impact of an economic downturn and inflationary pressures on our business;

• fluctuations in our quarterly results of operations;

• changes in our tax rates and our exposure to tax liability; and

• the other factors identified in the “Risk Factors” section of this Annual Report and in other documents that we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission
from time to time.

Many of these factors are macroeconomic in nature and are, therefore, beyond our control. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying
assumptions prove incorrect, our actual results, performance or achievements may vary materially from those described in this Annual Report as anticipated, believed,
estimated, expected, intended, planned or projected. We discuss many of these risks in greater detail in the “Risk Factors” section included elsewhere in this Annual Report. The
forward-looking statements included in this Annual Report are made only as of the date hereof. Unless required by law, we neither intend nor assume any obligation to update
these forward-looking statements for any reason after the date of this Annual Report to conform these statements to actual results or to changes in our expectations or otherwise.
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RISK FACTORS SUMMARY

An investment in our common stock involves risks. Investors should consider carefully the following risks, which are discussed more fully in “Item 1A. Risk Factors”, and all
of the other information contained in this Annual Report before investing in our common stock. These risks include, but are not limited to, the following:

• The beauty industry is highly competitive, and if we are unable to compete effectively, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely
affected;

• Our brand is critical to our success. If we fail to maintain the value of our brand or our marketing efforts are not successful, our business, financial condition and
results of operations would be adversely affected;

• If we are unable to anticipate and respond to market trends and changes in consumer preferences and successfully introduce new, innovative and high-quality products,
our financial results could be adversely affected;

• Our success depends, in part, on the quality, efficacy and safety of our products;

• Our success depends, in part, on our ability to execute our long-term strategic plan;

• If we are unable to accurately forecast customer and consumer demand, manage our inventory and plan for future expenses, our results of operations could be
adversely affected;

• The illegal distribution and sale by third parties of counterfeit versions of our products or the unauthorized diversion by third parties of our products could have an
adverse effect on our net sales and a negative impact on our reputation and business;

• We depend on a limited number of customers for a large portion of our net sales;

• We may be affected by changes in consumer shopping preferences, shifts in distribution channels and changes in the salon and retail environments;

• Our products generally rely on a single or a limited number of manufacturers. The loss of manufacturers or shortages in the supply of raw materials or finished
products could harm our business, prospects, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows;

• A disruption in our operations could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations;

• We are subject to risks related to the global scope of our operations;

• We rely on the use of our, and our third-party service providers’, information technology. Any significant failure, inadequacy, interruption or data security incident
impacting our information technology and websites, or those of our third-party service providers, could have an adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows;

• Failure to adequately maintain the security of confidential information could materially adversely affect our business;

• Our processing of personal information and other sensitive data could give rise to significant costs and liabilities, which may have an adverse effect on our reputation,
business, financial condition and results of operations;

• Our efforts to register, maintain and protect our intellectual property rights may not be sufficient to protect our business;

• Third parties may allege that we are infringing, misappropriating or otherwise violating their intellectual property rights, which could involve substantial costs and
adversely impact our business;

• Disputes and other legal or regulatory proceedings could adversely affect our financial results;

• Our business is subject to federal, state and international laws, regulations and policies that could have an adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flows;

• Government regulations relating to the marketing and advertising of our products may restrict, inhibit or delay our ability to sell our products and harm our business.

• Our significant indebtedness could adversely affect our financial condition;

• We may be unable to generate sufficient cash flow to service our debt obligations;

• Our stock price may be volatile, and the value of our stock may decline;

• Investment funds affiliated with Advent International, L.P. own a significant percentage of our common stock and have significant influence over us;
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• The Tax Receivable Agreement with our Pre-IPO Stockholders requires us to make cash payments to them and exposes us to certain risks;

• There may be sales of a substantial amount of our common stock, and these sales could cause the price of our common stock to fall;

• We are a “controlled company” within the meaning of the corporate governance standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC. As a result, we qualify for, and rely on,
exemptions from certain corporate governance standards;

• A general economic downturn or disruption in business conditions may affect our business, including consumer purchases of discretionary items and the financial
strength of our customers and consumers, which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations; and

• Our quarterly results of operations may fluctuate, and if our operating and financial performance in any given period does not meet the guidance that we have provided
to the public or the expectations of our investors and securities analysts, the trading price of our common stock may decline.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Company Overview

OLAPLEX is an innovative, science-enabled, technology-driven beauty company. Since our inception in 2014, we have focused on delivering effective, patent-protected and
proven performance in the prestige hair care category.

We offer science-backed solutions that are designed to improve hair health and are trusted by stylists and consumers. We identify our consumers’ most relevant hair care
concerns in collaboration with our passionate and highly engaged community of professional hairstylists and consumers and strive to address them through our proprietary
technology and innovation capabilities.

Our Products

OLAPLEX disrupted and revolutionized the prestige hair care category by creating the bond-building space in 2014. We have grown from an initial offering of three products
sold exclusively through the professional channel to a broader suite of products offered through the professional, specialty retail and Direct to Consumer (“DTC”) channels that
have been strategically developed to address three key uses: treatment, maintenance and protection. Our current product portfolio is comprised of seventeen unique and
complementary products specifically developed to provide a holistic regimen for hair health. Additionally, we recently expanded into our first hair care adjacent market with
LASHBOND  Building Serum, our eyelash enhancing serum formulated to promote the appearance of thicker, longer, stronger, full volume lashes. Our proprietary, patent-
protected ingredient, Bis-aminopropyl diglycol dimaleate (“Bis-amino”), serves as a key differentiator in our ability to create trusted, high-quality products. Underpinning our
product range is a portfolio of more than 160 worldwide patents which protects our proprietary technology. Our patent claims are broadly drafted and include claims covering
applications across adjacent categories in hair care and also other categories such as skin care and nail health.

Professional Products

Our current professional hair health platform consists of four products that can be purchased and applied only by professional hairstylists: No. 1 Bond Multiplier , No. 2 Bond
Perfector , Olaplex  4-in-1 Moisture Mask and Olaplex  Broad Spectrum Chelating Treatment. These products often serve as an introduction to our brand and a gateway to the
remainder of our products that can be used both at home and in the salon.

Retail Products

Our current retail hair health platform consists of fourteen products that can be purchased by consumers, through their professional stylist, retail partners or directly through
Olaplex.com. for at home use, or by professional hairstylists for use in the salon. These include: No. 0 Intensive Bond Building™ Hair Treatment, No. 3 Hair Perfector , No. 4
Bond Maintenance  Shampoo, No. 4P Blonde Enhancer™ Toning Shampoo, No. 4C Bond Maintenance  Clarifying Shampoo, No. 4D Clean Volume Detox Dry Shampoo, No.
5 Bond Maintenance  Conditioner, No. 5P Blonde Enhancer™ Toning Conditioner, No. 6 Bond Smoother , No. 7 Bonding Oil™, No. 8 Bond Intense™ Moisture Mask, No. 9
Bond Protector™ Nourishing Hair Serum, Olaplex  Volumizing Blow Dry Mist and our first hair adjacency product LASHBOND  Building Serum.

®

®

® ® ®

®

® ®

® ®

® ®
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Our Channels

We believe that a key differentiator of OLAPLEX is our synergistic omnichannel strategy. Our three sales channels, Professional, Specialty Retail, and Direct-to-Consumer,
work together to reinforce relationships with current customers and introduce our products to an expanded potential customer base.

Professional Channel Rooted in our Professional Hairstylist Community

In our professional channel, our products are sold primarily through wholesale beauty supply distributors who then sell those products to professional beauty industry outlets,
such as professional beauty supply stores, salons and licensed professional hairstylists, for use in the salon or for professional hairstylists to sell to consumers for use at home.
In 2023, we sold our products through over 115 professional distributors. Where permitted by law, our international distributors generally may only sell our products to
professional beauty industry outlets in specific territories, with some having the exclusive right to sell our products in the territory. Our agreements with professional beauty
distributors also typically contain minimum purchase and sell-through requirements and prohibit the distributor from selling products deemed competitive with ours.

Specialty Retail Channel Focused on Reaching Consumers

Our specialty retail customers include specialty retailers with online and/or brick and mortar presences. In 2023, we sold our products through approximately 60 retailers in
more than 20 countries throughout the world.

Direct to Consumer Channel Leveraging our Digital Capabilities

We sell our products directly to consumers through our branded website, Olaplex.com, and third-party e-commerce platforms, including Amazon and pure play beauty and
wellness partners.

Innovation

We believe that one of the key differentiators of our business is a powerful innovation platform. We conduct research in our OLAPLEX laboratory and employ a dedicated in-
house research and development team, which includes scientists, product and packaging innovation specialists, and regulatory and compliance experts. We also incorporate
feedback from our community of professional hairstylists and consumers to better understand their respective needs. These insights, combined with the efforts of our in-house
research and development team, independent third party laboratory testing, and real-world salon testing, create a virtuous feedback loop. We develop our products in our
laboratory and in partnership with national co-manufacturers, universities, and biotech companies to remain on the cutting edge of beauty technology. As our business continues
to grow globally, we intend to focus on developing proprietary new technologies, improving existing products and exploring adjacent categories in hair care and other
categories.
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We do not perform, nor do we commission any third parties on our behalf to perform, testing of our products or ingredients on animals.

Our principal research and development center is located in the U.S. See “Item 2. Properties”.

Marketing

Our strategy to market and showcase our products begins with our omnichannel platform across the professional, specialty retail and DTC channels. In our professional
channel, we market our products using educational seminars on our products’ application methods and consumer benefits. We have a dedicated portal on our website for
professional customers to purchase and learn more about our products and have developed a mobile app for our professional community that serves as a resource on our brand
and products and offers us the opportunity to more directly engage with professional hairstylists about our products. In addition, we use professional trade advertising, social
media and other primarily digital marketing to communicate to professional hairstylists and consumers the quality and performance characteristics of our products.

In our specialty retail channel, we support our authorized retailers to drive in-store and e-commerce sales of our products, and we work with them to ensure the optimal
presentation of our products in their stores or on their e-commerce sites. Advertising activities, in-store displays and online navigation are designed to attract new consumers,
build demand and loyalty and introduce existing consumers to other product offerings. Our marketing efforts also benefit from cooperative advertising programs, loyalty
programs, and sampling programs with some retailers.

In our DTC channel, our digital first approach to performance marketing is designed to offer best-in-class customer experience on Olaplex.com, from improving load times and
site navigation to enhancing digital brand assets and improving the check-out experience, all of which is designed to increase brand awareness, site traffic and conversion.

In addition, top celebrity professional hairstylists and colorists from around the world serve as Olaplex brand ambassadors. These brand ambassadors help market our brand
through educational events, social media and other publicity.

Our Customers

Our strategy is to build and maintain strong customer relationships globally, and we have over 225 customers across our omnichannel sales platform. Our products are sold in
more than 100 countries across the world. A small amount of the Company’s customers have net sales exceeding 10% of total net sales. During the year ended December 31,
2023, two of the Company’s customers represented 21% of the Company’s total net sales, in aggregate. During the year ended December 31, 2022, one customer represented
16% of the Company’s total net sales. During the year ended December 31, 2021, two of the Company’s customers represented 25% of the Company’s total net sales in
aggregate.

In 2023, approximately 45% of our net sales were generated in the U.S. and approximately 55% of our net sales were international, based on the shipping address on record for
the customer purchasing our products. However, the majority of net sales are transacted in U.S. Dollars, our functional and reporting currency.

Supply Chain and Global Distribution Network

We believe that we have developed a flexible and resilient third-party supply chain that is capable of supporting long-term growth at scale. A core tenet of our supply chain
strategy is leveraging strong relationships with our manufacturers and logistics partners to create an expansive supply network that is designed to provide ample capacity
without requiring significant additional capital investment.

Our finished products are manufactured in the U.S. and Europe by five manufacturers. Three of these manufacturers are located in the U.S., one is located in Europe, and one
maintains facilities in the U.S. and Europe. Cosway Company Inc. (“Cosway”) manufactures products that accounted for more than 61% of our net sales and 32% of our
inventory product purchases in 2023.

We utilize third parties with key operational facilities located inside and outside the U.S. to warehouse and distribute our products for sale throughout the world. We believe that
our manufacturing and distribution network is sufficient to meet anticipated demand. In addition, we have disaster recovery programs in place with certain of our key suppliers
that allow for shifting of manufacturing capacity if necessary to account for disruptions due to natural disasters and other events outside of our or their control. We continue to
implement improvements in capacity, technology, resiliency, and productivity and to align our manufacturing and distribution capabilities with anticipated regional and
international sales demand and expansion of our customer base in targeted geographies.

Seasonality

Our results of operations typically are slightly higher in the second half of the fiscal year due to increased levels of purchasing by consumers for special and holiday events and
by retailers for the end of year holiday selling season. However, fluctuations in net sales in any fiscal quarter may be attributable to a number of other factors, including
macroeconomic factors, competitive activity,
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the level and scope of new product introductions or promotional activities of our customers, which may impact their order placement and receipt of goods.

Competition

Competition in the beauty industry is based on a variety of factors, including innovation, product efficacy, accessible pricing, brand recognition and loyalty, service to the
consumer, promotional activities, advertising, special events, new product introductions, e-commerce initiatives, sustainability and other activities. Our competitors include
Estee Lauder, Henkel AG & Co. KGaA, Kao Corporation, L’Oreal S.A. and Unilever. We also face competition from a number of independent brands. Certain of our
competitors also have ownership interests in third parties that are our customers.

We believe we have a well-recognized and strong reputation in our core markets and that the quality and performance of our products, our emphasis on innovation, and our
engagement with our professional and consumer communities position us to compete effectively.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patent, trademark, copyright, trade secret, and other intellectual property laws, nondisclosure and assignment of inventions agreements and other
measures to protect our intellectual property.

As of December 31, 2023, we owned over 400 trademark registrations and applications globally. Our flagship trademark is OLAPLEX. We seek to register our OLAPLEX
mark in all jurisdictions where we do business. In addition, as of December 31, 2023, we owned over 160 issued patents worldwide, including 16 U.S. patents, and over 42
pending patent applications worldwide. During the year ended December 31, 2023, we filed 115 new trademark applications and were granted 69 new trademark registrations.
We also filed six new patent applications and were issued ten new patents.

Our patent portfolio includes families of patents that include approximately 100 granted patents with claims that cover Olaplex's product line and their use and claims that cover
other hair care, nail and skincare products and/or their uses that utilize similar mechanisms to Olaplex's proprietary technology. The patents issued in these families have been
granted in the U.S., Australia, throughout Europe, Brazil, Canada, Israel, New Zealand and Japan. The patents in these families are generally expected to expire in 2034. Any
additional patents that grant from pending applications in these patent families would also be expected to expire in 2034.

Our patent portfolio also includes a family of patents with claims to protect us against competitor products that do not contain our Bis-amino ingredient. This patent family
includes approximately 50 patents worldwide, including patents that have been granted in the U.S., throughout Europe, Brazil, Canada, Israel and Japan. The patents in this
family are generally expected to expire in 2035. Any additional patents that grant from pending applications in this patent family would also be expected to expire in 2035.

For more information, see “Risk Factors— Risks Related to Intellectual Property Matters.”

Commitment to Social and Environmental Consciousness

We believe our responsibility extends beyond our products that contribute to healthier hair. We continue to evaluate the impact we have on our environment and communities in
an effort to further integrate sustainability and social impact into our strategy and business operations. In 2023 we completed our initial double materiality assessment of
various Environmental, Social and Governance factors relevant to the Company. This assessment, which incorporates feedback from several of our stakeholder groups, will be
used by us to develop our multi-year Environmental, Social and Governance strategy.

• Environmental Sustainability. Our cruelty-free, non-toxic formulas are free of Parabens, Sodium Lauryl Sulfate “SLS”, Sodium Lauryl Ether Sulfate “SLES”,
Phthalates and Phosphates. From our early days we have also limited the use of secondary packaging for our products. We estimate that between 2015 to 2023 we
avoided the use of approximately 8.5 million pounds of paper packaging, which we estimate prevented approximately 68 million pounds of greenhouse gas from being
emitted into the environment, conserved approximately 111 million gallons of water and saved approximately 85,000 trees from deforestation. We have also partnered
with a leading sustainability rating provider to assess the sustainability practices of our third party manufacturing and logistics partners.

• Charitable donations. In March 2022, we introduced the Shopping Gives program to our website. Shopping Gives is a charitable initiative whereby we donate $1 for
every order that a retail or professional customer places, at no additional cost to the customer. Customers can choose from a list of causes to benefit from their
purchase.

• Supporting Small Businesses. We are invested in the success of our professional hairstylist community as their businesses grow alongside ours. We are especially
focused on providing support to the small business community and minority professional hairstylists. Currently, the majority of our salon community is made up of
small businesses and a meaningful percentage of our professional hairstylists identify as racial or ethnic minorities.
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Employees and Human Capital Resources

Employees

As of December 31, 2023, Olaplex employed 233 employees and leveraged contractors to supplement work in areas such as technology, operations and accounting. We do not
have any employees governed by a union. We utilize professional employer organizations (“PEOs”), who serve as the employer of record of our U.S. employees and, depending
on the jurisdiction, administer certain of our human resources, payroll and employee benefits functions.

Culture

We believe our commitment to our heritage in the prestige hair care category and encouragement of our employees to bring their whole self to work has created a culture that is
paramount to our success. We are passionate about what we do, how our products impact lives and what our brand means to our community.

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion

We believe it is important that our employees reflect the diversity of our professional hairstylist and consumer communities, and our focus on diversity, equity and inclusion
remains a key differentiator in both our consumer strategy and internal culture. Our current Olaplex employees include former professional hairstylists whose unique
perspectives and insights have helped us better understand our diverse consumer base and what matters to them. As a result of our efforts, we have created a diverse workplace
environment where 78% of our employees identify as female and 39% identify as non-white as of December 31, 2023. Additionally, eight of the eleven members of our board
of directors (the “Board of Directors”) identify as female. We know through experience that different ideas, perspectives and backgrounds create a stronger and more creative
work environment that can deliver better results.
In January 2021, we established DEI Champions within the Company who reinforce our collective commitment to foster a diverse, equitable and inclusive culture. Their roles
are to identify opportunities to further engage our teammates through training and education, encouraging candid conversations and leading by example. The team is led by a
diverse group of six individual volunteers across different departments and tenures.

Compensation and Benefits

The core objective of our compensation program is to provide a package that will attract, motivate and reward exceptional employees. We are committed to providing
comprehensive benefit options that will allow our employees and their families to live healthier and more secure lives. We leverage both formal and informal programs to
identify, foster and retain top talent. Our talent development is further supported by a professional development reimbursement program and an educational assistance plan
designed to provide financial assistance to eligible team members.

Government Regulation

Our products are subject to regulation by the Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) and the Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) in the U.S., as well as various other local and
foreign regulatory authorities in the countries in which we operate. These laws and regulations principally relate to the ingredients, proper labeling, advertising, packaging,
marketing, manufacture, safety, shipment and disposal of our products.

In the U.S., our products are considered “cosmetics” under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act (“FDCA”). The labeling of cosmetic products is subject to the
requirements of the FDCA, the Fair Packaging and Labeling Act, the Poison Prevention Packaging Act and other FDA regulations. Cosmetics are not subject to pre-market
approval by the FDA. However, certain ingredients, such as color additives, must be pre-approved for the specific intended use of the product and are subject to certain
restrictions on their use. FDA regulations also prohibit or otherwise restrict the use of certain types of ingredients in cosmetic products. If a company has not adequately
substantiated the safety of its products or ingredients, then a specific warning label is required. The FDA may, by regulation, require other warning statements on certain
cosmetic products for specified hazards associated with such products.

In addition, the FDA requires that cosmetic labeling and claims be truthful and not misleading. Moreover, cosmetics may not be marketed or labeled for their use in treating,
preventing, mitigating, or curing disease or other conditions or in affecting the structure or function of the body, as such claims would cause the products to be drugs and
subject to regulation as drugs. The FDA has issued warning letters to cosmetic companies alleging improper drug claims regarding their cosmetic products, including, for
example, product claims regarding hair growth or preventing hair loss. In addition to FDA requirements, the FTC and state consumer protection laws and regulations can
subject a cosmetics company to a range of requirements and theories of liability, including similar standards regarding false and misleading product claims, under which FTC or
state enforcement or class-action lawsuits may be brought.

The Modernization of Cosmetics Regulation Act (“MoCRA”), signed into law on December 29, 2022, will expand the FDA’s regulatory oversight of cosmetics as its provisions
become effective. MoCRA requires, among other things, that manufacturers of
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cosmetics products report serious adverse events associated with their cosmetic products to the FDA. It will further require such manufacturers to register their facilities and list
their cosmetic products with the FDA, maintain for FDA review records demonstrating adequate substantiation of cosmetic product safety, and comply with Good
Manufacturing Practice (“GMP”) regulations for cosmetic products, although the FDA is still developing and promulgating rules and regulations to implement these
requirements. MoCRA also grants the FDA authority to issue mandatory recalls of cosmetic products that pose a risk of serious adverse health consequences.

The FDA monitors compliance of cosmetic products through reports it receives about adverse events, other market surveillance and inspection of cosmetic manufacturers and
distributors to ensure that the products are not manufactured under insanitary conditions or labeled in a false or misleading manner. Inspections also may arise from consumer
or competitor complaints filed with the FDA. In the event the FDA identifies any violation of FDA regulation, the FDA may request or a manufacturer may independently
decide to conduct a recall or market withdrawal of product or to make changes to its manufacturing processes, product formulations or labels.

The FTC also regulates and can bring enforcement action against cosmetic companies for deceptive advertising and lack of adequate scientific substantiation for claims. The
FTC has specialized requirements for certain types of claims. For example, the FTC’s “Green Guides” regulate how “free-of,” “non-toxic” and similar claims must be framed
and substantiated. In addition, the FTC regulates the use of endorsements and testimonials in advertising as well as relationships between advertisers and social media
influencers pursuant to the FTC’s Endorsement Guides. The Endorsement Guides provide that an endorsement must reflect the honest opinion of the endorser, based on “bona
fide” use of the product, and cannot be used to make a claim about a product that the product’s marketer could not itself legally make. Additionally, companies marketing a
product must disclose any material connection between an endorser and the company that consumers would not expect that would affect how consumers evaluate the
endorsement. If an advertisement features endorsements from people who achieved above average results from using a product, the advertiser must have proof that the
endorser’s experience can generally be achieved using the product as described; otherwise, an advertiser must clearly communicate the generally expected results of a product
and have a reasonable basis for such representations.

Although the Green Guides and Endorsement Guides do not operate directly with the force of law, they provide guidance about what the FTC generally believes the Federal
Trade Commission Act, or FTC Act, requires in the context using of “green” claims and endorsements and testimonials in advertising. Any practices inconsistent with the Green
Guides and Endorsement Guides can result in violations of the FTC Act’s proscription against unfair and deceptive practices.

In the European Union, the sale of cosmetic products is regulated under the E.U. Cosmetics Regulation (EC) No 1223/2009, which provides the general regulatory framework
for finished cosmetic products placed on the E.U. market. The overarching requirement is that a cosmetic product made available on the E.U. market must be safe for human
health when used under normal or reasonably foreseeable conditions of use, taking account of the following: (a) presentation including conformity with Directive 87/357/EEC
regarding health and safety of consumers; (b) labelling; (c) instructions for use and disposal; (d) any other indication or information provided by the responsible person; and (e)
the maintenance of a product safety report.

Generally, there is no requirement for pre-market approval of cosmetic products in the European Union. However, manufacturers are required to notify their products via the
centralized E.U. cosmetic products notification portal. Manufacturers are responsible for safety of their marketed finished cosmetic products and must undergo an appropriate
scientific safety assessment before cosmetic products are sold. The E.U. Cosmetics Regulation requires the manufacture of cosmetic products to comply with GMPs, which is
presumed where the manufacture is in accordance with the relevant harmonized standards. In addition, text, names, trademarks, pictures and figurative or other signs used in the
labelling and advertising of cosmetic products cannot imply that these products have characteristics or functions they do not actually have. Any product claims in labelling must
be capable of being substantiated.

The E.U. Cosmetics Regulation has been retained in U.K legislation, subject to certain amendments, and is applicable to Great Britain (England, Scotland and Wales) and
Northern Ireland. Such amendments include notification of cosmetic products made available to consumers in Great Britain to the Office for Product and Safety Standards and
the requirement to have a responsible person established in the U.K. We rely on expert consultants, Obelis, for our E.U. and U.K. product registrations and review of our
labelling for compliance with E.U. and U.K. regulation.

We are also subject to a number of federal, state and international laws and regulations that affect companies conducting business on the Internet. These laws and regulations
may involve user privacy, data protection, content, intellectual property, distribution, electronic contracts and other communications, competition, protection of minors,
consumer protection, telecommunications, product liability, taxation, economic or other trade prohibitions or sanctions and online payment services. Many of these laws and
regulations are still evolving and being tested in courts.

We are subject to federal, state, local and international laws regarding privacy and data protection. Such laws and regulations are evolving and may be subject to significant
change. In addition, the application, interpretation and enforcement of these laws and
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regulations are often uncertain, and they may be interpreted and applied inconsistently by different regulators and inconsistently with our current policies and practices. In the
European Union, the General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”) imposes a strict data protection compliance regime and provides for significant potential fines or penalties
for violations. The GDPR applies to the processing and transfer of personal data. The GDPR has also been incorporated into the laws of the U.K. (“U.K. GDPR”) alongside the
Data Protection Act 2018.

Comprehensive U.S. state privacy laws are also in operation or going into operation in several U.S. states and require many companies that process personal information,
including us, to make disclosures to consumers about their data collection, use and sharing practices. In some instances, these laws allow individuals to request access to, or
correction or deletion of, their personal information, as well as to opt out of the sale, or sharing for cross-context behavioral advertising purposes, of such information to third
parties, or to opt out of the processing of their personal information for targeted advertising or certain automated decision making and profiling activities. Certain of these laws
also require companies, including us, to obtain prior opt-in consent to the processing of specified sensitive personal information or to provide the opportunity to limit the use or
disclosure of such information in certain circumstances.

Available Information

Our Internet address is www.Olaplex.com. Our website and the information contained on, or that can be accessed through, the website will not be deemed to be incorporated by
reference in, and are not considered part of, this Annual Report. Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, including
exhibits, proxy and information statements and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Sections 13(a), 14, and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the “Exchange Act”), are available through the “Investors” portion of our website free of charge as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such
material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. In addition, our filings with the SEC may be accessed through the SEC’s Interactive Data Electronic Applications system at
http://www.sec.gov. All statements made in any of our securities filings, including all forward-looking statements or information, are made as of the date of the document in
which the statement is included, and we do not assume or undertake any obligation to update any of those statements or documents unless we are required to do so by law.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

An investment in our common stock involves risks. Investors should carefully consider the following information about these risks, together with the other information
contained in this Annual Report. The risks described below are those that we believe are the material risks that we face. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our
business, prospects, operating results and financial condition could suffer materially, and the trading price of our common stock could decline. Some of the following risks and
uncertainties are, and will be, exacerbated by any worsening of the global business and economic environment. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only
ones we face. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or those we currently view to be immaterial also may materially and adversely affect our business,
prospects, operating results or financial condition. See “Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Risks Related to Our Business

The beauty industry is highly competitive, and if we are unable to compete effectively, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely
affected.

We face increased competition in the beauty industry from companies throughout the world, including multinational consumer product companies and new independent beauty
brands. Some of our competitors have greater resources than we do and may be able to better respond to changing business and economic conditions and compete in
distribution channels or territories where we are less represented. Certain of our competitors have and may continue to attempt to gain market share by offering products at
prices at or below the prices at which our products are typically offered, including through the use of discounts or other promotions, or by marketing their products as lower
cost or as more effective versions of certain of our products. Competition in the beauty industry is based on a variety of factors, including innovation, product efficacy,
accessible pricing, brand recognition and loyalty, service to the consumer, promotional activities, advertising, special events, new product introductions, e-commerce initiatives,
sustainability and other activities. It is difficult for us to predict the timing and scale of our competitors’ actions in these areas. In addition, as we expand into adjacent or other
categories, we have faced, and will continue to face, different and, in some cases, more formidable competition.

Our ability to compete depends on a number of factors, including the continued strength of our brand and quality of our products, our ability to attract and retain key personnel,
the success of our marketing and innovation strategies, our ability to execute our strategic plan, the successful management of new product introductions and innovations, the
influence of our brand ambassadors and brand advocates, the efficiency of our third-party manufacturing facilities and distribution network, our relationships with our key
customers and professional hairstylists, and our ability to maintain and protect our intellectual property and other rights used in our business. In addition, certain of our
competitors have ownership interests in third parties that are customers of ours, and, as
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a result, such customers may have an interest in promoting theses competing brands over our products. Our inability to continue to compete effectively would have an adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our brand is critical to our success. If we fail to maintain the value of our brand or our marketing efforts are not successful, our business, financial condition and results
of operations would be adversely affected.

Maintaining, promoting and positioning our brand depends largely on the success of our marketing and merchandising efforts and our ability to provide consistent, high-quality
products. Our brand and reputation are adversely affected by negative publicity, and a failure to deliver innovative and high-quality products would also tarnish our public
image. In addition, our brand and reputation could be adversely affected if we engage in discounting or promotional activities that negatively impact consumers’ perceptions of
the prestige nature of our products. We have made significant investments in sales and marketing, including investments designed to enhance our educational efforts, increase
our interactions with our professional hairstylist and consumer communities, and attract new customers and consumers, and we expect to continue to make significant
investments to promote our brand and our products. However, our brand development strategies and investments may not increase the recognition of our brand or increase
revenues. If we are unable to preserve our brand reputation, enhance our brand recognition or increase positive awareness of our products, we may not attract or engage
customers and consumers or be able to expand our business, which would negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We frequently use third-party digital and social media platforms to raise awareness of our brand and engage with our professional hairstylist and consumer communities. We
also partner with brand ambassadors and brand advocates who promote and market our products, participate in product launches, engage with our professional hairstylist and
consumer communities and educate them about our products. If we are unable to cost-effectively develop and continuously improve our consumer-facing presence on existing,
evolving or new digital and social media platforms, including adapting to changing algorithms or other developments in such platforms that are outside of our control, our
ability to acquire new and retain existing customers and consumers may suffer, and we may not be able to provide a convenient and consistent experience to our professional
hairstylists and consumers across sales channels. This could negatively affect our ability to compete with other companies and result in diminished loyalty to our brand and
decreased sales.

The use of social media by us, our brand ambassadors, our brand advocates and our consumers carries the risk that our image and reputation could be negatively impacted.
Negative commentary or false statements disseminated by others about the brand, the safety and efficacy of our products, our brand ambassadors and brand advocates and other
third parties who are affiliated with us have been, and may in the future be, posted on social media platforms. Social media and other consumer-oriented technologies has
increased the speed and reach of information dissemination, and our target consumers often act on such information without further investigation into its accuracy. The harm to
our brand and reputation resulting from the dissemination of negative commentary and false statements may be immediate and has had, and may in the future have, an adverse
effect on our ability to attract and engage customers and consumers and on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our ability to maintain relationships with our existing ambassadors and advocates and to identify new ambassadors and advocates is critical to expanding and maintaining
awareness of our brand and our customer and consumer base. As our market becomes increasingly competitive and as we expand internationally, recruiting and maintaining
new ambassadors and advocates may become increasingly difficult and costly. In addition, our ambassadors or advocates could engage in behavior or use their platforms in a
manner that reflects poorly on our brand or is in violation of applicable platform terms of service, laws or regulations, including with respect to product or marketing claims.
These actions may be attributed to us or could subject us to regulatory investigations, class action lawsuits, liability, fines or other penalties.

If we are unable to anticipate and respond to market trends and changes in consumer preferences and successfully introduce new, innovative and high-quality products,
our financial results could be adversely affected.

Our continued success depends on our ability to anticipate, gauge and react in a timely, effective manner to changes in consumer tastes for hair care and other beauty products
and attitudes toward our industry and brand. We must continually work to maintain and enhance the recognition and reputation of our brand, develop, manufacture and market
new products, maintain and adapt to existing and emerging distribution channels, successfully manage our inventories and modernize and refine our approach as to how and
where we market and sell our products. Our new products and innovations on existing products may not receive the same level of consumer acceptance as our products have in
the past.

Consumer tastes and preferences cannot be predicted with certainty and can change rapidly. This risk is increased by the use of digital and social media by consumers and the
speed by which information and opinions are shared. Even if we are successful in anticipating consumer needs and preferences, our ability to timely and adequately respond to
those needs and preferences will in part depend upon our continued ability to develop and introduce innovative, high-quality products and maintain our distinctive brand
identity as we expand the range of products we offer. The acceptance of new product launches and other product innovations may not be as high as we anticipate due to factors
including lack of acceptance of the products themselves, the price of the products or the strengths of our competitors. In addition, our ability to launch new products would be
limited by delays or

16



Table of Contents

difficulties affecting the ability of our suppliers or manufacturers to timely manufacture, distribute and ship new products or displays for new products. Sales of new products
would be affected by our ability to execute our marketing strategies, inventory management by our retail customers, and by product shortages or limitations in retail display
space by our retail customers. We may also experience a decrease in sales of certain existing products as a result of newly launched products, the impact of which could be
exacerbated by shelf space limitations or any shelf space loss. Any of these occurrences could delay or impede our ability to achieve our sales objectives, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Further, new product innovation may place a strain on our employees and our financial
resources, including incurring expenses in connection with product innovation, development and marketing that are not subsequently supported by a sufficient level of sales.

As part of our ongoing business strategy, we may continue to expand our product launches into adjacent categories in hair care and other categories. The success of such
product launches could be hampered by our relative inexperience operating in such categories, the strength of our competitors in such categories or any of the other risks
described elsewhere in this “Risk Factors” section. Our failure to anticipate and effectively respond to changing consumer preferences and trends in the market for our products
or to effectively introduce new products in our traditional product categories, new products in adjacent or other categories or innovations on existing products that appeal to
consumers, or the introduction by our competitors of similar products in a more timely fashion, could lead to, among other things, lower sales, excess inventory or inventory
shortages, markdowns and write-offs and diminished brand loyalty, and our business, financial condition and results of operations could suffer.

These risks have been and may continue to be exacerbated by the current macroeconomic environment. Consumer spending habits and confidence have shifted and may
continue to change in light of inflationary pressures and other risks described elsewhere in this “Risk Factors” section.

Our success depends, in part, on the quality, efficacy and safety of our products.

Any loss of confidence on the part of our customers or consumers in the safety or quality of our products, including the ingredients used in our products, whether actual or
perceived, or inclusion of ingredients that are regulated in certain jurisdictions, could harm our brand image and reputation and could cause consumers to choose other products.
Regardless of their merit, allegations of adverse effects on product safety or suitability for use by particular consumers have harmed our brand and our reputation and had an
adverse impact on our sales. Such allegations, even if untrue, could also lead to increased scrutiny or enforcement action from regulatory authorities or cause us to stop selling
or recall our products, which could adversely affect our business and financial results. For example, in February 2023, a complaint alleging personal and economic injury, and
asserting claims for breach of warranty, negligence/gross negligence, products liability, unjust enrichment, and violations of California False Advertising Law and Unfair
Competition Law, was filed against us. The plaintiffs alleged that certain ingredients used in some Company products had purportedly caused irritation or posed a hazard to
consumers, and that the Company engaged in misrepresentation with respect to those products. For more information, see “Item 3. Legal Proceedings.” While the plaintiff’s
claims were dismissed without prejudice in July 2023, we may be subject to additional claims in the future, whether from those plaintiffs or other consumers. Such claimants
may assert that our products fail to meet quality or manufacturing specifications and standards, violate applicable laws or regulations, contain contaminants, include inadequate
instructions as to their proper use, include inadequate warnings concerning side effects and interactions with other substances or for persons with health conditions or allergies,
or cause adverse reactions or side effects, or that our product claims, instructions or marketing are false and misleading. Product-related claims or class action lawsuits increase
our costs and could divert the attention of our management, which could adversely affect our business and financial results. As we continue to offer an increasing number of
new products, our product-related claims risk may increase. Our insurance policies may not cover any or all of the resulting financial losses or broader damage to our
reputation.

If our products are found or believed to be defective or unsafe, our product claims are found to be deceptive, or our products otherwise fail to meet our consumers’ expectations,
our relationships with customers or consumers could suffer, the appeal of our brand could be diminished, and we could lose sales and become subject to liability or claims, any
of which could result in a material adverse effect on our business.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability to execute our long-term strategic plan.

Our future growth and revenue depend upon our ability to successfully implement our long-term strategic plan. Achieving our long-term strategic plan will require investment
in new capabilities, products, technologies and emerging markets, as well as in efforts to increase recognition of our brand and market penetration. These investments may not
be successful, and may also result in short-term costs without associated current sales and, therefore, may be dilutive to our earnings.

Our growth has in the past, and may in the future, strain our ability to effectively manage our operations, as it requires us to expand our management team, sales and marketing,
product development and logistics and distribution functions. Growth may require us to further upgrade our management information systems, internal processes and
procedures and technology, including with respect to use of new or advancing technologies such as artificial intelligence (“AI”). It also requires us to obtain sufficient
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raw materials and manufacturing capacity and additional operational capabilities and facilities to warehouse and distribute our products, particularly as we continue to expand
internationally. Ineffective execution to support growth could result in, among other things, product delays or shortages, operating errors, outages, inadequate customer service,
inappropriate claims or promotions by our marketing team or brand ambassadors and governmental inquires and investigations, all of which could harm our revenue and ability
to generate sustained growth and result in unanticipated expenses. Expansion into new international markets may create operating difficulties in managing our business across
numerous jurisdictions and ultimately may not be successful, which could result in slower revenue growth, higher operating costs and lower margins than anticipated and could
impair our ability to enter into additional new markets. In addition, we need to continue to attract and develop qualified management personnel to sustain growth. If we are not
able to successfully retain and develop existing personnel and identify, hire and integrate new personnel, our business, financial condition and results of operations would be
adversely affected.

We have expanded our operations rapidly since our inception in 2014. Our historical growth should not be considered as indicative of our future performance.

If we are unable to accurately forecast customer and consumer demand, manage our inventory and plan for future expenses, our results of operations could be adversely
affected.

We base our current and future inventory needs and expense levels on our operating forecasts, forecasts of expected future purchasing activity from certain of our customers
and our own estimates of future demand. To ensure adequate inventory supply, we must be able to forecast inventory needs and expenses and place orders sufficiently in
advance with our manufacturers and suppliers based on our estimates of future demand for particular products. Failure to accurately forecast demand for new or existing
products has resulted in, and may in the future result in, inefficient or excess inventory supply or increased costs. For example, we experienced a slowdown in sales momentum
during the second half of 2022 and fiscal year 2023, in part, due to inventory rebalancing across certain of our customers. Inventory levels in excess of customer demand has
resulted in inventory write-downs or write-offs and may result in the sale of excess inventory at discounted prices, which would cause our gross margins to suffer and could
impair the strength and prestige nature of our brand. Further, lower than forecasted demand may result in excess manufacturing capacity, increased inventory storage expenses
and reduced manufacturing efficiencies, which would result in lower margins. Conversely, if we underestimate customer demand, including as a result of unanticipated growth
and the launch of new products, our manufacturers and suppliers may not be able to deliver products to meet our requirements, and we may incur higher costs in order to secure
the necessary production capacity or additional or expedited shipping. An inability to meet customer demand and delays in the delivery of our products to our customers could
result in reputational harm and damaged customer relationships and have an adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

While we devote significant attention to forecasting efforts, the volume, timing, value and type of the orders we receive are inherently uncertain. Historical growth rates, trends
and other key performance metrics may not predict future growth. Our business and our ability to forecast demand is affected by general economic and business conditions in
the U.S. and customer confidence in future economic conditions, and our ability to forecast demand will be increasingly affected by conditions in international markets as we
continue to expand internationally. A portion of our expenses are fixed, and as a result, we may be unable to adjust our spending in a timely manner to compensate for any
unexpected shortfall in net revenues. Any failure to accurately predict demand for our products or expenses could cause our operating results to be lower than expected, which
could adversely affect our financial condition.

The illegal distribution and sale by third parties of counterfeit versions of our products or the unauthorized diversion by third parties of our products could have an adverse
effect on our net sales and a negative impact on our reputation and business.

Third parties illegally distribute and sell counterfeit versions of our products. We believe these counterfeit products are inferior to our authentic products and could pose safety
risks that our authentic products would not otherwise present to consumers. Consumers could confuse counterfeit products with our authentic products, which could damage or
diminish the image, reputation and value of our brand and cause consumers to refrain from purchasing our products in the future.

Products sold to professional salon distributors are meant to be sold to and used exclusively by salons and salon professionals or sold exclusively to the retail consumers of
these salons. Our products have been and may continue to be sold to sales outlets other than the intended salons and salon professionals, such as to general merchandise
retailers or unapproved outlets. Diverted products sold in such unapproved outlets may impact consumers’ perceptions of the prestige nature of our products. Further, in some
instances, these diverted products may be old, damaged or otherwise adulterated. Diversion may result in lower net sales of our products if consumers purchase diverted
products or choose to purchase products manufactured or sold by our competitors because of any perceived damage or diminishment to the image, reputation or value of our
brand resulting from such diversion.

We depend on a limited number of customers for a large portion of our net sales.

We expect that certain of our largest customers in 2023 will continue to account for a substantial portion of our net sales for the foreseeable future. The loss of a significant
customer, a shift in the level of support for our brand by any of these customers, or
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any significant decrease in sales to these customers, including as a result of the restructuring or bankruptcy of one of our customers, consolidation among such customers, retail
store closures, decrease in consumer demand or other factors, could reduce our net sales and operating income, lead to a decrease in customer confidence in our brand and
cause a loss of other customers, and therefore could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and cash flows.

We may be affected by changes in consumer shopping preferences, shifts in distribution channels and changes in the salon and retail environments.

Our omnichannel sales platform consists of our Professional, Specialty Retail and Direct-To-Consumer channels. From time to time, our financial performance in certain of
these channels may fluctuate relative to others, and our international expansion strategy may prioritize certain of these channels based on the market dynamics in a particular
jurisdiction. If such a situation persists or one or more channels fails to perform as expected, there could be an adverse effect on our business.

Our Professional channel depends on our engagement with professional hairstylists and our reputation and brand image within the professional hairstylist community. Negative
perceptions of our brand by the professional hairstylist community have had an adverse effect on our Professional channel. In addition, our Professional channel is impacted by
consumer demand for salon treatments and changes to the salon environment, and our professional hairstylist customers have limited their product supply when demand for
salon treatments decreases. Further, there may be consolidation of the salon market. If consolidation leads to customers gaining purchasing power, we may need to reduce the
cost of our products, which would have an impact on our earnings. Consolidation among our customers may also increase the risk of customer concentration.

In addition, consumer preferences have and may continue to shift with respect to retail traffic in brick and mortar stores. Further, any consolidation or liquidation in the retail
trade may result in us becoming increasingly dependent on key retailers and could result in an increased risk related to the concentration of our customers. A severe, adverse
impact on the business operations of our customers could have a corresponding material adverse effect on us.

Our products generally rely on a single or a limited number of manufacturers. The loss of manufacturers or shortages in the supply of raw materials or finished products
could harm our business, prospects, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Our products generally rely on a single or a limited number of manufacturers. We acquire raw materials, components and packaging from third-party suppliers, and our finished
products are manufactured by five third-party manufacturers. One company, Cosway, manufactures products that accounted for more than 61% of our net sales and 32% of our
inventory product purchases in 2023. While we have engaged and expect to continue to engage additional third-party manufacturers, engaging a new manufacturer involves
risks and costs, including additional due diligence, investment and oversight, and may not ultimately be successful. Any new manufacturer may not have the same capacity to
provide us finished product as our current manufacturers provide us. The failure to secure sufficient manufacturing capabilities from third parties could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

A principal raw material for our products is our patented ingredient, Bis-amino. The other primary raw materials used in our products include essential oils and specialty
ingredients. In the past, we have been able to obtain an adequate supply of our essential raw materials, and we currently believe we have an adequate supply for virtually all
components of our products, including Bis-amino. However, we have encountered and may in the future encounter supply issues with raw materials due to increases in global
demand and limited supply capacity, or other supply disruptions, as well as fluctuations in the cost of raw materials. Sustained increases in raw material costs or other
inflationary pressures in the future may have an adverse effect on our ability to maintain current operating margins. Further, while we attempt to reduce our exposure to
fluctuations in the price of raw materials through contractual arrangements with our suppliers, we may not accurately forecast prices and therefore may at times pay more than
prevailing market rates.

If any of our third-party suppliers cease to perform their obligations under our current contractual arrangements or terminate such arrangements, we may need to find alternative
sources of supply, and these new manufacturers or suppliers may have to be qualified under applicable industry, governmental and Company-mandated vendor standards, which
can require additional investment and be time-consuming. In addition, if we experience supply shortages, price increases, quality control concerns, disruption in transportation,
warehousing or other necessary services, or regulatory impediments with respect to raw materials, ingredients, components or packaging we use for our products, we may need
to seek alternative supplies or suppliers. We cannot guarantee that we would be able to establish alternative relationships on similar terms, without delay or at all, or that any
alternative supplier would be of comparable quality. We also may be required to reformulate or substitute ingredients in our products, including due to shortages of specific raw
materials in order to meet demand, and these reformulated products may be more expensive to procure or less effective than current formulations and could harm our brand and
reputation. If we are unable to successfully respond to such issues, our business, financial condition and results of operations would be adversely affected.
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A disruption in our operations could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our finished products are manufactured in the U.S. and Europe, with a substantial portion manufactured in California. Any interruptions in operations at these locations could
result in our inability to satisfy demand. A number of factors could damage or destroy the manufacturing equipment or our inventory of components, supplies or finished goods,
cause substantial delays in manufacturing, supply and distribution of our products, result in the loss of key information and cause us to incur additional expenses. These factors
include industrial accidents, natural disasters, strikes and other labor disputes, availability of natural resources, political crises, such as terrorist attacks, war and other
geopolitical instability, capacity constraints, equipment or technology malfunctions or failures, disruptions in ingredient, material or packaging supply, disruptions in supply
chain or information technology, loss or impairment of key manufacturing sites or suppliers, product quality control, safety, increase in commodity prices and energy costs,
inflationary pressures, licensing requirements and other regulatory issues, pandemic related shut downs and other external factors over which we have no control. We have
experienced increased input costs for warehousing, transportation and raw materials as a result of global supply chain disruption and inflationary pressures, as well as increased
wage rates. Sustained increases in these costs or other inflationary pressures in the future may have an adverse effect on our ability to maintain current levels of operating
margin. The occurrence of any such events could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our business interruption insurance may not cover losses in any particular case, and insurance may not be available on commercially reasonable terms to cover certain of these
catastrophic events or interruptions. In addition, regardless of the level of insurance coverage, any disruption that impedes our ability to manufacture our products in a timely
manner could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We rely on third-party global service providers to deliver our products to customers, including directly to consumers. Our ability to receive inbound inventory efficiently and
ship products to customers may be negatively affected by factors beyond our and these providers’ control, including pandemic, weather, fire, flood, power loss, earthquakes,
acts of war or terrorism or other events specifically impacting our service providers, such as labor disputes, cyberattacks, financial difficulties and system failures. We are also
subject to risks of damage or loss during delivery by our shipping providers. We have in the past experienced, and may in the future experience, shipping delays for reasons
outside of our control.

If we are not able to negotiate acceptable pricing and other terms with our third-party shipping, warehousing and distribution providers, or if these providers experience
performance problems or other difficulties in processing our orders or timely delivering our products to customers, our customers could become dissatisfied and cease buying
products from us, which could negatively impact our results of operations.

We are subject to risks related to the global scope of our operations.

Our products are sold in more than 100 countries around the world, with approximately 55% of our net sales in 2023 generated outside the U.S. In addition, certain of our
products are manufactured in Europe, and we have key third party operational facilities located outside the U.S. that warehouse and/or distribute goods for sale throughout the
world. Our global operations are subject to many risks and uncertainties, including:

• fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and the relative costs of operating in international jurisdictions;

• local civil unrest, political instability or changes in diplomatic or trade relationships, such as geopolitical tensions between the U.S. and the People’s Republic of
China;

• foreign or U.S. laws, regulations and policies, including restrictions on trade, immigration and travel, operations, and investments; disputes with third parties arising
from such laws, regulations or policies; currency exchange controls; restrictions on imports and exports, including license requirements; tariffs; sanctions; and taxes;

• inflation and other macroeconomic factors in certain of our international markets;

• lack of well-established or reliable legal and administrative systems in certain of our international markets; and

• social, economic and geopolitical conditions, such as a pandemic, terrorist attack, war or other military action, including the current conflicts between Russia and
Ukraine and in the Middle East.

These risks could have an adverse effect on our business, including our ability to capitalize on growth in new international markets and to maintain the current level of
operations in our existing international markets.

Our success depends, in part, on our key personnel.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability to retain our key personnel, including our executive officers and senior management team. Transitions in our senior management or
the unexpected loss of one or more of our key employees could adversely affect our business. Our success also depends, in part, on our continuing ability to identify, hire, train
and retain other highly qualified personnel. To support our continued growth, we must effectively integrate, develop, motivate and manage new employees in our
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fully remote working environment. To attract top talent, we may need to increase our employee compensation levels to remain competitive in attracting and retaining talented
employees. Competition for these employees can be intense. We may not be able to attract, integrate or retain qualified personnel in the future, and our failure to do so could
have an adverse effect on our business.

Our business is affected by seasonality.

Our business has historically been influenced by seasonal trends common to traditional retail selling periods, and the results of our operations typically are slightly higher in the
second half of the fiscal year due to increased levels of purchasing by consumers for special and holiday events and by our customers for the end of year holiday selling season.
Higher sales during the third and fourth quarters may cause our working capital needs to be greater during the second and third quarters of the fiscal year. However, fluctuations
in net sales in any fiscal quarter may be attributable to a number of other factors. Adverse events that occur during the second half of the fiscal year may negatively impact our
net sales during such period and have had and may in the future have a disproportionate effect on our operating results for the entire fiscal year. Furthermore, our limited
operating history and rapid growth in recent years may obscure the extent to which seasonality trends have affected and may continue to affect our business. Accordingly,
yearly or quarterly comparisons of our operating results may not be useful, and our results in any particular period will not necessarily be indicative of the results to be expected
for any future period.

Risks Related to Information Technology and Cybersecurity

We rely on the use of our, and our third-party service providers’ information technology. Any significant failure, inadequacy, interruption or data security incident
impacting our information technology and websites, or those of our third-party service providers, could have an adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows.

We increasingly rely on information technology systems to process, transmit and store electronic information, including on our e-commerce website and other platforms and
applications. Our ability to effectively manage our business and coordinate the manufacturing, sourcing, distribution, sale and marketing of our products depends on the
reliability and capacity of these systems. The failure of our information technology systems or those of our vendors and service providers to operate properly or effectively,
problems with transitioning to upgraded or replacement systems, or difficulty in integrating new systems would adversely affect our business operations. Our information
technology systems and those of our vendors and service providers may be susceptible to outages due to fire, floods, power loss, telecommunications failures, hardware
failures, user errors, breaches and cybersecurity threats including ransomware and other events. These outages could disrupt our general corporate functions and the
manufacturing and distribution operations of our third-party vendors and could cause information, including data related to customer or consumer orders, to be lost or delayed,
reduce demand for our products and cause our sales to decline. Further, our e-commerce websites serve as an extension of our marketing strategies by introducing potential new
consumers to our brand, product offerings and enhanced content. Due to the importance of our e‐commerce operations, we are vulnerable to website downtime and other
technical failures. Our failure to successfully respond to these risks in a timely manner could reduce sales and harm our reputation. In addition, if changes in technology cause
our information technology systems to become obsolete, or if our information technology systems are inadequate to handle our growth, we could lose customers and
consumers. Our and our third-party service providers’ technology systems and websites have experienced outages in the past which have disrupted our operations. Any
significant disruption in our technology systems or websites could harm our reputation and brand, cause us to incur significant costs and have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, and results of operations. Our insurance policies may not cover any or all of the resulting financial losses or broader damage to our reputation.

Failure to adequately maintain the security of confidential information could materially adversely affect our business.

As part of our normal business activities, we and our third-party service providers collect and store certain confidential information, including personal or other confidential
information with respect to customers, consumers, service providers and employees, information with respect to our intellectual property, and sensitive financial information.
The success of our e-commerce operations depends on the secure transmission of confidential and personal data over public networks. Security incidents compromising the
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of personal or other confidential information could result from cyberattacks, ransomware, computer malware, supply chain attacks or
malfeasance of our personnel. We have in the past experienced, and we expect to continue to experience, security incidents, including phishing, and other attempts to breach, or
gain unauthorized access to, our systems. Such attacks have become increasingly difficult to detect, defend against or prevent and may originate from outside parties, hackers,
criminal organizations or other threat actors, including nation states. As AI capabilities improve and gain widespread use, we may experience cyberattacks created using AI,
which may be difficult to detect and mitigate. We may be more vulnerable to security incidents because our employees and certain of our service providers work remotely. We
cannot guarantee that our security efforts will prevent breaches or breakdowns of our or our third-party service providers’ information technology systems. In response to actual
or anticipated attacks, we may incur increasing costs, including costs to deploy additional personnel and protection technologies, train employees and engage third-party experts
and consultants. If we suffer a material loss or disclosure of personal or other confidential information as a result of a breach of our information technology systems or those of
our third-party service providers, we may suffer reputational, competitive or business harm, be
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subject to loss of our intellectual property, incur significant costs and be subject to government investigations, breach notification laws, litigation, fines or damages, which
could have an adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. A breach of our social media accounts may cause us to lose
access to those accounts, which could affect our sales and marketing strategies, our reputation and our brand. A security incident could require that we expend significant
additional resources on remediation, restoration and enhancement of our information technology. Moreover, our cyber insurance may not be adequate to cover all costs and
liabilities related to these incidents, and the occurrence of any security incident may impact our ability to obtain future coverage.

Our processing of personal information and other sensitive data could give rise to significant costs and liabilities, which may have an adverse effect on our reputation,
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Evolving state, federal and foreign laws, regulations and industry standards regarding privacy and security apply to our collection, use, retention, protection, disclosure, transfer
and other processing of certain types of data, including with respect to our customers, employees, suppliers and others. For example, the E.U.’s GDPR, as well as the U.K.
GDPR and the U.K. Data Protection Act 2018, impose a strict data protection compliance regime and potentially substantial fines for breaches and violations. In the U.S., many
states are considering adopting or have already adopted privacy, security and data breach notification laws or regulations. These laws, regulations and standards may be
interpreted and applied differently over time and from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. Our inability to comply with such laws or to quickly adapt our practices to reflect them as
they develop could subject us to significant fines, penalties, damages, liabilities and reputational harm, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects,
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

Risks Related to Intellectual Property Matters

Our efforts to register, maintain and protect our intellectual property rights may not be sufficient to protect our business.

Our patents and trademarks are essential to our business, and we also rely on our unpatented proprietary technology, trade secrets, processes and know-how. We generally seek
to protect our patents, trademarks and other proprietary information through a combination of patent, trademark, copyright and trade secret laws, as well as by confidentiality,
non-disclosure and assignment of invention agreements with our employees, contractors, collaborators, vendors, consultants, advisors and other third parties. Despite these
measures, any of our intellectual property rights could be challenged, invalidated, circumvented or misappropriated. This could involve significant expense, potentially hinder
or limit use of our intellectual property rights, or potentially result in the inability to use the intellectual property rights in question. If an alternative cost-effective solution were
not available, there may be an adverse effect on our financial position and performance. Further, because of the differences in foreign trademark, patent and other laws
concerning proprietary rights, our intellectual property rights may not receive the same degree of protection in certain foreign jurisdictions as they would in the U.S. The legal
systems of certain countries do not favor or may not be sufficiently robust for the meaningful enforcement of intellectual property rights. While we seek to protect our
intellectual property rights uniformly in the markets where we intend to sell our products, we cannot ensure that we will be able to do so in all jurisdictions.

Enforcing our intellectual property rights can be expensive and time-consuming, and an adverse result in any proceeding could put our intellectual property rights at risk of
being invalidated or narrowed in scope of coverage. Patent and trademark challenges increase our costs to develop, engineer and market our products. We may not have
adequate resources to enforce our intellectual property rights. In addition, our ability to enforce our intellectual property rights depends on our ability to detect infringement,
and it is difficult to detect infringers who do not advertise the components that are used in their products. Moreover, it may be difficult or impossible to obtain evidence of
infringement in a competitor’s or potential competitor’s product. We may not prevail in any disputes that we initiate, and the damages or other remedies awarded, if we were to
prevail, may not be commercially meaningful. Furthermore, because of the substantial amount of discovery required in connection with intellectual property litigation, there is a
risk that some of our confidential information could be compromised by disclosure during this type of dispute.

Pending and future patent applications to protect our products or which effectively prevent others from commercializing competitive technologies and products may not be
approved or result in patents being issued. Moreover, the scope of coverage claimed in a patent application can be significantly reduced during prosecution before the patent is
issued. Even once issued, the scope, validity, enforceability and commercial value of patent rights are uncertain, and our patents may not be of sufficient scope or strength to
provide meaningful protection or commercial advantage and may not preclude competitors from developing products similar to ours. Any of our patents or pending patent
applications may be challenged, narrowed, circumvented or invalidated by third parties.

While we have registered or applied to register many of our trademarks, trade names and brand names to distinguish our products from those of our competitors in the United
States and in the foreign countries in which we operate, we cannot ensure that our trademark applications will be approved uniformly across all jurisdictions. Third parties may
also oppose our trademark applications or otherwise challenge our use of the trademarks. In the event that our trademarks are successfully challenged, we could be forced to
rebrand our products, which could result in loss of brand recognition and could require us to devote resources to advertising and marketing new brands.
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We rely on our unpatented proprietary technology, and it is possible that others will independently develop the same or similar technology or otherwise obtain access to our
unpatented technology. Although we generally seek to protect our unpatented proprietary technology and our trade secrets, processes and know-how by confidentiality, non-
disclosure and assignment of invention agreements with our employees, contractors, collaborators, vendors, consultants and advisors, these agreements may not provide
meaningful protection in the event of unauthorized use or disclosure of such proprietary technology, trade secrets, processes or know-how.

If we do not adequately maintain our intellectual property, it can result in loss of rights. Loss of rights may be irrevocable. For example, we are required to pay various periodic
renewal fees on registered intellectual property, and our failure to do so could result in the affected intellectual property lapsing. If this were to occur, our competitors may be
able to use our technologies, names, brands or the goodwill we have acquired in the marketplace and erode or negate any competitive advantages we may have, which could
harm our business and ability to achieve profitability.

If our trademarks, trade names and trade dress are not adequately protected, we may not be able to maintain or build name recognition in our markets of interest.

If we are unable to successfully register our trademarks and trade names and establish name recognition based on our trademarks, trade names and trade dress, we may not be
able to compete effectively, and our business may be adversely affected. In addition, competitors or other third parties have in the past, and may in the future, adopt trade
names, trade dress (including packaging designs and label designs), design patents or industrial designs, trademarks or domain names that are confusingly similar to ours. These
competitors or third parties may also market certain of their brands or products as a purported replacement or “dupe” of our brand or products, thereby impeding our ability to
build brand identity, possibly leading to market confusion and potentially requiring us to pursue legal action. In addition, we have received, and in the future may receive, trade
name or trademark infringement claims brought by owners of other registered trademarks, or trademarks that incorporate variations of our unregistered trademarks or trade
names, and any such claims could result in injunctive relief against us that could prevent us from using certain trademarks and trade names. Our efforts to enforce or protect our
trademarks, trade names and domain names may be ineffective, may impact the public perception of our brand, may be expensive, may divert our resources and, if a third party
brings counterclaims against us in connection with such enforcement actions, could result in payment by us of monetary damages or injunctive relief, all of which could
adversely impact our financial condition or results of operations.

Third parties may allege that we are infringing, misappropriating or otherwise violating their intellectual property rights, which could involve substantial costs and
adversely impact our business.

Third parties have alleged, and in the future may allege, that our products infringe, misappropriate or otherwise violate their intellectual property rights, and we may become
involved in litigation or other disputes relating to intellectual property used in our business. Any such claims, even those without merit, can be expensive and time-consuming
to defend and may divert management’s attention and resources, and an adverse result in any proceeding could put our ability to produce and sell our products in jeopardy. We
may be required to expend significant amounts of resources to defend against claims of infringement, pay significant money damages, cease using certain processes,
technologies, or other intellectual property, cease making, offering and selling certain products, obtain a license (which may not be available on commercially reasonable terms
or at all) or redesign our brand, our products or our packaging, which could be costly and time-consuming.

In addition, we may be unaware of third-party intellectual property that covers or otherwise relates to some or all of our products. Because of technological changes in our
industry, current patent coverage and the rapid rate of issuance of new patents, our current or future products may unknowingly infringe, misappropriate or otherwise violate
existing, pending or future patents or intellectual property rights of other parties.

The defense costs and settlements for intellectual property infringement lawsuits may not be covered by insurance, and such lawsuits can take years to resolve. Even if resolved
in our favor, the volume of intellectual property-related claims and the mere specter of threatened litigation or other legal proceedings may cause us to incur significant
expenses and could distract our personnel from day-to-day responsibilities. The direct and indirect costs of addressing these actual and threatened disputes may have an adverse
effect on our operations, reputation and financial performance.

We may be subject to claims that our employees, contractors, collaborators, vendors, consultants or advisors have wrongfully used or disclosed alleged trade secrets of their
current or former employers or claims asserting ownership of what we regard as our own intellectual property.

Third parties may allege wrongful use or disclosure of their alleged intellectual property or make claims challenging the inventorship or ownership of our intellectual property.
We may be subject to claims that we or our employees, contractors, collaborators, vendors, consultants and advisors have used or disclosed intellectual property, including trade
secrets or other proprietary information, of any such individual’s current or former employer. In addition, we may face claims by third parties that our agreements with
employees obligating them to assign intellectual property to us are ineffective or in conflict with prior or competing contractual obligations of assignment, which could result in
ownership disputes regarding intellectual property we
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have developed or will develop and may interfere with our ability to capture the commercial value of such intellectual property. If we do not successfully resolve an ownership
dispute, we may be precluded from using certain intellectual property or may lose our exclusive rights in such intellectual property. It is not always possible to identify and
deter misconduct by employees, contractors, collaborators, vendors, consultants and advisors, and the precautions we take to detect and prevent this type of activity may not be
effective in controlling unknown or unmanaged risks or losses. Any of these outcomes could harm our business and competitive position.

Risks Related to Legal and Regulatory Matters

Disputes and other legal or regulatory proceedings could adversely affect our financial results.

From time to time, we may become involved in litigation, other disputes or regulatory proceedings in connection with or incidental to our business, including litigation related
to intellectual property, regulatory matters, contract, advertising, product-related and other consumer claims. In general, claims made by us or against us in litigation, disputes
or other proceedings can be expensive and time consuming to bring or defend against and could result in settlements, injunctions or damages that could significantly affect our
business. It is not possible to predict the final resolution of the litigation, disputes or proceedings to which we currently are or may in the future become party to. Regardless of
the final resolution, such proceedings may have an adverse effect on our reputation, brand, financial condition and business, including by utilizing our resources and potentially
diverting the attention of our management from the operation of our business. See “Item 3. Legal Proceedings.”

Our business is subject to federal, state and international laws, regulations and policies that could have an adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows.

Our business is subject to numerous laws, regulations and policies in the jurisdictions in which we operate. Many of these laws and regulations have a high level of subjectivity,
are subject to interpretation, and vary significantly from market to market. These laws and regulations can have several impacts on our business, including:

• delaying or prohibiting the sale of a product or ingredient in one or more markets;

• limiting our ability to import products into a market;

• incurring delays and expenses associated with compliance, such as record keeping, documentation of the properties of certain products, labeling, and scientific
substantiation;

• limiting labeling and marketing claims we can make regarding our products; and

• limiting the substances that can be included in our products, resulting in product reformulations or the recall and discontinuation of certain products that cannot be
reformulated to comply with new regulations.

These events could interrupt the marketing and sale of our products, cause us to be subject to product liability claims, severely damage our brand reputation and image in the
marketplace, increase the cost of our products, cause us to fail to meet customer expectations or prevent us from delivering products in sufficient quantities or sufficient quality,
which could result in lost sales.

Before we can market and sell our products in certain jurisdictions, the applicable local governmental authority may require evidence of the safety of our products, which may
include testing of individual ingredients at relevant levels. In particular, because Bis-amino is our proprietary ingredient, it typically is not a pre-approved ingredient for use in
products in specific jurisdictions, and we have been required in the past, and may be required in the future, to perform testing and provide other data and information to
governmental authorities prior to the sale of our products in the jurisdiction. Our international distributors are primarily responsible for registering ingredients and obtaining any
approvals necessary to sell our products in the applicable territory, and any failure by them to do so could decrease sales of our products and harm our reputation.

Additional laws, regulations and policies, and changes or new interpretation or enforcement thereof, that affect our business could adversely affect our financial results. These
include accounting standards, laws and regulations relating to tax matters, trade, data privacy and data security, anti-corruption, advertising, marketing, manufacturing,
distribution, customs matters, product registration, ingredients, chemicals, packaging, selective distribution, environmental and climate change matters. We have been required,
and may in the future be required, to reformulate certain of our products in specific jurisdictions. For example, we reformulated a product in 2021 as a result of regulation
changes in the European Union. In addition, we may be required to discontinue or revise our product packaging or labeling as a result of national or international legal or
regulatory changes or determinations, new information regarding ingredients or for other reasons. Delays in or prohibition of selling our products, or the need to reformulate the
ingredients used in our products, could result in, among other things, increased costs to us, excess and/or obsolete inventory, delays in our product launches, loss of consumer
confidence in the quality of our products, harm to our brand
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and reputation, product returns or recalls and lower net sales, and therefore could have an adverse effect on our business, prospects, results of operations, financial condition
and cash flows.

Government regulations relating to the marketing and advertising of our products may restrict, inhibit or delay our ability to sell our products and harm our business.

A variety of federal, state and foreign government authorities regulate the advertising and promotion of our products and the marketing claims we can make regarding their
properties and benefits, including in the U.S., the FDA, the FTC and state consumer protection agencies. These regulations can apply not only to the actions and statements of
our company and employees, but also to those of our brand ambassadors and advocates. There is a degree of subjectivity in determining whether a labeling or marketing claim
is appropriate under applicable standards, and government agencies could take enforcement action against us for our advertising and promotion practices or determine that the
research and development efforts we undertake to support our claims are inadequate for any particular product or claim, which could require us to modify our product claims or
result in fines. We have received, and in the future may receive, complaints regarding our marketing claims, and we have been, and may in the future be, subject to class action
or false or misleading advertising lawsuits with respect to our marketing claims. Any government inquiry into the regulatory status of our products and any related interruption
in the marketing and sales of our products or any lawsuit related to our marketing claims could damage our reputation and brand and have an adverse effect on our business,
prospects, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

If our products are not manufactured in compliance with applicable regulations, do not meet quality standards or otherwise result in adverse health effects in consumers,
we could be subject to reputational harm, remediation costs or regulatory enforcement.

We rely on third parties to manufacture our products in compliance with applicable law and other quality standards, including the FDA’s recommendations for cosmetic GMPs.
Compliance with these standards can increase the cost of manufacturing our products as we work with our vendors to ensure they are qualified and in compliance. If we or our
contract manufacturers fail to comply with these standards, it could lead to customer complaints, adverse events, product withdrawal or recall or increase the likelihood that our
products are adulterated or misbranded, any of which could result in negative publicity, remediation costs or regulatory enforcement that could impact our ability to continue
selling certain products. Problems associated with product recalls could be exacerbated due to the global nature of our business because a recall in one jurisdiction could lead to
recalls in other jurisdictions.

Government reviews, inquiries, investigations and actions could harm our business.

The regulatory environment in various jurisdictions where our business operates is evolving, and government officials often exercise broad discretion in deciding how to
interpret and apply applicable regulations. We have received and from time to time may receive formal and informal inquiries from various government regulatory authorities
or self-regulatory organizations about our business and compliance with local laws, regulations or standards. Any determination that our operations or activities, or the activities
of our employees, are not in compliance with existing laws, regulations or standards could, among other things, result in the imposition of substantial fines, civil and criminal
penalties, interruptions of business, loss of supplier, vendor or other third-party relationships, termination of necessary licenses and permits, modification of business practices
and compliance programs and equitable remedies, including disgorgement, injunctive relief, and other sanctions or similar results, all of which could potentially harm our
business. Even if these reviews, inquiries, investigations and actions do not result in any adverse determinations, they could create negative publicity, which could harm our
business and give rise to third-party litigation or action.

Our employees, contractors, customers, consultants, suppliers and other business partners may engage in misconduct or other improper activities, including
noncompliance with regulatory standards and requirements.

We are exposed to the risk that our employees, contractors, customers, consultants, suppliers and other business partners may engage in fraudulent or illegal activity.
Misconduct by these parties could include intentional, reckless or negligent conduct or failure to disclose unauthorized activities to us that violate, among other things: (i) the
rules of the applicable regulatory bodies; (ii) manufacturing standards; (iii) data privacy and security laws; (iv) the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, U.K. Bribery Act and
other anti-corruption laws; or (v) laws that require the true, complete and accurate reporting of financial information or data.

We sell our products in many parts of the world that are recognized as having governmental and commercial corruption and where, in certain circumstances, strict compliance
with anti-bribery laws may conflict with local customs and practices. It is not always possible to identify and deter misconduct by our employees and third parties, and the
precautions we take to detect and prevent these activities may not be effective in controlling unknown or unmanaged risks or losses or in protecting us from governmental
investigations or other actions or lawsuits stemming from a failure to be in compliance with such laws or regulations. If any such actions are instituted against us and we are not
successful in defending ourselves or asserting our rights, those actions could result in the imposition of significant fines or other sanctions, including the imposition of civil,
criminal and administrative penalties and oversight obligations. Furthermore, if we believe or have reason to believe that our employees or

25



Table of Contents

agents have or may have violated applicable anti-corruption laws, we may be required to investigate. Any such actions or investigations can be expensive and time-consuming
to defend and may divert management’s attention and resources.

Risks Related to Our Indebtedness

Our significant indebtedness could adversely affect our financial condition.

Our significant indebtedness, when combined with our other financial obligations and contractual commitments, could have important consequences, including:

• requiring us to dedicate a significant portion of our cash flows from operations to payments on our indebtedness, thereby reducing funds available for working capital,
capital expenditures, acquisitions, selling and marketing efforts, product development and other purposes;

• increasing our vulnerability to adverse economic and industry conditions, which could place us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have
relatively less indebtedness;

• limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and industry;

• increasing our exposure to rising interest rates because certain of our borrowings are at variable interest rates;

• restricting us from making strategic acquisitions or causing us to make non-strategic divestitures; and

• limiting our ability to borrow additional funds, or to dispose of assets to raise funds, if needed, for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, product
development and other purposes.

Although the terms of the agreements governing our indebtedness contain restrictions on the incurrence of additional indebtedness, such restrictions are subject to a number of
important exceptions, and indebtedness incurred in compliance with such restrictions could be substantial. If we and our restricted subsidiaries incur significant additional
indebtedness, the related risks that we face could increase.

We may be unable to generate sufficient cash flow to service our debt obligations.

Our business may not generate sufficient cash flow from operating activities to service our debt obligations. Our ability to make payments on and to refinance our debt and to
fund planned capital expenditures depends on our ability to generate cash in the future. To some extent, this is subject to general economic, financial, competitive, legislative,
regulatory, and other factors that are beyond our control.

If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow from operations to service our debt and meet our other commitments, including under the Tax Receivable Agreement, we may
need to refinance all or a portion of our debt or raise additional debt or equity capital. We may not be able to affect any of these actions on a timely basis, on commercially
reasonable terms or at all, and these actions may not be sufficient to meet our debt service and Tax Receivable Agreement requirements. In addition, the terms of our existing or
future debt agreements may restrict us from pursuing any of these alternatives, which may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The terms of our indebtedness restrict our current and future operations, particularly our ability to respond to change or to take certain actions.

The agreements governing our outstanding indebtedness contain a number of restrictive covenants that impose significant operating and financial restrictions on us and may
limit our ability to engage in acts that may be in our long-term best interest, including, among other things, restrictions on our ability to:

• incur additional indebtedness;

• create liens on assets;

• declare or pay certain dividends and other distributions;

• make certain investments, loans, guarantees or advances;

• consolidate, amalgamate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets;

• enter into certain transactions with our affiliates; and

• exceed certain secured leverage ratios.

These restrictions could impede our ability to operate our business by, among other things, limiting our ability to take advantage of financing, merger and acquisition and other
corporate opportunities.
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Various risks, uncertainties and events beyond our control could affect our ability to comply with these covenants and maintain these financial tests and ratios. A breach of such
covenants could result in an event of default unless we obtain a waiver to avoid such default. If we are unable to obtain a waiver, such a default may allow our creditors to
accelerate the related debt and may result in the acceleration of, or default under, any other debt to which a cross-acceleration or cross-default provision applies. In the event our
lenders accelerate the repayment of our borrowings, we and our subsidiaries may not have sufficient assets to repay that indebtedness.

Because our operations are conducted through our subsidiaries, we are dependent on the receipt of distributions and dividends or other payments from our subsidiaries for
cash to fund our operations and expenses, including payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement and future dividend payments, if any.

Our operations are conducted through our subsidiaries. As a result, our ability to make payments under our Tax Receivable Agreement and future dividend payments, if any, is
dependent on the earnings of our subsidiaries and the payment of those earnings to us in the form of dividends, loans or advances and through repayment of loans or advances
from us. Payments to us by our subsidiaries will be contingent upon our subsidiaries’ earnings and other business considerations and may be subject to statutory or contractual
restrictions. We do not expect to declare or pay dividends on our common stock for the foreseeable future; however, if we determine in the future to pay dividends on our
common stock, the agreements governing our outstanding indebtedness significantly restrict the ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends or otherwise transfer assets to us.

We may be able to incur significant additional debt, which would increase the risks described herein. We may also require additional capital, which may not be available on
acceptable terms, if at all, and may cause dilution to our existing stockholders, restrict our operations or require us to relinquish rights to our technologies or product
candidates.

We may increase our levels of debt in the future to finance our operations or in connection with acquisitions. We regularly consider market conditions and our ability to incur
indebtedness to either refinance existing indebtedness or for working capital. The agreements relating to our indebtedness limit but do not prohibit our ability to incur additional
debt. If we increase our total indebtedness, our debt service obligations will increase. We will become more exposed to the risks arising from our substantial level of
indebtedness as described above as we become more leveraged.

If our cash flow from operations is less than we anticipate, if our cash requirements are more than we expect, or if we intend to finance acquisitions, we may require more
financing. However, debt or equity financing may not be available to us on acceptable terms, if at all. If we incur additional debt or raise equity through the issuance of capital
stock, the terms of the debt or capital stock issued may give the holders rights, preferences and privileges senior to those of holders of our common stock, particularly in the
event of liquidation. The terms of the debt may also impose additional and more stringent restrictions on our operations than we currently have. To the extent that we raise
additional capital through the sale of equity or convertible debt securities, the ownership interest of holders of our common stock will be diluted. If we are unable to raise
additional capital when needed, our financial condition could be adversely affected. Unfavorable changes in the ratings that rating agencies assign to our debt may ultimately
negatively impact our access to the debt capital markets and increase the costs we incur to borrow funds.

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Stock

Our stock price may be volatile, and the value of our stock may decline.

An active or liquid market in our common stock may not be sustained, and in the absence of an active trading market for our common stock, investors may not be able to resell
any shares they hold at or above the price at which they purchased their shares, or at all.

In addition, the stock market in general has been highly volatile. As a result, the market price of our common stock is likely to be similarly volatile, and investors in our
common stock may experience a decrease, which could be substantial, in the value of their stock and could lose part or all of their investment. The price of our common stock
could be subject to wide fluctuations in response to a number of factors, including factors described elsewhere in this Annual Report, many of which are beyond our control or
unrelated to our specific performance or prospects.

Furthermore, the market price of our common stock may also decline if we fail to meet analysts’ projections or guidance that we give to the market. Securities class action
litigation has often been initiated against companies following periods of volatility in their stock price or substantial declines following a company’s failure to meet guidance or
estimates, as has been the case with us. On November 17, 2022, a putative securities class action was filed against us and certain of our current and former officers and
directors. The action is being brought on behalf of a putative class of purchasers of our common stock in or traceable to our IPO and asserts claims under Sections 11, 12 and 15
of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). The action seeks certification of the putative class, compensatory damages, attorneys’ fees and costs, and any
other relief that the court determines is appropriate. For more information, see “Item 3. Legal Proceedings.” This litigation, derivative litigation and other similar types of
litigation could result in substantial costs and divert our management’s attention and resources and could require us to make a substantial payment to satisfy judgments or to
settle such litigation.
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Investment funds affiliated with Advent International, L.P. (the “Advent Funds”) beneficially own a significant percentage of our common stock and have significant
influence over us.

As of December 31, 2023, entities affiliated with the Advent Funds beneficially owned approximately 75.7% of our outstanding common stock. In addition, three members of
our Board of Directors are employed by affiliates of the Advent Funds. For as long as affiliates of the Advent Funds continue to beneficially own a substantial percentage of the
voting power of our outstanding common stock, they will continue to have significant influence over us. For example, they will be able to strongly influence or effectively
control the election of all of the members of our Board of Directors and our business and affairs, including any determinations with respect to mergers or other business
combinations, the acquisition or disposition of assets, the incurrence of additional indebtedness, the issuance of any additional shares of common stock or other equity
securities, the repurchase or redemption of shares of our common stock and the payment of dividends. This concentration of ownership may have the effect of deterring
investment in our common stock and may reduce the trading volume of our public float.

Our restated certificate of incorporation provides that we will waive any interest or expectancy in corporate opportunities presented to the Advent Funds or members of our
Board of Directors who are affiliated with the Advent Funds.

Our restated certificate of incorporation (the “Certificate of Incorporation”) provides that the Advent Funds and the members of our Board of Directors who are affiliated with
the Advent Funds are not required to offer us any corporate opportunity of which they become aware and can take any such corporate opportunity for themselves or offer it to
other companies in which they have an investment. We, by the terms of our Certificate of Incorporation, expressly renounce any interest or expectancy in any such corporate
opportunity to the extent permitted under applicable law, even if the opportunity is one that we or our subsidiaries might reasonably have pursued or had the ability or desire to
pursue if granted the opportunity to do so. The Advent Funds may have interests that differ from our investors’ interests. The Advent Funds are in the business of making
investments in companies and may from time to time acquire and hold interests in businesses that compete directly or indirectly with us.

The Tax Receivable Agreement with our Pre-IPO Stockholders requires us to make cash payments to them and exposes us to certain risks.
In connection with the IPO, we entered into a Tax Receivable Agreement, under which generally we are required to pay to our Pre-IPO Stockholders 85% of the amount of cash
savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state or local income tax that we or our subsidiaries realize (or are deemed to realize in certain circumstances) as a result of the utilization of the
Pre-IPO Tax Assets (as defined herein) and the making of payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement. If we did not enter into the Tax Receivable Agreement, we would be
entitled to realize the full economic benefit of the Pre-IPO Tax Assets. Consequently, stockholders other than the Pre-IPO Stockholders will only be entitled to the economic
benefit of the Pre-IPO Tax Assets to the extent of our continuing 15% interest in those assets.

These payment obligations are our obligations and not obligations of any of our subsidiaries and are not conditioned upon the Pre-IPO Stockholders maintaining a continued
direct or indirect ownership interest in us. While many of the factors that will determine the amount of payments that we will make under the Tax Receivable Agreement are
outside of our control, we expect that the payments we will make under the Tax Receivable Agreement will be substantial. We currently expect that future payments under the
Tax Receivable Agreement relating to the Pre-IPO Tax Assets could aggregate to $198.2  million over the 12-year remaining period under the Tax Receivable Agreement.
However, the tax liability is calculated based on current tax laws and the assumption that we and our subsidiaries earn sufficient taxable income to realize the full tax benefits
subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement. Updates to our blended state tax rate, allocation of U.S. versus foreign sourced income and changes in tax rules on the amortization
and depreciation of assets may significantly impact the established liability and changes would be recorded to other (expense) income in the period we made the determination.

In addition, we are subject to a number of additional risks pursuant to our obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement, including: additional tax benefits arising from the
Tax Receivable Agreement may result in higher amounts due under the agreement; payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement may exceed tax savings that we realize;
certain transactions could cause us to recognize taxable income without a receipt of cash even though we would still be required to make payments under the Tax Receivable
Agreement; Pre-IPO Stockholders may have interests that differ from or are in addition to those of our other stockholders; our payment obligations would accelerate upon the
occurrence of certain events; and our obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement could deter a potential acquirer of the Company from seeking such an acquisition.
Further, because we are a holding company, our ability to make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement is dependent on the ability of our subsidiaries to make
distributions to us, and we may be unable to timely make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement due to limitations on distributions under the terms of the 2022 Credit
Agreement to which one or more of our subsidiaries are a party. These risks, if realized, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition.

The Tax Receivable Agreement is filed as exhibit 10.3 to the Annual Report filed on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2021 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 8, 2022. The foregoing description of the Tax Receivable Agreement is qualified by reference thereto.
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There may be sales of a substantial amount of our common stock, and these sales could cause the price of our common stock to fall.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market, or the perception that these sales might occur, could cause the market price of our common
stock to decline and could impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of additional equity securities.

As of December 31, 2023, the Advent Funds held 75.7% of our total shares outstanding. The Advent Funds may require us to register shares of our common stock held by them
for resale under the federal securities laws. Any such sales or anticipation thereof, including the filing of a registration statement relating to such shares, could cause the market
price of our common stock to decline.

In addition, as of December 31, 2023, we had options to purchase an aggregate of 15.8 million shares of common stock outstanding. We have filed a Form S-8 registration
statement to register shares that we may issue pursuant to our equity incentive plans, including all of the shares underlying options currently outstanding, which permits the
resale of such shares by non-affiliates in the public market without restriction under the Securities Act and the sale by affiliates in the public market subject to compliance with
the resale provisions of Rule 144.

Any sales by the Advent Funds, by Company insiders including directors or officers, or of shares issued upon the exercise of stock options could cause the market price of our
common stock to decline, potentially substantially, depending upon the volume and timing of such sales. In addition, short sales or hedging transactions involving our equity
securities, whether or not we believe them to be prohibited, could also adversely affect the price of our common stock.

Delaware law and provisions in our Certificate of Incorporation and second amended and restated bylaws could make a merger, tender offer or proxy contest more
difficult, limit attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management and depress the market price of our common stock.

In addition to the Advent Funds’ beneficial ownership of a substantial percentage of our common stock, provisions in our Certificate of Incorporation and second amended and
restated bylaws (the “Bylaws”) and Delaware law could make it harder for a third party to acquire us, even if doing so might be beneficial to our stockholders, and for
stockholders to elect directors that are not nominated by the current members of our Board of Directors or take other corporate actions, including effecting changes in our
management. These provisions include a classified board of directors and the ability of our Board of Directors to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval that could
be used to dilute a potential hostile acquirer. Our Certificate of Incorporation also imposes some restrictions on mergers and other business combinations between us and any
holder of 15% or more of our outstanding common stock other than the Advent Funds. As a result, stockholders may lose their ability to sell their stock for a price in excess of
the prevailing market price due to these protective measures, and efforts by stockholders to change the direction or management of the company may be unsuccessful.

We are a “controlled company” within the meaning of the corporate governance standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (“Nasdaq”). As a result, we qualify for, and
rely on, exemptions from certain corporate governance standards.

The Advent Funds collectively control a majority of the voting power of shares eligible to vote in the election of our directors. Because more than 50% of the voting power in
the election of our directors is held by an individual, group or another company, we are a “controlled company” within the meaning of the Nasdaq corporate governance
standards. As a controlled company, we may elect not to comply with certain corporate governance requirements, including the requirements that:

• a majority of our Board of Directors consists of “independent directors,” as defined under the Nasdaq corporate governance standards;

• our Board of Directors has a compensation committee that is composed entirely of independent directors with a written charter addressing the committee’s purpose and
responsibilities; and

• our Board of Directors has a nominating and corporate governance committee that is composed entirely of independent directors with a written charter addressing the
committee’s purpose and responsibilities.

We rely on these exemptions and therefore do not expect that the majority of our directors will be independent or that the compensation and nominating and corporate
governance committees of our Board of Directors will consist entirely of independent directors. Accordingly, investors will not have the same protections afforded to
stockholders of companies that are subject to all of the Nasdaq corporate governance requirements.

If securities or industry analysts cease to publish research, or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research, about our business, the price of our common stock and trading
volume could decline.
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The trading market for our common stock is influenced in part by the research and reports that securities or industry analysts publish about us or our business, our market and
our competitors. We do not have any control over these analysts. If industry analysts cease coverage of us, downgrade our common stock or publish inaccurate or unfavorable
research about our business, our common stock price could decline.

We do not intend to pay dividends for the foreseeable future.

We intend to retain any future earnings to finance the operation and expansion of our business, and we do not expect to declare or pay any dividends to holders of our common
stock in the foreseeable future. Moreover, the terms of the Tax Receivable Agreement and our 2022 Credit Agreement restrict our ability to pay dividends, and any additional
debt we may incur in the future may include similar restrictions. Any determination to pay dividends in the future will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors.
Accordingly, stockholders must rely on sales of their common stock after price appreciation, which may never occur, as the only way to realize any future gains on their
investment.

Our Certificate of Incorporation designates specific courts as the sole and exclusive forum for certain claims or causes of action that may be brought by our stockholders,
which could discourage lawsuits against us and our directors and officers.

Our Certificate of Incorporation provides that (A), subject to limited exceptions, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (or, if, and only if, the Court of Chancery of the
State of Delaware dismisses a Covered Claim (as defined below) for lack of subject matter jurisdiction, any other state or federal court in the State of Delaware that does have
subject matter jurisdiction) will, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, be the sole and exclusive forum for the following types of claims: (i) any derivative claim
brought in the right of the Company, (ii) any claim asserting a breach of a fiduciary duty to the Company or the Company’s stockholders owed by any current or former
director, officer or other employee or stockholder of the Company, (iii) any claim against the Company arising pursuant to any provision of the Delaware General Corporation
Law, our Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws, (iv) any claim to interpret, apply, enforce or determine the validity of our Certificate of Incorporation or our Bylaws, (v) any
claim against the Company governed by the internal affairs doctrine, and (vi) any other claim, not subject to exclusive federal jurisdiction and not asserting a cause of action
arising under the Securities Act, brought in any action asserting one or more of the claims specified in clauses (A)(i) through (v) herein above; and (B) the federal district courts
of the U.S. will be the exclusive forum for resolving any complaint asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act. This provision would not apply to claims
brought to enforce a duty or liability created by the Exchange Act.

Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in the shares of capital stock of the Company will be deemed to have notice of and consented to these
choice of forum provisions and waived any argument relating to the inconvenience of the forums.

The choice of forum provisions may limit a stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for disputes with us or any of our directors, officers,
other employees or stockholders, which may discourage lawsuits with respect to such claims. Alternatively, if a court were to find the choice of forum provisions contained in
our Certificate of Incorporation to be inapplicable or unenforceable in respect to an action brought against us, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such
action in such other jurisdictions.

General Risks

A general economic downturn or disruption in business conditions may affect our business, including consumer purchases of discretionary items and the financial
strength of our customers and consumers, which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

The general level of consumer spending is affected by a number of factors, including general economic conditions, inflation, interest rates, energy costs and consumer
confidence generally, all of which are beyond our control. Consumer purchases of discretionary items tend to decline during recessionary periods, periods of high inflation and
otherwise weak economic environments, when disposable income is lower, which may impact sales of our products. The U.S. experienced rising interest rates and heightened
inflationary pressures during 2022 and 2023, which we believe led to a shift in consumer spending habits and confidence and adversely affected our business. As global
economic conditions continue to be volatile and economic uncertainty remains, trends in consumer discretionary spending also remains unpredictable and subject to reductions
due to credit constraints and uncertainties about the future, among other factors. A further weakening in the global macro-environment may lead to additional pressure on
consumer demand and customer inventory reductions.

We may extend credit to a customer based on an evaluation of its financial condition, usually without requiring collateral. However, the financial difficulties of a customer
could cause us to curtail or eliminate business with them. We may also assume more credit risk relating to the receivables from that customer. Our inability to collect
receivables from our largest customers or
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from a group of customers would have an adverse effect on our business. If any of our customers were to liquidate, we would incur additional costs if we choose to purchase the
customer’s inventory of our products to protect brand equity.

Disruptions in local or global business conditions from events such as pandemics or other health issues, geo-political or local conflicts, supply chain disruptions, political
developments, civil unrest, terrorist attacks, adverse weather conditions, climate changes or seismic events can have a short-term and, sometimes, long-term impact on
consumer spending, which in turn could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Moreover, a downturn in the economies of, or continuing
weak economic environments in, the countries where we sell our products or a disruption of business conditions in those countries could adversely affect consumer confidence,
the financial strength of our distributors and retailers and, in turn, our sales and profitability.

Volatility in the financial markets and a related economic downturn in key markets or markets generally throughout the world have had, and in the future could have, an adverse
effect on our business. We may need or choose to seek additional financing to operate or expand our business, and deterioration in global financial markets or an adverse
change in our credit ratings could make future financing difficult or more expensive.

Our quarterly results of operations may fluctuate, and if our operating and financial performance in any given period does not meet the guidance that we have provided to
the public or the expectations of our investors and securities analysts, the trading price of our common stock may decline.

Our quarterly results of operations may fluctuate for a variety of reasons, including those described elsewhere in this “Risk Factors” section, many of which are beyond our
control. Our quarterly results may fall below the guidance that we have provided to the public or the expectations of our investors and securities analysts, which has caused and,
in the future, may cause us to reissue our guidance or the trading price of our common stock to decline. In addition, our quarterly results of operations have varied historically,
and they may vary in the future. Therefore, period-to-period comparisons of our results of operations may not be meaningful. Investors should not rely on the results of one
quarter as an indication of future performance.

We could be subject to changes in our tax rates, the adoption of new U.S. or international tax legislation or exposure to additional tax liabilities, which could have a
material and adverse effect on our operating results, cash flows and financial condition.

We are subject to income taxes in the U.S. and the U.K., where our subsidiary Olaplex UK Limited is organized. Tax laws, regulations, administrative practices and
interpretations in the U.S. or other jurisdictions may be subject to change, with or without notice, due to economic, political and other conditions, which may materially affect
our operating results and financial conditions. As a result, significant judgment is required in evaluating and estimating our provision for income taxes. Our future effective tax
rates could be affected by numerous factors, such as intercompany transactions, changes in our business operations, acquisitions and dispositions, entry into new markets, the
amount of our earnings and where earned, losses incurred in jurisdictions, the inability to realize tax benefits, changes in foreign currency exchange rates, changes in our stock
price, uncertain tax positions, allocation and apportionment of state taxes, changes in our deferred tax assets and liabilities and their valuation.

In addition, as a U.S. company doing business internationally, we may be subject to additional obligations to collect and remit indirect taxes, and we may be subject to tax
liability for past sales, which could harm our business. State, local and foreign jurisdictions have differing rules and regulations governing sales, use, value added, goods and
services, and other taxes, and these rules and regulations are subject to varying interpretations that may change over time. As a result, we could face the possibility of tax
assessments and audits, and our liability for these taxes and associated penalties could exceed our original estimates. A successful assertion that we should be collecting
additional sales, use, value added, goods and services or other taxes in those jurisdictions where we have not historically done so and do not accrue for such taxes could result
in substantial tax liabilities and related penalties for past sales.

We are also subject to examination by tax authorities, including state revenue agencies and foreign governments. While we regularly assess the likelihood of favorable or
unfavorable outcomes resulting from examinations by tax authorities to determine the adequacy of our tax accruals, the actual outcome resulting from these examinations may
materially affect our operating results and financial condition.

Our business could be negatively impacted by corporate citizenship and sustainability matters.

There is an increased focus from certain investors, customers, consumers, employees and other stakeholders concerning corporate citizenship and sustainability matters,
including a desire for increased and enhanced public disclosure on such matters by companies. If our corporate citizenship and sustainability practices do not meet stakeholder
expectations and standards, which continue to evolve, our brand and reputation may be negatively impacted, which may affect our sales and financial condition. From time to
time, we may announce certain initiatives or goals regarding these matters or determine to release public disclosure
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with respect thereof. We could fail, or be perceived to fail, in our achievement of such initiatives or goals, or we could fail in accurately or adequately reporting our progress on
such initiatives and goals. In addition, we could be criticized for the scope of such initiatives or goals or be perceived as not acting responsibly in connection with these matters.
Adverse incidents related to corporate citizenship and sustainability matters could have an adverse effect on our business.

If we pursue acquisitions, such acquisitions may expose us to additional risks.

We may review acquisition and strategic investment opportunities to expand our current product offerings and distribution channels, increase the size and geographic scope of
our operations or otherwise offer growth and operating efficiency opportunities. The pursuit of such opportunities may divert the attention of management and cause us to incur
various costs and expenses in identifying, investigating and pursuing suitable opportunities, whether or not they are consummated. There can be no assurance that we will be
able to identify suitable candidates, consummate these transactions on favorable terms or successfully integrate these businesses. We may not achieve the anticipated benefits of
any such opportunities.

We are dependent on entities performing outsourced functions.

As part of our long-term strategy, we outsource certain functions or parts of functions that can be performed more effectively by external service providers. These include
certain information technology, e-commerce, logistics, finance and human resource functions. The failure of one or more entities to provide the expected services on a timely
basis, at the prices we expect and in compliance with our performance standards and expectations, including with respect to data privacy and security, may have an adverse
effect on our business. In addition, any transition of systems to a new external service provider could have an adverse effect on our business.

Our business and results of operations could be adversely affected by natural disasters, public health crises, political crises or other catastrophic events.

Our finished products are primarily manufactured and fulfilled by companies located in Southern California, an area which has a history of earthquakes, and are thus vulnerable
to damage. Natural disasters, such as earthquakes, wildfires, hurricanes, tornadoes, floods and other adverse weather and climate conditions; unforeseen public health crises,
such as epidemics and pandemics; political crises, such as terrorist attacks, war and other political instability, including the current conflicts between Russia and Ukraine and in
the Middle East; or other catastrophic events and any supply chain disruptions resulting therefrom, whether occurring in the U.S. or internationally, could disrupt our operations
or the operations of one or more of our third-party providers or vendors. In particular, these types of events could impact our supply chain, including the ability of third parties
to manufacture and ship product components and ship finished products to customers and consumers from or to the impacted region. In addition, these types of events could
negatively impact consumer spending in the impacted regions. There is uncertainty regarding the future impacts of any lingering effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and any
such impacts on our cash flow, business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects cannot be predicted and are generally outside our control. To the extent any of
these events occur, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.

If we fail to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting and effective disclosure controls and procedures, we may not be able to accurately report our
financial results in a timely manner or prevent fraud, which may adversely affect investor confidence in our company.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, our management is required to report on, and our independent registered public accounting firm is
required to attest to, the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting in each annual report on Form 10-K. This assessment includes disclosure of any material
weakness identified by our management or our independent registered public accounting firm in our internal control over financial reporting. In addition, we are required to
comply with the SEC’s rules implementing Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which requires management to certify financial and other information in our quarterly and
annual reports, and we are required to disclose significant changes made in our internal control over financial reporting on a quarterly basis. To comply with these requirements,
we may need to undertake various actions and to develop, implement and test additional processes and other controls. Testing and maintaining internal controls can divert our
management’s attention from other matters related to the operation of our business.

If we fail to maintain proper and effective internal controls, or are unable to comply with the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act in a timely manner or
assert that our internal control over financial reporting is effective, or if our independent registered public accounting firm is unable to express an unqualified opinion as to the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting in future periods, our ability to produce accurate and timely financial statements could be impaired and investors
may lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, which could harm our operating results, harm our ability to operate our business and reduce the
trading price of our stock.

We may be liable for the failure of our PEOs to comply with their obligations under applicable law.
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We utilize the services of PEOs to support certain of our employment and employee benefits functions. Under the terms of our arrangements, the PEOs are the employer of
record for our U.S. personnel and, depending on the jurisdiction, may be responsible for administering payroll, including tax withholding, and providing health insurance or
other employee benefits to our employees. If any of our PEOs fails to comply with applicable laws or its obligations under its agreement with us, we could be liable for such
violations. The indemnification provisions of our agreements with the PEOs, if applicable, may not be sufficient to insulate us from those liabilities. For example, we could,
under certain circumstances, be held liable for a failure by any of our PEOs to pay employer-side taxes arising from payments to our employees or a failure by a PEO to
withhold and remit employee-side taxes arising from such payments. We also could, under certain circumstances, be held liable for a failure by a PEO to appropriately pay our
employees. In such a case, our potential liability could be significant and adversely affect our business. Furthermore, if any of our PEOs does not efficiently administer our
employee benefits, our relationship with our employees could be damaged.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY

Information technology supports all aspects of our business, including operations, marketing, sales, order processing, production and distribution networks, retail and
professional hairstylist customer experience, consumer experience, finance, business intelligence, and product development. We continue to maintain and enhance our
information technology systems, cybersecurity infrastructure and customer and consumer experiences in alignment with our long-term strategy. An increasing portion of our
global information technology infrastructure is cloud-based and in partnership with industry-leading service providers. We believe this approach enables a high-performance
platform to support current and future requirements and enhances our scale and flexibility to respond to the demands of the business by leveraging advanced and leading-edge
technologies. We recognize that technology presents opportunities to build a competitive advantage, and we continue to invest in new capabilities across various aspects of our
business. Such efforts, however, subject us to increased cyber risk, as these investments are subject to cyberattacks, business disruptions and other risks described in “Risk
Factors – Risks Related to Information Technology and Cybersecurity.”

We have adopted processes designed to identify, assess and manage material risks from cybersecurity threats. As part of our company-wide enterprise risk management process,
we conduct a comprehensive annual enterprise risk assessment that includes evaluation of cybersecurity risks and development of risk mitigation response plans. Company
management reviews our enterprise risk assessment with our Audit Committee and our Board of Directors and provides periodic updates with respect to our risk mitigation
response plans to our Audit Committee and our Board of Directors. We have established internal policies and procedures for cybersecurity risk management and incident
response management that are based on industry standard cybersecurity frameworks, and we provide regular training to our employees regarding evolving cybersecurity threats
and risk management.

Our cybersecurity team is primarily responsible for identifying, evaluating and responding to risks from cybersecurity threats. Our cybersecurity team is led by our Senior Vice
President, Information Technology, who has an undergraduate degree in electronic and communications engineering and over 20 years of experience in information technology,
including cybersecurity risk management. Our cybersecurity team reviews and assesses our cybersecurity profile against internal and external cybersecurity frameworks that are
aligned with industry standards on an ongoing basis and conducts ongoing security management internally and through the engagement of third-party vendors and consultants.
In addition, our cybersecurity team periodically engages independent third parties to conduct security assessments and internal and external penetration tests. Our cybersecurity
team seeks to detect potential cybersecurity incidents through technical safeguards such as automatic detection systems, as well as through our policies and procedures that
require internal and external notification of cybersecurity incidents. When a cybersecurity incident occurs, our cybersecurity team implements our incident management
procedures and convenes an incident response team consisting of members of our IT team and other company representatives as appropriate based on the nature of the incident.
The incident response team determines appropriate containment, eradication and recovery procedures based on the type of incident and recommends any corrective actions to
the cybersecurity team following the resolution of the cybersecurity incident. Cybersecurity incidents are reported to our Board of Directors, our Audit Committee or its
Information Security Subcommittee as appropriate based on the nature of the incident.

We rely on the information systems of third-party vendors, including our cloud vendors, for various functions of our business, including manufacturing, sourcing, distribution,
sales and marketing. We engage a third-party risk management software to oversee and identify the risks from cybersecurity threats associated with relevant vendors, based on
the services such vendors provide and the information to which they have access. In addition, as part of our new vendor onboarding procedures, we review proposed new
vendors’ cybersecurity and data protection practices and collaborate with such vendors to align their cybersecurity platforms with our expectations.
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Our Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in its oversight of our policies, procedures and practices with respect to risk management and mitigation, including risks
related to information security, cybersecurity, and data privacy and protection. The Audit Committee has delegated oversight of risks related to information security,
cybersecurity, and data privacy and protection to its Information Security Subcommittee, which meets at least twice a year with our Senior Vice President, Information
Technology and other members of our IT department to discuss our cybersecurity profile and related risks, as well as to discuss updates on relevant developments in the
cybersecurity threat environment. The Information Security Subcommittee reports to the Audit Committee following each subcommittee meeting, and the Audit Committee
reports to our Board of Directors.

Although we have experienced cybersecurity incidents in the past, as of the date of this report, cybersecurity threats, including as a result of any previous cybersecurity
incidents, have not materially affected the Company, including its business strategy, results of operations or financial condition. Despite our continuing efforts, our
cybersecurity platform may not prevent breaches or breakdowns of our or our third-party service providers’ information technology systems, particularly in the face of
continually evolving cybersecurity threats and increasingly sophisticated threat actors. A cybersecurity incident may materially affect our business, results of operations or
financial condition, including where such an incident results in reputational, competitive or business harm or damage to our brand, lost sales, reduced demand, loss of
intellectual property rights, significant costs or the Company being subject to government investigations, litigation, fines or damages. For more information, see “Risk Factors –
Risks Related to Information Technology and Cybersecurity.”

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We do not own any real property. We lease one facility of approximately 11,000 square feet in New York that we use for research and development activities. The lease term for
this facility ends on September 30, 2030. Our employees work remotely, from home or at shared co-working office spaces. As of January 2024, we also lease one office space
of approximately 10,000 square feet in New York, which will provide meeting space and office space for employees who choose to collaborate in person from time to time. The
lease term for this office space ends on June 14, 2026. We believe these arrangements support our current needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We have, and may in the future, from time to time, become involved in litigation or other legal proceedings incidental to our business, including litigation related to intellectual
property, regulatory matters, contract, advertising and other consumer claims. In addition, we believe that protecting our intellectual property is essential to our business and we
have in the past, and may in the future, become involved in proceedings to enforce our rights. Regardless of outcome, litigation (including the litigation referenced below) can
have an adverse impact on our reputation, financial condition and business, including by utilizing our resources and potentially diverting the attention of our management from
the operation of our business.

For detail on certain legal proceedings, see “Note 14 - Contingencies - Pending Legal Proceedings” included in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in
Part II, Item 8. Financial Statements of this Annual Report.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.
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PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Common Stock Market Prices

Shares of our common stock have traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol “OLPX” since September 30, 2021. Prior to that date, there was no market for
our common stock.

Holders

As of February 23, 2024, there were 24 registered holders of our common stock. The actual number of record holders of our common stock is based upon the actual number of
holders registered on the books of the Company as of such date and does not include holders of shares that are held in street name by brokers or other nominees.

Dividends

We do not currently anticipate paying any dividends on our common stock and currently expect to retain all future earnings for use in the operation and expansion of our
business. We may reevaluate our dividend policy in future. The declaration, amount and payment of any future dividends on our common stock will be at the sole discretion of
our Board of Directors, which may take into account general and economic conditions, our financial condition and results of operations, our available cash and current and
anticipated cash needs, capital requirements, contractual, legal, tax and regulatory restrictions and implications on the payment of dividends by us to our stockholders or by our
subsidiaries to us, including restrictions under our 2022 Credit Agreement, our obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement and other indebtedness we may incur, and such
other factors as our Board of Directors may deem relevant. If we elect to pay such dividends in the future, we may reduce or discontinue entirely the payment of such dividends
at any time.

Stock Performance Graph

This performance graph shall not be deemed “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the SEC for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act or otherwise subject to the
liabilities under that Section, and shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any of our filings under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act.

The following graph and accompanying table compare the total stockholder return on the Company’s common stock with the cumulative total return of the Nasdaq Composite
and the S&P Consumer Staples Index. This graph and table (i) cover the period from September 30, 2021 (the date of the initial listing of our common stock on the Nasdaq
Global Select Market) to December 31, 2023 on a quarterly basis, (ii) assume a $100 investment on September 30, 2021, and (iii) assume reinvestment of dividends, if any.
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Company/Index 09/30/2021 12/31/2021 03/31/2022 06/30/2022 09/30/2022 12/31/2022 03/31/2023 06/30/2023 09/30/2023 12/31/2023
Olaplex Holdings,
Inc. $ 100.00  $ 118.90  $ 63.80  $ 57.51  $ 38.98  $ 21.27  $ 17.43  $ 15.18  $ 7.96  $ 10.37 
NASDAQ
Composite $ 100.00  $ 108.45  $ 98.42  $ 76.33  $ 73.19  $ 72.44  $ 84.59  $ 95.43  $ 91.49  $ 103.89 
S&P Consumer
Staples $ 100.00  $ 112.86  $ 110.76  $ 104.96  $ 97.37  $ 109.03  $ 109.21  $ 108.99  $ 101.79  $ 106.68 

ITEM 6. RESERVED
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ITEM 7 - MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related
notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report. Some of the information contained in this discussion and analysis, including information with respect to our plans and strategy
for our business, includes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ materially from management’s expectations as a result
of various factors. Factors that could cause or contribute to these differences include, but are not limited to, those identified below and those discussed in the “Special Note
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” section and in the “Risk Factors” section in this Annual Report.

Company Overview

OLAPLEX is an innovative, science-enabled, technology-driven beauty company. Since our inception in 2014, we have focused on delivering effective, patent-protected and
proven performance in the prestige hair care category.

OLAPLEX disrupted and revolutionized the prestige hair care category by creating the bond-building space in 2014. We have grown from an initial assortment of three
products sold exclusively through the professional channel to a broader suite of products offered through the professional, specialty retail and Direct to Consumer (“DTC”)
channels that have been strategically developed to address three key uses: treatment, maintenance and protection. Our patent-protected bond-building technology relinks
disulfide bonds in human hair that are destroyed via chemical, thermal, mechanical, environmental and aging processes. Our current product portfolio comprises seventeen
unique, complementary products, specifically developed to provide a holistic regimen for hair health.

Additionally, we recently expanded into our first hair care adjacent market with LASHBOND  Building Serum, our eyelash enhancing serum formulated to promote the
appearance of thicker, longer, stronger, full volume lashes.

The strength of our business model and ability to scale have created a compelling financial profile. We have developed a synergistic omnichannel model that leverages the
strength of each of our channels and our strong digital capabilities that we apply across our sales platforms. Our professional channel serves as the foundation for our brand.
Through this channel, professional hairstylists introduce consumers to our products and, we believe, influence consumer purchasing decisions. Our specialty retail channel
works to increase awareness of, and education for, our products and expand consumer penetration. Our DTC channel, comprised of Olaplex.com and sales through third-party
e-commerce platforms, also provides us with the opportunity to engage directly with our consumers to provide powerful feedback that drives decisions we make around new
product development.

Strategic Pillars

We are focused on executing against our key strategic pillars that we believe will support our long-term growth. These include igniting our global brand, disrupting with
innovation, amplifying channel coverage and charting new geographies. These key strategic pillars are supported by our efforts to build capabilities and infrastructure that we
believe will enable our aspirations.

Igniting our Global Brand

We believe we have built one of the most powerful brands in the prestige hair care category. We plan to continue growing awareness of our global brand, in an effort to deepen
connections with existing customers as well as reach new audiences. We will also continue to invest in enhancing our brand equity. Our marketing model remains focused on
implementing high return on investment, performance marketing activities aimed at fueling growth. Key levers of our marketing include organic social media activations,
strategic paid media, education and training regarding our brand, community engagement with our professional hairstylists, influencer partnerships, and retailer activations such
as sampling and in-store events.

Disrupting with Innovation

We believe we have a strong pipeline of disruptive innovation that leverages our science-based technology and patented Bis-amino ingredient. We plan to launch two-to-four
products annually over the next three years. To support this pipeline, we intend to continue to invest in research and development to strengthen our internal innovation
capabilities. We recently entered into our first hair care adjacent category and remain excited about the opportunity to further grow where our technology can serve as a
foundation for entry that we believe is supported by consumer trust in our brand.

Amplifying Channel Coverage

In our professional channel, we have undertaken efforts to support and reassert strong relationships with the professional hairstylist community and maintain brand awareness
by increasing our field support efforts, deepening partnerships with distributors and customers, and refreshing educational content. We are also pursuing opportunities to further
penetrate premium and prestige salons. In specialty retail, we are enhancing visual merchandising in stores, investing in brand store pages online and

®
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deploying targeted communications intended to enable new customer acquisition. For our DTC business, we are evolving the digital experiences on Olaplex.com and third
party e-commerce websites. On Olaplex.com, we expect to continue to invest in site enhancements and more advanced personalization efforts.

Charting New Geographies

We believe there is substantial opportunity to grow globally. Our priority international regions are currently key markets in Europe and Asia. Across Europe and other regions,
we aim to implement our business model by first establishing a strong professional channel and then complementing that channel through entry into specialty retail and DTC.
In Asia, we intend to partner with distributors in the region that will support omni-channel distribution and sales for our brand.

Supporting our Strategic Pillars

To enable these key growth pillars, we intend to continue to build our capabilities and infrastructure. These efforts extend across our organization, including focusing on
cultivating top talent and building a strong corporate culture, evolving our operational capabilities as we scale, creating a strong financial foundation for growth, and ensuring
that we have financial structure, technology and data to support our growth.

Business Environment & Trends

We continue to monitor the effects of the global macro-economic environment, including the risk of recession, inflationary pressures, competitive products and discounting,
currency volatility, high interest rates, social and political issues, geopolitical tensions and regulatory matters. We also are mindful of inflationary pressures on our consumers,
and are monitoring the impact that increasing inflationary pressures may have on consumer spending and preferences and inventory rebalancing at our customers in an
increasingly competitive industry.

Competition in the beauty industry is based on a variety of factors, including innovation, product efficacy, accessible pricing, brand recognition and loyalty, service to the
consumer, promotional activities, advertising, special events, new product introductions, e-commerce initiatives, sustainability and other activities. We have seen increased
competitive activity including discounting in the prestige hair care category, which may continue in a heightened inflationary environment. We believe we have a well-
recognized and strong reputation in our core markets and that the quality and performance of our products, our emphasis on innovation, and our engagement with our
professional and consumer communities position us to compete effectively.

2023 Financial Summary

• Net sales decreased 34.9% to $458.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 from $704.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2022. For the year ended
December 31, 2023, net sales in our professional channel decreased 40.1%, our specialty retail channel decreased 42.6%, and our DTC channel decreased 15.0%, in
each case as compared to the year ended December 31, 2022.

• Gross profit margin decreased to 69.5% for the year ended December 31, 2023 from 73.8% for the year ended December 31, 2022, primarily as a result of increased
promotional allowance, an increased reserve for product obsolescence, and higher input costs for raw materials.

• Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2023 increased by 35.6%, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2022, primarily as a result of increased
sales and marketing expense, higher payroll due to workforce expansion, and higher professional fees, partially offset by lower distribution and fulfillment costs for
the year ended December 31, 2023.

• Operating income decreased to $108.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 from $364.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2022.

• Net income decreased to $61.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 from $244.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2022.
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Results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021

Set forth below are our results of operations for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 (“fiscal year 2023”) versus our fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 (“fiscal year
2022”). For discussion of our results of operations for our fiscal year 2022 versus our fiscal year ended December 31, 2021, see “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year 2022, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC”) on February 28, 2023.

The following table sets forth our consolidated statements of operations data for each of the periods presented:

2023 2022 2021

(in thousands) % of Net
sales (in thousands) % of Net

sales (in thousands) % of Net
sales

Net sales $ 458,300  100.0 % $ 704,274  100.0 % $ 598,365  100.0 %
Cost of sales:

Cost of product (excluding amortization) 131,323  28.7  177,221  25.2  116,554  19.5 
Amortization of patented formulations 8,345  1.8  7,500  1.1  7,989  1.3 

Total cost of sales 139,668  30.5  184,721  26.2  124,543  20.8 
Gross profit 318,632  69.5  519,553  73.8  473,822  79.2 
Operating expenses:

Selling, general, and administrative 168,942  36.9  113,877  16.2  98,878  16.5 
Amortization of other intangible assets 41,468  9.0  41,282  5.9  40,790  6.8 

Total operating expenses 210,410  45.9  155,159  22.0  139,668  23.3 
Operating income 108,222  23.6  364,394  51.7  334,154  55.8 
Interest expense (57,954) (12.6) (43,953) (6.2) (61,148) (10.2)
Interest income 18,828  4.1  2,775  0.4  —  — 
Other income (expense), net

Loss on extinguishment of debt —  —  (18,803) (2.7) —  — 
Tax receivable agreement liability adjustment 7,404  1.6  3,084  0.4  3,615  0.6 
Other income (expense), net 220  —  (2,256) (0.3) (1,012) (0.2)
Total other income (expense), net 7,624  1.7  (17,975) (2.6) 2,603  0.4 

Income before provision for income taxes 76,720  16.7  305,241  43.3  275,609  46.1 
Income tax provision 15,133  3.3  61,169  8.7  54,825  9.2 

Net income $ 61,587  13.4  $ 244,072  34.7  $ 220,784  36.9 
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Fiscal year 2023 compared to fiscal year 2022:

Net Sales

We distribute products in the U.S. and internationally through professional distributors in salons, directly to retailers for sale in their physical stores and e-commerce sites, and
DTC through sales to third party e-commerce customers and through our Olaplex.com websites. As such, our three business channels consist of professional, specialty retail
and DTC as follows:

(in thousands) For the Year Ended December 31,
2023 2022 $ Change % Change

Net sales by Channel:
Professional $ 180,084  $ 300,472  $ (120,388) (40.1)%
Specialty retail 135,079  235,310  (100,231) (42.6)%
DTC 143,137  168,492  (25,355) (15.0)%

Total net sales $ 458,300  $ 704,274  $ (245,974) (34.9)%

Total net sales declined 34.9% for the year ended December 31, 2023 compared to the same period in 2022, primarily attributed to a lower level of demand and customer
inventory rebalancing, particularly within the professional and specialty retail channels. During fiscal year 2023, the Company lapped approximately $22 million of net sales
impact from the introduction of certain 1-Liter size offerings and approximately $10 million net sales impact of inventory pipeline to a key specialty retail customer, compared
to the same period in 2022. These impacts were partially offset by our launches of LASHBOND  Building Serum, No. 4D Clean Volume Detox Dry Shampoo, Olaplex
Volumizing Blow Dry Mist, No. 5P Blonde Enhancer™ Toning Conditioner, Jumbo No. 4P Blonde Enhancer™ Toning Shampoo and Jumbo No. 5P Blonde Enhancer™ Toning
Conditioner, as well as the impact of new customers within each channel. Net sales declined primarily in the United States, the United Kingdom, and Canada, partially offset by
increases in the Middle East and in Latin America.

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

(in thousands) For the Year Ended December 31,
$ Change % Change2023 2022

Cost of sales $ 139,668  $ 184,721  $ (45,053) (24.4)%
Gross profit $ 318,632  $ 519,553  $ (200,921) (38.7)%

Our cost of sales decreased primarily due to declining product sales for the year ended December 31, 2023. The Company also recorded write-off and disposal expenses of $6.2
million for the same period in 2022 as a result of regulation changes in the European Union. These decreases were partially offset by a $15.2 million inventory obsolescence
reserve recorded during the year ended December 31, 2023, and increases in cost of sales resulting from inflationary pressures.

As a result of the activity described above regarding Net sales and Cost of sales, our gross profit margin decreased from 73.8% for the year ended December 31, 2022 to 69.5%
for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Operating Expenses

(in thousands) For the Year Ended December 31,
2023 2022 $ Change % Change

Selling, general, and administrative expenses $ 168,942  $ 113,877  $ 55,065  48.4 %

Amortization of other intangible assets 41,468  41,282  186  0.5 %
Total operating expenses $ 210,410  $ 155,159  $ 55,251  35.6 %

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased primarily due to an increase of $37.1  million in investments in sales and marketing, $8.7  million related to the
combination of a one-time former distributor payment, professional expenses, and legal settlement costs, payroll expenses of $6.1 million driven by workforce expansion, $2.9
million of CEO transition and other organizational realignment costs, and increased employee benefit costs of $2.7 million. These increases were partially offset by a

® ®

40



Table of Contents

$3.1 million decrease in distribution and fulfillment costs related to the decrease in product sales volume for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Interest Expense, Net

(in thousands) For the Year Ended December 31,
2023 2022 $ Change % Change

Interest expense $ (57,954) $ (43,953) $ (14,001) 31.9 %
Interest income 18,828  2,775  $ 16,053  578.4 %

Interest expense, net (39,126) (41,178) 2,052  (5.0)%

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2023 increased as compared to the previous year due to an increase in interest rates, which were partially offset by benefits
from the interest rate cap. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources Requirements – Credit Facility” for additional information on our outstanding debt.

Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2023 increased as compared to the previous year due to increasing interest rates and additional investments in highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less.

Other Income (Expense), Net

(in thousands) For the Year Ended December 31,
2023 2022 $ Change % Change

Loss on extinguishment of debt $ —  $ (18,803) $ 18,803  (100.0)%
Tax receivable agreement liability adjustment 7,404  3,084  4,320  140.1 %
Other income (expense), net 220  (2,256) 2,476  (109.8)%

Total other income (expense) , net $ 7,624  $ (17,975) $ 25,599  (142.4)%

For the year ended December 31, 2023, total other income (expense), net increased $25.6 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2022, primarily due to the $18.8
million loss on extinguishment of debt associated with our 2020 Credit Agreement debt refinancing that occurred in 2022. Additionally, during the fourth quarter of 2023, we
recognized other income of $7.4 million for a reduction to the liability in respect of the Tax Receivable Agreement, resulting primarily from an update to the blended state
income tax rate and a decrease in the effective federal tax rate used to measure the obligation, compared to $3.1 million recognized in the fourth quarter of 2022. The decrease
in the effective federal tax rate was due to an increase in the portion of federal taxable income that is eligible for the foreign derived intangible income (“FDII”) deduction.
Other income, net increased primarily due to a decrease in foreign currency transaction losses driven by the performance of the U.S. dollar.

Income Tax Provision

(in thousands) For the Year Ended December 31,
2023 2022 $ Change % Change

Income tax provision $ 15,133  $ 61,169  $ (46,036) (75.3)%

The Company’s effective tax rate was 19.7% for the year ended December 31, 2023, as compared to 20.0% for the year ended December 31, 2022. The Company’s effective tax
rate for the year ended December 31, 2023 was lower than the statutory tax rate of 21% primarily due to the FDII deduction and the non-taxable income associated with the Tax
Receivable Agreement, partially offset by the effect of state and local income taxes. For the year ended December 31, 2022 the effective tax rate was lower than the U.S. federal
statutory tax rate primarily due to the FDII deduction and excess tax benefits associated with share-based compensation, partially offset by the effect of state and local income
taxes.
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Tax Receivable Agreement

The liability under the Tax Receivable Agreement is based on current tax laws and the assumption that we and our subsidiaries will earn sufficient taxable income to realize the
full tax benefits subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement. Updates to our blended state tax rate and allocation of U.S. to foreign income may impact the established liability and
changes would be recorded to other (expense) income in the period we made the determination. We expect that future payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement relating to
the Pre-IPO Tax Assets could aggregate to $198.2  million over the 12-year remaining period under the Tax Receivable Agreement. Payments under the Tax Receivable
Agreement are not conditioned upon the Pre-IPO Stockholders’ continued ownership of equity in the Company. During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company made
a payment to the Pre-IPO Stockholders of $16.6 million as required pursuant to the terms of the Tax Receivable Agreement. The remaining Tax Receivable Agreement payment
obligation as of December 31, 2023 is recorded as $198.2 million, of which $185.5 million was recorded in long term liabilities and $12.7 million was recorded in current
liabilities.

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview

Our primary recurring source of cash is the collection of proceeds from the sale of our products to our customers, including cash periodically collected in advance of delivery or
performance.

Our primary use of cash is for working capital and payment of our operating costs, which consist primarily of employee-related expenses as well as general operating expenses
for marketing, fulfillment costs of customer orders, overhead costs, innovation, capital expenditures and debt servicing. We also utilize cash for strategic investments.
Fluctuations in working capital are primarily caused by customer demand of our product, timing of when a retailer rearranges or restocks our products, timing of inventory
purchases, and timing of our payables and expenses. Capital expenditures typically vary and are currently limited, and future capital expenditure requirements depend on
strategic initiatives selected for the fiscal year, including investments in infrastructure, expansion into new national and international distributors and expansion of our customer
base.

A considerable portion of our operating income is related to sales to customers outside of the U.S.; however, the majority of our bank deposits are held within the U.S.

As of December 31, 2023, we had $466.4 million of cash and cash equivalents. In addition, as of December 31, 2023, we had borrowing capacity of $150.0 million under our
2022 Revolver, providing us with a liquidity position of $616.4 million plus $90.7 million of working capital excluding cash and cash equivalents for a combined $707.1
million total liquidity position.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the periods presented:
For the Year Ended December 31,

(in thousands) 2023 2022
Net cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 177,532  $ 255,324 
Investing activities (3,614) (2,682)
Financing activities (30,326) (116,222)

Net increase in cash $ 143,592  $ 136,420 

Operating Activities

The decrease in net cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2023 was primarily a result of a decrease in net income of $182.5 million, changes in
working capital and adjusting items to Operating Cash Flows to reconcile to Net income from operations, and increases in inventory obsolescence, write-offs and disposal
adjustments of $7.0 million. This was partially offset by the decrease in deferred taxes benefit of $7.4 million recorded for the year ended December 31, 2023 and the loss on
extinguishment of debt of $18.8 million related to the refinancing of the 2020 Credit Agreement recorded for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Investing Activities

The Company’s investing activities during the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 included purchases of property and equipment, patents and software.
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Financing Activities

Our financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2023 primarily consisted of cash outflows for payments on our long-term debt, payments to our pre-IPO stockholders
pursuant to our Tax Receivable Agreement, and payments related to shares withheld and retired to cover the tax withholding obligations for options exercised, partially offset
by cash received by the Company from stock option exercises. For the year ended December  31, 2022, our financing activities primarily consisted of cash outflows for
payments on our long-term debt and debt issuance costs, partially offset by proceeds from the issuance of debt pursuant to the 2022 Credit Agreement, payments of debt
issuance costs, and payments related to shares withheld and retired to cover the tax withholding obligation for SARs, partially offset by cash received by the Company from
stock option exercises.

Liquidity and Capital Resources Requirements

Based on past performance and current expectations, we believe that our cash, cash equivalents and cash generated from operations will be sufficient to meet anticipated
operating costs, required payments of principal and interest, working capital needs, ordinary course capital expenditures, and other commitments for at least the next 12 months.

If necessary, we may borrow funds under our 2022 Revolver to finance our liquidity requirements, subject to customary borrowing conditions. To the extent additional funds
are necessary to meet our long-term liquidity needs as we continue to execute our business strategy, we anticipate that they will be obtained through the incurrence of additional
indebtedness, equity financings or a combination of these potential sources of funds; however, such financing may not be available on favorable terms, or at all. Our ability to
meet our operating, investing and financing needs depends, to a significant extent, on our future financial performance, which will be subject in part to general economic,
competitive, financial, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control, including those described elsewhere in “Risk Factors” in this Annual Report. In addition to these
general economic and industry factors, the principal factors in determining whether our cash flows will be sufficient to meet our liquidity requirements will be our ability to
continue providing innovative products to our customers and consumers and manage production and our supply chain.

2022 Credit Facility

On February 23, 2022, Olaplex, Inc., an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Olaplex Holdings, Inc., together with Penelope Intermediate Corp. acting as the parent guarantor,
entered into the 2022 Credit Agreement, by and among Olaplex, Inc., Penelope Intermediate Corp, Goldman Sachs Bank USA (“Goldman Sachs”), as administrative agent (the
“Administrative Agent”), collateral agent and swingline lender, and each lender and issuing bank from time to time party thereto (the “Lenders”). The 2022 Credit Agreement
refinanced and replaced the 2020 Credit Agreement with a seven-year $675.0 million senior-secured term loan facility (the “2022 Term Loan Facility”) and a five-year $150.0
million senior-secured revolving credit facility (the “2022 Revolver”), which includes a $25.0 million letter of credit sub-facility and a $25.0 million swingline loan sub-facility.

The refinancing of the 2020 Credit Agreement resulted in recognition of loss on extinguishment of debt of $18.8 million which is comprised of $11.0 million in deferred
financing fee write off, and $7.8 million of prepayment fees for the 2020 Credit Agreement. We incurred costs directly related to the 2022 Credit Agreement of $11.9 million,
consisting primarily of lender fees of $1.7 million and third-party fees of $10.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2022. These fees were allocated between the 2022
Revolver and the 2022 Term Loan Facility. 2022 Term Loan Facility fees are capitalized and recorded as a reduction of the carrying amount of non-current debt, and 2022
Revolver fees are capitalized and recorded as Other Assets on the balance sheet.

The interest rates for all facilities under the 2022 Credit Agreement are calculated based upon the Company’s election among (a) adjusted term secured overnight financing rate
(“SOFR”) (subject to a 0.50% floor with respect to the 2022 Term Loan Facility, and a 0% floor with respect to the 2022 Revolver) plus an additional interest rate spread, (b)
with respect to a borrowing in Euros under the 2022 Revolver, a euro interbank offered rate (subject to a 0% floor) plus an additional interest rate spread, or (c) an “Alternate
Base Rate” (as defined in the 2022 Credit Agreement) (subject to a 1.50% floor with respect to the 2022 Term Loan Facility, and a 1.00% floor with respect to the 2022
Revolver) plus an additional interest rate spread.

The interest rate on outstanding amounts under the 2022 Term Loan Facility was 9.0% per annum as of December 31, 2023. We have not drawn on the 2022 Revolver as of
December 31, 2023. The 2022 Term Loan Facility is repayable in mandatory quarterly installments equal to $1.6 million, with the balance payable at maturity. The 2022 Term
Loan Facility and 2022 Revolver can each be prepaid at any time without any penalty or premium (subject to any applicable breakage costs). The 2022 Term Loan Facility is
subject to customary mandatory prepayments with respect to excess cash flow, net proceeds from non-ordinary course asset dispositions and the issuance of additional non-
permitted debt or certain refinancing debt, in each case as set forth in the 2022 Credit Agreement.

The 2022 Credit Agreement contains a number of covenants that, among other things, restrict the Company’s ability to (subject to certain exceptions) pay dividends and
distributions or repurchase its capital stock, incur additional indebtedness, create liens on assets, engage in mergers or consolidations and sell or otherwise dispose of assets.
The 2022 Credit Agreement also includes
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reporting, financial and maintenance covenants, including a springing first lien leverage ratio financial covenant. The Company was in compliance with these affirmative and
negative covenants on December 31, 2023. Substantially all the assets of the Company constitute collateral under the 2022 Credit Agreement. The maturity date of the 2022
Term Loan Facility is February 23, 2029. The maturity date of the 2022 Revolver is February 23, 2027.

As of December 31, 2023, the Company had outstanding indebtedness under the 2022 Credit Agreement of $663.2 million, of which $6.8 million was classified as current. As
of December 31, 2023, the Company had $150.0 million of available borrowing capacity under the 2022 Revolver.

On August 11, 2022, the Company entered into an interest rate cap transaction in connection with the 2022 Term Loan Facility, with a notional amount of $400.0 million, in
order to limit its exposure to potential increases in future interest rates related to the 2022 Term Loan Facility. The Company has designated the interest rate cap as a cash-flow
hedge for accounting purposes. See “Note 9. Long-Term-Debt – Interest Rate Cap Transaction” to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8. Financial
Statements of this Annual Report for additional information.

Tax Receivable Agreement

In connection with the Reorganization Transactions, we entered into the Tax Receivable Agreement that provides the Pre-IPO Stockholders the right to receive future payments
from us equal to 85% of the amount of cash savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state or local income tax that we or our subsidiaries realize (or are deemed to realize in certain
circumstances) as a result of the utilization of the “Pre-IPO Tax Assets” and the making of payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement.

Although the actual amount and timing of any payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement will vary depending upon a number of factors including the amount, character
and timing of our and our subsidiaries’ taxable income in the future and the tax rates then applicable to us and our subsidiaries, we expect the payments that will be required to
be made under the Tax Receivable Agreement will be substantial and to be funded out of working capital. See “Note 10. Income Taxes” to our Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8. Financial Statements of this Annual Report for additional information. The tax liability is calculated based on current tax laws and the
assumption that we and our subsidiaries earn sufficient taxable income to realize the full tax benefits subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement. Updates to our blended state tax
rate, allocation of U.S. versus foreign sourced income and changes in tax rules on the amortization and depreciation of assets may significantly impact the established liability
and changes would be recorded to other (expense) income in the period we made the determination. We expect that future payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement
relating to the Pre-IPO tax assets could aggregate to $198.2 million over the 12-year remaining period under the Tax Receivable Agreement. The Tax Receivable Agreement
provides that interest, at a rate equal to LIBOR (or if LIBOR ceases to be published, a replacement rate with similar characteristics) plus 3%, accrues from the due date (without
extensions) of the tax return to which the applicable tax benefits relate to the date of payment specified by the Tax Receivable Agreement. Payments under the Tax Receivable
Agreement, which began in fiscal year 2022, are not conditioned upon the Pre-IPO Stockholders maintaining a continued ownership of equity in the Company.

In connection with the Reorganization Transactions, on September 30, 2021, we recognized a liability of $232.9 million for the payments to be made under the Tax Receivable
Agreement, which is accounted for as a reduction of additional paid-in capital on our consolidated balance sheet. Changes in the utilization of the Pre-IPO Tax Assets will
impact the amount of the liability that will be paid pursuant to the Tax Receivable Agreement. Changes in the utilization of these Pre-IPO Tax Assets are recorded in income tax
expense (benefit) and any changes in the obligation under the Tax Receivable Agreement is recorded in other income (expense). During the fourth quarters of 2023, 2022 and
2021, the Company recognized other income of $7.4 million, $3.1 million and $3.6 million, respectively, for a reduction to the liability for the Tax Receivable Agreement
resulting primarily from an update to the blended state income tax rate and a decrease in the effective federal tax rate used to measure the obligation. The decrease in the
effective federal tax rate was due to an increase in the portion of federal taxable income that is eligible for the FDII deduction. The adjusted liability as of December 31, 2023 is
recorded as $198.2 million, of which $185.5 million was recorded in long term liabilities and $12.7 million was recorded in current liabilities.

For purposes of the Tax Receivable Agreement, the amount of cash savings in U.S. federal, state or local income tax that we or our subsidiaries realize (or are deemed to realize
in certain circumstances) as a result of the utilization of the Pre-IPO Tax Assets will be computed by comparing our actual U.S. federal, state and local income tax liability with
our hypothetical liability had we not been able to utilize the Pre-IPO Tax Assets, taking into account several assumptions and adjustments. Payments under the Tax Receivable
Agreement are expected to give rise to certain additional tax benefits. Any such tax benefits that we are deemed to realize under the terms of the Tax Receivable Agreement are
covered by the Tax Receivable Agreement and will increase the amounts due thereunder.

The aggregate amount payable pursuant to the Tax Receivable Agreement is dependent in large part on the reduction in taxes that we would have been required to pay absent
the existence of the Pre-IPO Tax Assets. As a result, changes in tax law, and in particular the federal and state tax rates applicable to U.S. corporations, the tax rules on the
amortization and depreciation of assets, and our split of U.S. to foreign income may materially impact the timing and amounts of payments by us to the Pre-IPO
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Stockholders pursuant to the Tax Receivable Agreement. Congress is considering a significant number of changes to U.S. tax laws, including an increase in the maximum tax
rate applicable to U.S. corporations, which may materially increase our payment obligations to Pre-IPO Stockholders under the Tax Receivable Agreement.

Different timing rules apply to payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement to be made to holders that, prior to the completion of the IPO, held stock options (collectively,
the “Award Holders”). Such payments will generally be deemed invested in a notional account rather than made on the scheduled payment dates, and the account will be
distributed on the fifth anniversary of the IPO, together with an amount equal to the net present value of such Award Holder’s future expected payments, if any, under the Tax
Receivable Agreement. Moreover, payments to holders of stock options that were unvested prior to the completion of the IPO are subject to vesting on the same schedule as
such holder’s unvested stock options.

If we fail to make payment by the date specified by the Tax Receivable Agreement, the Tax Receivable Agreement generally provides for interest to accrue on the unpaid
amount from the date so specified until the date of actual payment, at a rate equal to LIBOR (or if LIBOR ceases to be published, a replacement rate with similar
characteristics) plus 5%, except under certain circumstances specified in the Tax Receivable Agreement where we are unable to make payment by such date, in which case
interest would accrue at a rate equal to LIBOR (or if LIBOR ceases to be published, a replacement rate with similar characteristics) plus 3%.

Further, the Tax Receivable Agreement provides that (i) upon certain mergers, stock and asset sales, other forms of business combinations, (ii) upon certain sales or other
divestitures, (iii) upon certain proceedings seeking liquidation, reorganization or other relief under bankruptcy, insolvency or similar law, event of default under certain of our
indebtedness for borrowed money, or other Credit Event (as defined therein), (iv) upon a breach of any of our material obligations (that is not timely cured) under the Tax
Receivable Agreement, or (v) or other Changes of Control (as defined therein) or if, at any time, we elect an early termination of the Tax Receivable Agreement, our payment
obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement will accelerate and may significantly exceed the actual benefits we realize in respect of the tax attributes subject to the Tax
Receivable Agreement. We will be required to make a payment intended to be equal to the present value of future payments (calculated using a discount rate equal to LIBOR
(or if LIBOR ceases to be published, a replacement rate with similar characteristics) plus 1%, which may differ from our, or a potential acquirer’s, then-current cost of capital)
under the Tax Receivable Agreement, which payment would be based on certain assumptions, including the assumption that we and our subsidiaries have sufficient taxable
income and tax liabilities to fully utilize anticipated future tax benefits. In these situations, our, or a potential acquirer’s, obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement could
have a substantial negative impact on our, or a potential acquirer’s, liquidity and could have the effect of delaying, deferring, modifying or preventing certain mergers, asset
sales, other forms of business combinations or other Changes of Control. These provisions of the Tax Receivable Agreement may result in situations where the Pre-IPO
Stockholders have interests that differ from or are in addition to those of our other stockholders.

In addition, certain transactions by us could cause us to recognize taxable income (possibly material amounts of income) without a current receipt of cash. Payments under the
Tax Receivable Agreement with respect to such taxable income would cause a net reduction in our available cash. For example, internal restructurings or reorganizations
involving the intercompany sale or license of intellectual property rights, transactions giving rise to cancellation of debt income, the accrual of income from original issue
discount or deferred payments, a “triggering event” requiring the recapture of dual consolidated losses, or “Subpart F” income would each produce income with no
corresponding increase in cash. In these cases, we may use some of the Pre-IPO Tax Assets to offset income from these transactions and, under the Tax Receivable Agreement,
would be required to make a payment to our Pre-IPO Stockholders even though we receive no cash corresponding to such income.

Payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement will be based in part on our reporting positions. The Pre-IPO Stockholders (or their transferees or assignees) will not reimburse
us for any payments previously made under the Tax Receivable Agreement if such tax benefits are subsequently disallowed, although future payments would be adjusted to the
extent possible to reflect the result of such disallowance and any excess payments made to any Pre-IPO Stockholder (or such Pre-IPO Stockholder’s transferees or assignees)
will be netted against future payments that would otherwise be made under the Tax Receivable Agreement, if any, after our determination of such excess. As a result, in certain
circumstances, the payments we are required to make under the Tax Receivable Agreement could exceed the cash tax savings we actually realize.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our material cash requirements from known contractual and other obligations as of December 31, 2023 (in thousands):

Total Less Than
One Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years More Than

Five Years

2022 Term Loan Facility debt $ 663,188  $ 6,750  $ 13,500  $ 13,500  $ 629,438 
Interest on 2022 Term Loan Facility debt 304,179 60,484 118,140 115,846 9,709
Related party payable pursuant to the Tax Receivable Agreement 198,171 12,675 26,765 30,343 128,388

Purchase obligations 14,080 4,121 8,242 1,717 —
Operating lease liabilities 3,157 370 1,173 839 775

Total contractual obligations $ 1,182,775 $ 84,400 $ 167,820 $ 162,245 $ 768,310

2022 Term Loan Facility debt payments include scheduled principal payments only.

The 2022 Term Loan Facility is subject to variable interest rates. The interest rate on borrowings under the 2022 Term Loan Facility was 9.0% as of December 31, 2023.
Assumes annual interest rate of 9.0% on the 2022 Term Loan Facility over the remaining term of the loan.

Represents 85% of the estimated cash savings in U.S. federal, state or local that the Company realizes in its taxable income as a result of certain existing tax attributes as
per the Tax Receivable Agreement. The Company has not considered financing costs that may be incurred with respect to when tax receivable payments are due from the
Company’s tax filing dates (with no extensions) to the actual filing of tax returns under extension. See “Note 10 - Income Taxes” to our Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Item 8. Financial Statements of this Annual Report for additional information.

Purchase obligations are commitments for contracted services and include non-cancelable payments.

Does not reflect any borrowings under the 2022 Revolver. As of December  31, 2023, we had no outstanding borrowings under the 2022 Revolver. The Company is
required to pay a commitment fee of 0.25% to 0.50% per annum on unused commitments under the 2022 Revolver based upon our First Lien Leverage Ratio (as defined in
the 2022 Credit Agreement).

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of financial statements requires
us to make estimates and assumptions about future events that affect amounts reported in our consolidated financial statements and related notes, as well as the related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. We evaluate our accounting policies, estimates and judgments on an on-going basis. We
base our estimates and judgments on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

We evaluated the development and selection of our critical accounting policies and estimates and believe that the following items are critical accounting estimates, as they (1)
involve a higher degree of judgment or complexity and (2) are most significant to reporting our results of operations and financial position. The following critical accounting
policies reflect the significant estimates and judgments used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. With respect to the critical accounting policies, even a
relatively minor variance between actual and expected experience can potentially have a materially favorable or unfavorable impact on subsequent results of operations. In
addition, there are other items within our financial statements that require estimation, but are not deemed critical as defined above. More information on the Company’s
significant accounting policies can be found in the footnotes to our audited consolidated financial statements included in “Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies” in Item 8 of this Annual Report.

Revenue Recognition

Nature of estimates required: We recognize revenue when control of promised goods are transferred to a customer in an amount that reflects the consideration that we expect to
receive in exchange for those goods. Control of the products that we sell are transferred at a point in time. Factors that determine the specific point in time a customer obtains
control (and a performance obligation is satisfied) are (i) when we have a present right to payment for the goods, (ii) whether the customer has physical possession and title to
the goods, and (iii) whether significant risks and rewards of ownership have transferred. Delivery is typically considered to have occurred at the time the title and risk of loss
passes to the customer. Revenue from transactions, net of estimated and actual allowances, is generally recognized at a point in time based on the contractual terms with the
customer.

Assumptions and approach used:

(1)

 (2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)
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Promotional allowance: In the normal course of business, we offer various incentives to customers such as sales discounts and other incentives and allowances, which give rise
to variable consideration. The amount of variable consideration is estimated at the time of sale based on either the expected value method or the most likely amount, depending
on the nature of the variability. Actual incentives and allowances upon completion of a promotion are inherently uncertain and thus may differ from our estimates. We regularly
review and revise, when deemed necessary, our estimates of variable consideration based on both customer-specific expectations as well as historical rates of realization. If
actual or expected promotional allowances were significantly greater or lower than the accrual for the allowance we had established, we would record a reduction or increase to
net sales in the period in which we made such determination.

Sales returns and allowances: Our terms of sale provide limited return rights and allowances. We record estimated sales returns, discounts, and miscellaneous customer claims
as reductions to net sales at the time revenues are recorded. We base our estimates upon historical experience and trends, and upon approval of specific returns or discounts.
Actual returns and discounts in any future period are inherently uncertain and thus may differ from our estimates. If actual or expected future returns and discounts were
significantly greater or lower than the accrual for the allowance we had established, we would record a reduction or increase to net sales in the period in which we made such
determination.

Inventory

Nature of estimates required: Inventory is comprised primarily of finished goods and are stated at the lower of cost (average cost method) or estimated net realizable value.
Cost is computed based on average historical costs. We allocate the amortization of our patented formulations to the carrying value of our finished goods. The carrying value of
inventories is reduced for any excess and obsolete inventory.

Assumptions and approach used: Excess and obsolete inventory reductions are determined based on assumptions about future demand and sales prices, estimates of the impact
of competition, and the age of inventory. If actual conditions are less favorable than those previously estimated by management, additional inventory write-downs could be
required.

Tax Receivable Agreement

Nature of estimates required: The actual amount and timing of any payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement will vary depending upon a number of factors including the
amount, character and timing of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ taxable income in the future and the tax rates then applicable to the Company and its subsidiaries. We
expect the payments that will be required to be made under the Tax Receivable Agreement will be substantial and to be funded out of working capital.

Assumptions and approach used: The Tax Receivable Agreement liability is based on current tax laws and the assumption that the Company and its subsidiaries earn sufficient
taxable income to realize the full tax benefits subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement. Updates to our blended state tax rate, allocation of U.S. versus foreign sourced income
and changes in tax rules on the amortization and depreciation of assets may significantly impact the established liability and changes would be recorded to other (expense)
income in the period we made the determination. We expect that future payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement relating to the Pre-IPO Tax Assets could aggregate to
$198.2 million over the 12-year remaining period under the Tax Receivable Agreement. Payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement, which began in fiscal year 2022, are
not conditioned upon the parties’ continued ownership of equity in the Company. See “Note 10 - Income Taxes” in Item 8 of this Annual Report.

New Accounting Pronouncements

See “Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” in Item 8 of this Annual Report for information regarding new accounting pronouncements.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to certain market risks arising from transactions in the normal course of our business. This includes risk associated with interest rates, our interest rate cap,
inflation and foreign exchange.

Interest Rate Risk

Our results are subject to risk from interest rate fluctuations on borrowings under the 2022 Credit Agreement. Our borrowings bear interest at a variable rate; therefore, we are
exposed to market risks relating to changes in interest rates. Interest rate changes generally affect the amount of our interest payments and, therefore, our future earnings and
cash flows. As of December 31, 2023, we had $663.2 million of outstanding variable rate loans under the 2022 Term Loan Facility. Based on our December 31, 2023 variable
rate loan balances, an increase or decrease of 1% in the effective interest rate would have caused an increase or decrease in interest cost related to our 2022 Term Loan Facility
of approximately $6.6 million over the next 12 months.

Interest Rate Cap

On August 11, 2022, we entered into an interest rate cap transaction (the “interest rate cap”) in connection with the 2022 Term Loan Facility, as more fully described in “Note 9
- Long Term Debt” in the Item 8 of this Annual Report. We use the interest rate cap to add stability to interest expense and to manage our exposure to interest rate movements.
The fair value of the interest rate cap is measured at the end of each reporting period using observable inputs other than quoted prices. The fair value of the interest rate cap
recorded in other assets at December 31, 2023 was $2.4 million. A hypothetical 50 basis point increase in interest rates would result in an increase to the fair value of the
interest rate cap of approximately $0.6 million. A hypothetical 50 basis point decrease in interest rates would result in a decrease to the fair value of the interest rate cap of
approximately $0.5 million.

Inflation

Inflationary factors such as increases in the cost to produce our products and overhead costs have adversely affected, and may continue to adversely affect our operating results.
Sustained increases in warehousing costs, transportation costs, wages and raw material costs, or other inflationary pressures in the future, may have an adverse effect on our
ability to maintain current levels of gross profit margin if the selling prices of our products do not increase with these increased costs, or if we cannot identify other cost
efficiencies.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Our reporting currency including our U.K. foreign subsidiary, Olaplex UK Limited, is the U.S. dollar. Gains or losses due to transactions in foreign currencies are reflected in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income under the line-item Other (expense) income, net. We have not engaged in the hedging of foreign
currency transactions to date, although we may choose to do so in the future. We do not believe that an immediate 10% increase or decrease in the relative value of the U.S.
dollar to other currencies would have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of Olaplex Holdings, Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Olaplex Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the related
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows, for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023, and the
related notes (collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2023, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company's internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 29, 2024, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Company's internal control over financial
reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our
audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that was communicated or required to be
communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging,
subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are
not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Revenue Recognition – Accrual for Customer Incentives and Promotional Allowances – Refer to Note 2 to the financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

In the normal course of business, the Company offers various incentives, allowances and agreed-upon deductions, including allowances for advertising, damages, promotions,
discounts and returns that give rise to variable consideration. The amount of variable consideration is estimated at the time of sale based on either the expected value method or
the most likely amount, depending on the nature of the variability. The Company regularly reviews and revises, when deemed necessary, its estimates of variable consideration
based on both customer-specific expectations as well as historical rates of realization. The Company has recorded allowances for reductions to prices for agreed-upon
deductions, including allowances for advertising, damages, promotions, discounts and returns. An accrual for allowances is estimated based on agreed-upon terms and the
Company’s historical experience and is recorded as a reduction to sales and accounts receivable in the same period the related sales are recorded. As of December 31, 2023, the
accrued allowances were $21.5 million.

Auditing the Company’s accrual for allowances was complex and judgmental as the accrual is determined based on significant management estimates, principally customer-
specific expectations and historical rates of realization. Changes in these estimates can have a material impact on revenue recognized. Additionally, given the subjectivity of
estimating the accrual for allowances,
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performing audit procedures to evaluate whether the accrual for allowances is appropriately recorded required a high degree of auditor judgment.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the accrual for customer incentives and promotional allowances included the following, among others:

• We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design, and tested the operating effectiveness of controls over the Company’s accrual for allowances, including controls
over management’s review of the significant assumptions, such as the historical rate of realization and the estimated amount of promotional and return activities.

• We made inquiries of management related to the agreed-upon and outstanding promotional and return activities.

• We evaluated the reasonableness of the Company’s policies for recording the accrual for allowances including whether there were changes in those policies in the
current year.

• We evaluated the Company’s historical ability to accurately estimate its accrual for allowances by performing a retrospective analysis on the prior period accrual based
on current period deductions.

• We selected customer deductions received subsequent to December 31, 2023 and determined that deductions pertaining to 2023 sales were properly included in the
accrual for allowances.

• We performed a trend analysis of the accrual for allowances relative to recorded revenue data to identify unusual trends or outliers for investigation.

• We evaluated management’s methodologies and tested the significant assumptions used by the Company to calculate the accrual for allowances and verified those
assumptions were consistent with the terms of underlying customer revenue contracts. We also evaluated whether management’s methodologies and assumptions were
reflective of recent market events and changes, as applicable, within the Company’s operating environment.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Los Angeles, California
February 29, 2024

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2021
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OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except shares)

December 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 466,400  $ 322,808 
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $21,465 and $19,198 40,921  46,220 
Inventory 95,922  144,425 
Other current assets 9,953  8,771 

Total current assets 613,196  522,224 
Property and equipment, net 930  1,034 
Intangible assets, net 947,714  995,028 
Goodwill 168,300  168,300 
Other assets 10,198  11,089 
Total assets $ 1,740,338  $ 1,697,675 

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 7,073  $ 9,748 
Sales and income taxes payable 9,067  3,415 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 20,576  17,107 
Current portion of long-term debt 6,750  8,438 
Current portion of Related Party payable pursuant to Tax Receivable Agreement 12,675  16,380 

Total current liabilities 56,141  55,088 
Long-term debt 649,023  654,333 
Deferred tax liabilities 3,016  1,622 
Related Party payable pursuant to Tax Receivable Agreement 185,496  205,675 
Other liabilities 1,694  — 
Total liabilities $ 895,370  $ 916,718 

Contingencies (Note 14)

Stockholders’ equity (Notes 1 and 12):
Common stock, $0.001 par value per share; 2,000,000,000 shares authorized, 660,731,935 and 650,091,380 shares issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively 671  649 
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value per share; 25,000,000 shares authorized and no shares issued and outstanding as of December 31,
2023 and 2022, respectively —  — 
Additional paid-in capital 316,489  312,875 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,365  2,577 
Retained earnings 526,443  464,856 

Total stockholders’ equity 844,968  780,957 

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,740,338  $ 1,697,675 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements

52



Table of Contents

OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(amounts in thousands, except per share and share amounts)

For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022 2021

Net sales $ 458,300  $ 704,274  $ 598,365 
Cost of sales:

Cost of product (excluding amortization) 131,323  177,221  116,554 
Amortization of patented formulations 8,345  7,500  7,989 

Total cost of sales 139,668  184,721  124,543 
Gross profit 318,632  519,553  473,822 
Operating expenses:

Selling, general, and administrative 168,942  113,877  98,878 
Amortization of other intangible assets 41,468  41,282  40,790 

Total operating expenses 210,410  155,159  139,668 
Operating income 108,222  364,394  334,154 
Interest expense (57,954) (43,953) (61,148)
Interest income 18,828  2,775  — 
Other income (expense), net

Loss on extinguishment of debt —  (18,803) — 
Tax receivable agreement liability adjustment 7,404  3,084  3,615 
Other income (expense), net 220  (2,256) (1,012)
Total other income (expense), net 7,624  (17,975) 2,603 

Income before provision for income taxes 76,720  305,241  275,609 
Income tax provision 15,133  61,169  54,825 
Net income $ 61,587  $ 244,072  $ 220,784 

Net income per share:
Basic $ 0.09  $ 0.38  $ 0.34 
Diluted $ 0.09  $ 0.35  $ 0.32 

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic 654,592,923  649,092,846  648,166,472 
Diluted 677,578,245  691,005,846  689,923,792 

Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Unrealized (loss) gain on derivatives, net of income tax effect $ (1,212) $ 2,577  $ — 

Total other comprehensive (loss) income (1,212) 2,577  — 
Comprehensive income $ 60,375  $ 246,649  $ 220,784 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(amounts in thousands, except number of shares)

Common Stock

Stockholder’s Equity
Shares

(Note 1) Amount
Additional Paid

in Capital

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive

Income
Retained
Earnings Total Equity

Balance – January 1, 2021 647,888,387  $ 648  $ 530,025  $ —  $ —  $ 530,673 
Issuance of common stock 236,255  —  633  —  —  633 
Net income —  —  —  —  220,784  220,784 
Tax receivable agreement —  —  (232,893) —  —  (232,893)
Share-based compensation expense —  —  3,963  —  —  3,963 
Exercise of stock options 669,399  —  1,138  —  —  1,138 

Balance – December 31, 2021 648,794,041  $ 648  $ 302,866  $ —  $ 220,784  $ 524,298 

Net income —  —  —  —  244,072  244,072 
Conversion of cash-settled units to stock-settled stock
appreciation rights —  —  1,632  —  —  1,632 
Exercise of stock-settled stock appreciation rights 214,380  —  638  —  —  638 
Shares withheld and retired on exercise of stock-
settled stock appreciation rights (106,722) —  (1,412) —  —  (1,412)
Share-based compensation expense —  —  7,275  —  —  7,275 
Exercise of stock options 1,189,681  1  1,876  —  —  1,877 
Unrealized gain on derivatives (net of taxes) —  —  —  2,577  —  2,577 

Balance – December 31, 2022 650,091,380  $ 649  $ 312,875  $ 2,577  $ 464,856  $ 780,957 

Net income —  —  —  —  61,587  $ 61,587 
Exercise of stock-settled stock appreciation rights 109,620  —  326  —  —  $ 326 
Shares withheld and retired on exercise of stock-
settled stock appreciation rights (83,501) —  (390) —  —  $ (390)
Share-based compensation expense —  —  9,072  —  —  $ 9,072 
Exercise of stock options 23,396,654  22  18,701  —  —  $ 18,723 
Shares withheld and retired on exercise of stock
options (12,782,218) —  (24,095) —  —  $ (24,095)
Unrealized gain on derivatives (net of taxes) —  —  —  (1,212) —  $ (1,212)

Balance – December 31, 2023 660,731,935  $ 671  $ 316,489  $ 1,365  $ 526,443  $ 844,968 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(amounts in thousands)

For the years ended December 31,
2023 2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 61,587  $ 244,072  $ 220,784 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operations provided by operating activities:

Amortization of patent formulations 8,345  7,500  7,989 
Amortization of other intangibles 41,468  41,282  40,790 
Inventory write-off and disposal 15,227  8,180  — 
Depreciation of fixed assets 479  363  162 
Amortization of debt issuance costs 1,812  1,543  2,830 
Deferred taxes 1,774  9,179  2,486 
Tax receivable agreement liability adjustment (7,404) (3,084) (3,615)
Share-based compensation expense 9,072  7,275  3,963 
Loss on extinguishment of debt —  18,803  — 
Other operating 1,060  412  — 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net 5,299  (5,441) (26,402)
Inventory 34,599  (52,640) (63,724)
Other current assets (1,366) 850  (7,199)
Accounts payable (2,675) (9,419) 2,352 
Accrued expenses, sales tax and income tax payable 8,722  (7,322) 19,613 
Other assets and liabilities (467) (6,229) — 

Net cash provided by operating activities 177,532  255,324  200,029 

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (375) (650) (875)
Purchase of intangible assets (500) —  — 

 Purchase of software (2,739) (2,032) (890)
Purchase of investment in nonconsolidated entity —  —  (4,500)

Net cash used in investing activities (3,614) (2,682) (6,265)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from the issuance of stock —  —  633 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 4,974  1,876  1,138 
Principal payments of Term Loan (8,438) (780,380) (20,111)

   Payment related to shares withheld and retired to cover tax withholding obligations for options (10,346) —  — 
Payment related to shares withheld and retired to cover tax withholding obligation for SARs (64) (774) — 
Payment to pre-IPO stockholders pursuant to tax receivable agreement (16,452) —  — 
Proceeds from the issuance of Term Loan —  675,000  — 
Payments of debt issuance costs —  (11,944) — 

Net cash used in financing activities (30,326) (116,222) (18,340)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 143,592  136,420  175,424 
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period 322,808  186,388  10,964 

Cash and cash equivalents - end of period $ 466,400  $ 322,808  $ 186,388 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid for income taxes $ 7,738  $ 59,922  $ 33,812 
Cash paid during the year for interest $ 59,595  $ 41,226  $ 58,316 

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Offering and strategic transition costs included in accounts payable and accrued expenses $ —  $ —  $ 243 
Increase in Related Party payable pursuant to Tax Receivable Agreement $ —  $ —  $ 232,893 
Noncash exercise of stock options $ 13,749  $ —  $ — 
Cash Settled units liability reclassification to additional paid in capital $ —  $ 1,632  $ — 
Assets acquired under operating lease $ 2,128  $ —  $ — 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts, percentages and as otherwise indicated)

NOTE 1- NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Olaplex Holdings, Inc. (“Olaplex Holdings” and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Company”) is a Delaware corporation that was incorporated on June 8, 2021. Olaplex
Holdings is organized as a holding company and operates indirectly through Olaplex, Inc., its wholly owned indirect subsidiary, which conducts business under the name
“Olaplex”. Olaplex is an innovative, science-enabled, technology-driven beauty company that is focused on delivering its patent-protected prestige hair care products to
professional hair salons, retailers and everyday consumers. Olaplex develops, manufactures and distributes a line of hair care products developed to address three key uses:
treatment, maintenance and protection.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP” or “U.S.
GAAP”) with all intercompany balances and transactions eliminated. Any reference in these notes to applicable guidance is meant to refer to the authoritative United States
(“U.S.”) generally accepted accounting principles as found in the Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) and Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”).

Initial Public Offering

On October 4, 2021, Olaplex Holdings completed an initial public offering of shares of its common stock (the “IPO”). All shares sold in the IPO were sold by certain existing
stockholders of Olaplex Holdings. The Company did not receive any proceeds from the IPO.

Reorganization Transactions

Prior to the IPO, Penelope Group Holdings, L.P. was the direct parent of Penelope Holding Corp. (“Penelope”), which is the indirect parent of Olaplex, Inc., the Company’s
primary operating subsidiary. In connection with the IPO, the Company completed an internal corporate reorganization (the “Reorganization Transactions”), pursuant to which,
among other things, (i) Olaplex Holdings, Inc. became an indirect parent of Olaplex, Inc., and (ii) the Company entered into an income tax receivable agreement (“the Tax
Receivable Agreement”) under which the Company is required to pay to the former limited partners of Penelope Group Holdings, L.P. and holders of options to purchase shares
of common stock of Penelope (collectively the “Pre-IPO Stockholders”) that were vested prior to the Reorganization Transactions, 85% of the cash savings, if any, in U.S.
federal, state or local tax that the Company actually realizes on its taxable income following the IPO as specified in the Tax Receivable Agreement.

The financial statements for prior periods give effect to the Reorganization Transactions, including (i) the exchange of units of Penelope Group Holdings, L.P. for shares of
common stock of Olaplex Holdings, Inc. at an overall exchange ratio of one-for-675, and (ii) the conversion of options and cash-settled units of Penelope into options and cash-
settled units of Olaplex Holdings at a conversion rate of one-for-675, with a corresponding adjustment to the exercise price and base price, respectively, as discussed in “Note
11. Share-Based Compensation”. All share and earnings per share amounts presented herein have been retroactively adjusted to give effect to the Reorganization Transactions
as if they occurred in all prior periods presented.

For the periods prior to the Reorganization Transactions, Penelope and its subsidiaries, including Olaplex, Inc., are consolidated in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation and Combination

The 2023, 2022 and 2021 Consolidated Financial Statements cover Olaplex, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiary, Olaplex UK Limited, a private limited company incorporated
in England and Wales. The accompanying 2023, 2022 and 2021 Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the financial position, results of operations and comprehensive
income, and cash flows of Olaplex Holdings, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. All intercompany account balances and transactions have been
eliminated.

Estimates and Assumptions

Preparing financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses. Examples
of estimates and assumptions include: for revenue recognition, determining the nature and timing of satisfaction of performance obligations, variable consideration, and other
obligations such as product returns, allowance for promotions, and refunds; loss contingencies; the fair value of share-based options and stock settled stock
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appreciation rights (“SARs”); the fair value of and/or potential impairment of goodwill and intangible assets for the Company’s reporting unit; the fair value of the Company’s
interest rate cap; useful lives of the Company’s tangible and intangible assets; estimated income tax expense and tax payments; future payment obligations under the Tax
Receivable Agreement; the net realizable value of, and demand for the Company’s inventory. Actual results and outcomes may differ from management’s estimates and
assumptions due to risks and uncertainties.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company maintains cash balances at several
high credit quality financial institutions. Accounts at these institutions are secured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC”). At times, such cash balances
may be in excess of the $250 FDIC insurance limit. As of December  31, 2023 and December  31, 2022, the Company has cash equivalents of $466,400 and $322,808,
respectively. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Accounts Receivable – net

Accounts receivable are recorded at net realizable value. The Company has recorded an accrual for reductions to prices for agreed-upon deductions, including allowances for
advertising, damages, promotions, and returns. As of December  31, 2023 and December  31, 2022, the accrued allowances were $21,465 and $19,198 respectively. As of
December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company did not have an allowance for doubtful accounts. In arriving at this conclusion, the Company evaluated historical
losses, and the likelihood of future losses, age of receivables, adverse situations that may affect a customer’s ability to repay and prevailing economic conditions in accordance
with ASC 326. The Company has generally not experienced difficulties collecting from customers in a timely manner.

Inventory

Inventory includes inventory that is salable or usable in future periods and is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value using the average cost method. Cost components
include raw materials and finished goods. The finished goods are produced at third-party contract manufacturers. The Company allocates the amortized cost of its patented
formulation to finished goods inventory. Management estimates an allowance for excess and obsolete inventory based on a calculation of excess on hand quantities of slow-
moving inventory. For the year ended December  31, 2023, the Company recorded a $15.2 million allowance for excess and obsolete inventory. For the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021 no material allowance for excess and obsolete inventory was recorded.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the purchase consideration paid in the acquisition of a business over the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

Goodwill is reviewed annually at the beginning of the fourth quarter for impairment, at the reporting unit level, or when there is evidence that events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the Company’s carrying amount may not be recovered. A reporting unit is an operating segment or a component of an operating segment. When
testing goodwill for impairment, the Company first assesses qualitative factors to evaluate whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than the
carrying amount. If factors indicate that the fair value of the asset is less than its carrying amount, the Company will perform a quantitative test by determining the fair value of
the reporting unit. The estimated fair value of the reporting unit is based on a projected discounted cash flow model that includes significant assumptions and estimates,
including discount rate, growth rate, and future financial performance. Valuations of similar public companies may also be evaluated when assessing the fair value of the
reporting unit. If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds the fair value, then an impairment loss is recognized for the difference. The Company manages its business on
the basis of three components of its operating segment that are aggregated into one reportable and operating segment given the components of the operating segment have
similar economic characteristics, classes of consumers, products, production, distribution methods, and operate in the same regulatory environments. The reportable segment is
used for the purposes of impairment testing.

Definite-lived intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which represents the period over which the Company expects to realize economic value from the
acquired assets, using the economic consumption method if anticipated future net sales can be reasonably estimated. The straight-line method is used when future net sales
cannot be reasonably estimated. The following provides a summary of the estimated useful lives by category of asset.
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Brand name 25 years
Customer relationships 20 years
Patented formulations 15 years
Software 3 years

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived tangible and intangible assets with definite lives for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Examples of such events include a significant disposal of a portion of such assets, an adverse change in the market involving the
business employing the related asset, a significant decrease in the benefits realized from an acquired business, difficulties or delays in integrating the business, and a significant
change in the operations of an acquired business. Recoverability of these assets is measured by comparison of their carrying amount to the future undiscounted cash flows the
assets are expected to generate. Assets are grouped and evaluated at the lowest level for which there are identifiable cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows of
other groups of assets. The Company considers historical performance and future estimated results in its evaluation of impairment. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds
expected undiscounted future cash flows, the Company measures the amount of impairment by comparing the carrying amount of the asset to its fair value, generally measured
by discounting expected future cash flows at the rate it utilizes to evaluate potential investments. No tangible and intangible asset impairment was recorded for fiscal years
ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022.

Fair value measurements are based on significant inputs that are not observable in the market and therefore represent a Level 3 measurement. Significant changes in the
underlying assumptions used to value long-lived assets could significantly increase or decrease the fair value estimates used for impairment assessments.

Debt Issuance Costs

Original issue discount costs and third-party issue costs incurred in connection with the issuance of long-term debt are deferred and amortized over the life of the associated
debt instrument on a straight-line basis, in a manner that approximates the effective interest method. To the extent that the debt is outstanding, these amounts are reflected in the
consolidated balance sheets as direct deductions from the long-term debt. As of December  31, 2023 and December  31, 2022, the Company had $8,589 and $10,402 of
unamortized deferred financing costs related to its credit facilities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost net of accumulated depreciation. The cost of assets sold or retired, and the related accumulated depreciation, are removed
from the accounts at the time of disposition, and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in operating results for the period.

Estimated useful lives of the Company’s assets are as follows:
Molds 3-5 years
Equipment 5-10 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-7 years

Deferred Revenue

Amounts received from international customers in the form of cash pre-payments to purchase goods are recorded as deferred revenue for contract liabilities until the goods are
shipped, including unredeemed gift cards. The Company’s deferred revenue balance was $1,051 and $2,015 as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively (see
“Note 8. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities”). Customer pre-payments and gift cards are included as accrued expenses and other current liabilities. Deferred
revenue is included as accrued expenses and other current liabilities on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Foreign Currency Transactions

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are converted to the functional currency at the applicable current rates, including the Company’s subsidiary, Olaplex
UK Limited whose functional currency is in US dollars. All revenues and expenses associated with foreign currencies are converted at the rates of exchange prevailing when
such transactions occur. The resulting exchange loss or gain is reflected in foreign currency exchange loss or gain recorded in other income (expense), net in the accompanying
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income. Foreign exchange losses were $69, $2,025 and $1,027 for the years ended December  31, 2023, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. Activity for comprehensive income related to foreign currency activity is not applicable for periods presented.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The authoritative guidance for fair value measurements established a framework for measuring fair value and established a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure
of fair value measurements as follows:

Level 1—Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets. The Company’s Level 1 assets consist of its marketable
securities.

Level 2—Observable quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets and observable quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses are reflected at carrying value, which approximates fair value due to the short-term
maturity. The Company’s long-term debt is recorded at its carrying value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, which may differ from fair value. The Company’s interest rate cap
is recorded at its Level 2 fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Offering Costs

During the third quarter of 2021, the Company completed the IPO. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company expensed offering and related strategic transition costs
of $8,488 in the Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income under Selling, general and administrative expenses.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are components of an enterprise for which separate financial information is available that is evaluated by the chief operating decision maker in deciding
how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. Utilizing this criteria, the Company manages its business on the basis of three components of its operating segment that
are aggregated into one reportable and operating segment given the components of the operating segment have similar economic characteristics, classes of consumers, products,
production, distribution methods, and operate in similar regulatory environments.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenue through the sale of its prestige hair care products. The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC Topic 606, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, which provides a five-step model for recognizing revenue from contracts with customers as follows:

• Identify the contract with a customer

• Identify the performance obligations in the contract

• Determine the transaction price

• Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

• Recognize revenue when or as performance obligations are satisfied

The Company recognizes revenue in the amount that reflects the consideration that the Company expects that it will be entitled to in exchange for transferring goods to its
customers. Net sales are comprised of the transaction price from sales of products less expected allowances, including allowances for advertising, damages, promotions,
discounts, and return rights. These allowances are estimated based on agreed-upon terms and the Company’s historical experience and are recorded as a reduction to sales and
accounts receivable in the same period the related sales are recorded. The Company experienced returns of $9,155 and $9,983 during the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively and immaterial returns for year ended 2021.
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Revenue is recognized when performance obligations are satisfied through the transfer of control of promised goods to the customers based on the terms of sale. The transfer of
control typically occurs at a point in time based on consideration of when the customer has an obligation to pay for the goods, and physical possession of, legal title to, and the
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods has been transferred to the customer. Generally, revenue from sales of merchandise to customers are recognized at a point in time,
based on customer agreements and is recorded in the period the product is shipped or delivered in accordance with the shipping terms. For the Company’s Olaplex.com website
transactions, revenue is recognized upon delivery to customers. The Company’s professional and retail distributors consist of local and international customers. Payments from
certain international customers are due in advance. The Company records deferred revenue for contract liabilities from contracts with customers in which the customer prepays
for the order. Other international and U.S.-based customer billings are invoiced and typically due within a contractually specified term. During 2023, 2022 and 2021, the
Company did not have significant financing terms with its customers.

The Company has elected to account for shipping and handling as fulfillment activities and not as a separate performance obligation. As of December  31, 2023 and
December  31, 2022, other than accounts receivable, the Company has no material contract assets. The Company had contract liabilities of $1,051 and $2,015 as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Opening contract liability balances of $2,015, as of January 1, 2023, and $5,022, as of January 1, 2022, were recognized as net sales
during the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 respectively.

Sales and value added taxes, when applicable, that are collected in connection with revenue transactions are withheld and remitted to the respective taxing authorities. Shipping
and fulfillment costs charged to customers are included as revenue in total net sales. Shipping costs incurred by the Company to ship between third-party manufacturers and
warehouses are capitalized to inventory and included in cost of sales. Shipping and fulfillment costs incurred by the Company to ship to customers are included in selling,
general, and administrative expenses.

The Company elected to record revenue net of sales and excise taxes collected by customers, all of which the Company has the primary responsibility to pay and remit to taxing
authorities. Taxes are excluded from the transaction price.

The Company elected not to disclose revenue related to remaining performance obligations for partially completed or unfulfilled contracts that are expected to be fulfilled
within one year as such amounts are deemed to be insignificant.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales includes the aggregate costs to procure the Company’s products, including the amounts invoiced by third-party contract manufacturers and suppliers for finished
goods, as well as costs related to transportation to distribution centers, amortization of the patented formulations, and amortization of the fair value step-up of inventory.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general, and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses primarily consist of personnel-related expenses, including salaries, bonuses, fringe benefits and share-based
compensation expense, marketing and digital expenses, warehousing, fulfillment, and distribution costs, costs related to merchandising, product development costs, and
depreciation of property and equipment.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the asset and liability approach for financial accounting and reporting for income taxes. The provision for income taxes includes Federal, and state income
taxes currently payable or receivable and those deferred because of temporary differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets to the extent it believes the assets are more likely than not to be realized. Valuation allowances are established when necessary, to
reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. In making such a determination, the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence, including
future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected future taxable income, tax-planning strategies, and the results of recent operations. The Company
recognizes the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by taxing authorities, based on
the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial statements from such a position are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than
50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, associated with tax matters as part of the income tax provision and includes accrued interest and penalties with the
related tax liability in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.
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Concentrations of Risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of cash and cash equivalents. Although the Company deposits
its cash with creditworthy financial institutions, its deposits, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. To date, the Company has not experienced any losses on it cash
deposits.

The Company extends credit to customers in certain industries which may be affected by changes in economic or other external conditions. A small amount of the Company’s
customers have net sales exceeding 10% of total net sales. During the year ended December 31, 2023, two customers represented 21% of the Company’s total net sales, in
aggregate, and represented 20% of the Company’s total accounts receivable balance. During the year ended December 31, 2022, one customer represented 16% of the
Company’s total net sales and represented an immaterial amount of the total accounts receivable balance. During the year ended December 31, 2021, two customers represented
25% of the Company’s total net sales, in aggregate, and represented 11% of the Company’s total accounts receivable balance. The Company has not experienced material bad
debt losses due to this concentration.

The Company purchases its inventories for certain product categories from a small number of vendors. The Company’s largest vendor represented 32%, 49% and 59% of the
Company’s inventory product purchases for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

One vendor manufactures products that accounted for more than 61%, 77% and 75% of the Company’s net sales for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. The Company’s products are also primarily manufactured and fulfilled by companies located in Southern California.

Marketing and Advertising

The Company expenses marketing and advertising costs as incurred. Selling, general, and administrative expenses include non-employee marketing and advertising expenses of
$60,543, $24,864, and $11,137 for the years ended December  31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively, in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income.

Shipping and Fulfillment

Shipping and fulfillment costs incurred by the Company to ship to customers are expensed as incurred and are included in selling, general, and administrative expenses.
Shipping and fulfillment costs were $10,697, $13,801, and $12,183 for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021, respectively, in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive income.

Share-Based Compensation

Share-based compensation options and RSUs granted to employees, non-employees and directors are measured at fair value at the respective grant dates and recognized as
share-based compensation expense. Share-based compensation expense equal to the fair value of time-based service options that are expected to vest is estimated using the
Black-Scholes model and recorded over the period the grants are earned, which is the requisite service period. The Company recognizes forfeitures as they occur.

Investment in Nonconsolidated Entity

The Company uses the cost method to account for its equity investment for which these equity securities do not have readily determinable fair values and for which the
Company does not have the ability to exercise significant influence. Under the cost method of accounting, the Company’s investment is carried at cost and is adjusted only for
other-than-temporary declines in fair value, additional investments, plus or minus changes from observable price changes in orderly transactions or distributions deemed to be a
return of capital. There are no dividends or fair value adjustments recorded to date.

Tax Receivable Agreement

In connection with the Reorganization Transactions, the Company entered into the Tax Receivable Agreement under which the Company will be required to pay to the Pre-IPO
Stockholders 85% of the federal, state or local tax cash savings that the Company actually realizes on its taxable income following the IPO, as a result of the amortization of
intangible assets and capitalized transaction costs that existed as of the date of the IPO. Under the Tax Receivable Agreement, generally the Company will retain the benefit of
the remaining 15% of the applicable tax savings.
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The Tax Receivable Agreement liability is calculated based on current tax laws and the assumption that the Company and its subsidiaries will earn sufficient taxable income to
realize the full tax benefits subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement. Updates to the Company’s blended state tax rate and allocation of U.S. versus foreign sourced income may
impact the established liability and changes to that established liability would be recorded to other income (expense) in the period the Company made the determination
regarding the applicable change. The Company expects that future payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement relating to the Pre-IPO Tax Assets could aggregate to
$198.2  million over the 12-year remaining period under the Tax Receivable Agreement. Payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement, which began in the year ended
December 31, 2022, are not conditioned upon the parties’ continued ownership of equity in the Company.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented have been reclassified within “Note 8 - Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities” as of December 31, 2023 to conform with the current
period presentation, including a prior year reclassification from Other accrued expenses and current liabilities to Accrued advertising. The reclassifications occurred as a result
of an increase in the significance of the current year amount. There was no change to the Consolidated Balance Sheet, Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income,
and Statement of Cash Flows from the reclassification.

Additionally, certain amounts presented have been reclassified within the “Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income” to conform with the current
period presentation, including a prior year reclassification from Interest expense, net to Interest income for years ending December  31, 2023, 2022 and 2021. The
reclassifications occurred as a result of an increase in the significance of the current year amount. There was no change to the Consolidated Balance Sheet, Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income, and Statement of Cash Flows from the reclassification.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In November 2023, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures which is
intended to improve reportable segment disclosure requirements, primarily through enhanced disclosures about significant segment expenses. The new guidance is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024, and early adoption is permitted. The guidance is to
be applied retrospectively to all prior periods presented in the financial statements. Upon transition, the segment expense categories and amounts disclosed in the prior periods
should be based on the significant segment expense categories identified and disclosed in the period of adoption. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of
adopting this new guidance on our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In December 2023, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2023-09, “Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, which modifies the
rules on income tax disclosures to require entities to disclose (1) specific categories in the rate reconciliation, (2) the income or loss from continuing operations before income
tax expense or benefit (separated between domestic and foreign) and (3) income tax expense or benefit from continuing operations (separated by federal, state and foreign).
This update also requires entities to disclose their income tax payments to international, federal, state and local jurisdictions, among other changes. The new guidance is
effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of adopting this new guidance on its consolidated
financial statements and related disclosures.

NOTE 3 – NET SALES

The Company distributes products in the U.S. and internationally through professional distributors in salons, directly to retailers for sale in their physical stores and e-
commerce sites, and direct-to-consumer (“DTC”) through sales to third party e-commerce
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customers and through its own Olaplex.com website. As such, the Company’s three business channels consist of professional, specialty retail and DTC as follows:
For the Year Ended

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Net sales by Channel:

Professional $ 180,084  $ 300,472  $ 259,009 
Specialty retail 135,079  235,310  175,799 
DTC 143,137  168,492  163,557 

Total net sales $ 458,300  $ 704,274  $ 598,365 

Net sales by major geographic region is based on the shipping address on record for the customer purchasing the Company’s products. During the years ended December 31,
2023, 2022 and 2021, the Company’s net sales to consumers in the United States and International regions were as follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Net sales by Geography:
United States $ 207,677  $ 397,564  $ 344,656 
International 250,623  306,710  253,709 

Total net sales $ 458,300  $ 704,274  $ 598,365 

U.S. net sales for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 included approximately $11.5 million, $10.2 million, and $8.1 million, respectively, of net sales to
customers with U.S. shipping addresses who the Company expects will ultimately sell such products in international jurisdictions. United Kingdom (“U.K”) net sales for the
years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 were 8%, 10% and 14% of total net sales, respectively. No other international country exceeded 10% of total net sales for the
years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021. Despite our customers geographic location the majority of net sales are transacted in U.S. Dollars, the Company’s functional
and reporting currency.

NOTE 4 - INVENTORY

Inventory as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 consisted of the following:
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Raw materials $ 30,306  $ 36,194 
Finished goods 65,616  108,231 
Inventory $ 95,922  $ 144,425 

During the year ended December 31, 2023 the Company recorded inventory write-offs of $15.2 million due to reserves for product obsolescence. The Company did not record
material write-offs for product obsolescence during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

NOTE 5 - INVESTMENT IN NONCONSOLIDATED ENTITY

The Company’s investment in and advances to its nonconsolidated entity as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 represents its investment in a limited liability
company. The Company does not control or have significant influence over the operating and financial policies of this affiliate.

The Company accounts for this investment using the cost method and adjust only for other than temporary declines in fair value, additional investments, plus or minus changes
from observable price changes in orderly transactions or distributions deemed to be a return of capital. The Company’s investment is classified as Other assets in its
Consolidated Balance Sheets, and consists of the following:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022

Capital contributions, net of distributions and impairments $ 4,500  $ 4,500 
Total investments in and advances to nonconsolidated affiliate $ 4,500  $ 4,500 
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NOTE 6 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value measurements are established utilizing a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. These tiers include: Level 1, defined
as observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets; Level 2, defined as observable quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets and observable quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; and Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs that are not
corroborated by market data. The Company’s Level 1 assets consist of its marketable securities. Financial assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

On August 11, 2022, the Company entered into an interest rate cap transaction (the “interest rate cap”) in connection with the 2022 Term Loan Facility, with a notional amount
of $400 million. The interest rate cap was designated as a cash flow hedge. For derivatives designated, and that qualify, as cash flow hedges of interest rate risk, the gain or loss
on the derivative is recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive income and subsequently reclassified into Interest expense in the same period(s) during which the hedged
transaction affects earnings, as documented at hedge inception in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy election. The interest rate cap asset is measured at fair
value on a recurring basis. Although the Company has determined that the majority of the inputs used to value the interest rate cap fall within Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy, the credit valuation adjustments associated with the interest rate cap utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood of
default by the Company and its counterparties. The Company has determined that the significance of the impact of the credit valuation adjustments made to the interest rate cap
was not significant to the overall valuation. As a result, the interest rate cap as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 was classified as Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy.

The Company’s assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis and subject to fair value disclosure requirements at December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 were as
follows:

Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using

Total

Quoted Prices in Active
Markets

for Identical
Assets
Level 1

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs
Level 2

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
Level 3

Assets:
Interest rate cap at December 31, 2023 $ 2,391  $ —  $ 2,391  $ — 
Interest rate cap at December 31, 2022 $ 5,042  $ —  $ 5,042  $ — 
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NOTE 7 – GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill and intangible assets are comprised of the following:
December 31, 2023

Estimated
Useful Life

Gross Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Carrying
Amount

Brand name 25 years $ 952,000  $ (151,475) $ 800,525 
Product formulations 15 years 136,500  (36,082) 100,418 
Customer relationships 20 years 53,000  (10,541) 42,459 
Software 3 years 5,660  (1,348) 4,312 

Total finite-lived intangibles 1,147,160  (199,446) 947,714 
Goodwill Indefinite 168,300  —  168,300 

Total goodwill and other intangibles $ 1,315,460  $ (199,446) $ 1,116,014 

December 31, 2022
Estimated

Useful
Life

Gross
Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Net Carrying
Amount

Brand name 25 years $ 952,000  $ (113,394) $ 838,606 
Product formulations 15 years 136,000  (26,998) 109,002 
Customer relationships 20 years 53,000  (7,892) 45,108 
Software 3 years 2,922  (610) 2,312 

Total finite-lived intangibles 1,143,922  (148,894) 995,028 
Goodwill Indefinite 168,300  —  168,300 

Total goodwill and other intangibles $ 1,312,222  $ (148,894) $ 1,163,328 

The amortization of the Company’s brand name, customer relationships and software is recorded to Amortization of other intangible assets in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income. A portion of Amortization of patented formulations is capitalized to Inventory in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, and the remainder is
recorded to Amortization of patented formulations in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income. Amortization of the Company’s definite-lived
intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Amortization of patented formulations $ 8,345  $ 7,500  $ 7,989 

Amortization expense, brand name and customer relationships 40,730  40,730  40,730 
Amortization expense, software 738  552  59 

Amortization of other intangible assets 41,468  41,282  40,789 

Amortization of patented formulations capitalized to inventory $ 739  $ 1,566  $ 1,078 

The estimated future amortization expense related to the finite-lived intangible assets as of December 31, 2023 is as follows:
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Year ending December 31
2024 $ 52,274 
2025 $ 51,168 
2026 $ 50,359 
2027 $ 49,833 
2028 $ 49,830 
Thereafter $ 694,250 
Total $ 947,714 

NOTE 8 - ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 consisted of the following:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Accrued professional fees $ 4,133  $ 3,187 
Payroll liabilities 4,639  4,092 
Accrued freight 1,229  3,283 
Accrued advertising 6,348  1,356 
Deferred revenue 1,051  2,015 
Accrued interest 431  814 
Other accrued expenses and current liabilities 2,745  2,360 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 20,576  $ 17,107 

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM DEBT

The Company’s Long-Term Debt as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 consisted of the following:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Long-term debt

Credit Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2022 (the “2022 Credit Agreement”)
$675 Million 7-Year Senior Secured Term Loan Facility (the “2022 Term Loan Facility”) $ 663,188  $ 671,625 
$150 Million 5-Year Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility (the “2022 Revolver”) —  — 

Debt issuance costs (7,415) (8,854)
Total term loan debt 655,773  662,771 

Less: Current portion (6,750) (8,438)
Long-term debt, net of debt issuance costs and current portion $ 649,023  $ 654,333 

As of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company did not have any outstanding amounts drawn on the 2022 Revolver, including letters of credit and swingline loan sub-facilities. As of December 31,
2023, the Company had $150 million of available borrowing capacity under the 2022 Revolver.

The interest rate on outstanding debt under the 2022 Term Loan Facility was 9.0% per annum as of December 31, 2023. The interest rates for all facilities under the 2022 Credit
Agreement are calculated based upon the Company’s election among (a) adjusted term secured overnight financing rate (“SOFR”) (subject to a 0.50% floor with respect to the
2022 Term Loan Facility, and a 0% floor with respect to the 2022 Revolver) plus an additional interest rate spread, (b) with respect to a borrowing in Euros under the 2022
Revolver, a euro interbank offered rate (subject to a 0% floor) plus an additional interest rate spread, or (c) an “Alternate Base Rate” (as defined in the 2022 Credit Agreement)
(subject to a 1.50% floor with respect to the 2022 Term Loan Facility, and a 1.00% floor with respect to the 2022 Revolver) plus an additional interest rate spread.

(1)

(1) 
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Interest expense, net of interest income and inclusive of debt amortization, for the year ended December  31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 was $39,126, $41,178 and $61,148,
respectively.

The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is based on the market value of its long-term debt instrument. Based on the inputs used to value the long-term debt, the
Company’s long-term debt is categorized within Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. As of December 31, 2023, the carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company’s
long-term debt was $655.8 million and $615.1 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2022, the carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company’s long-term debt
was $662.8 million and $624.6 million, respectively.

Olaplex Holdings, Inc. and each of its wholly owned subsidiaries that are direct or indirect parent companies of Olaplex, Inc. are holding companies with no other meaningful
operations, cash flows, assets or liabilities other than (i) the equity interests in Olaplex Inc. and (ii) with respect to Olaplex Holdings, Inc., liabilities associated with the
Company's Tax Receivable Agreement. See “Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies”.

2020 Credit Agreement

On January 8, 2020, Olaplex, Inc., together with Penelope Intermediate Corp. acting as the parent guarantor, entered into a secured credit agreement (the “Original Credit
Agreement”), consisting of a $450.0 million term loan facility (the “2020 Term Loan Facility”) and a $50.0 million revolving facility (the “2020 Revolver”), which included a
$10.0 million letter of credit sub-facility and a $5.0 million swingline loan sub-facility. In addition, on December 18, 2020, Olaplex, Inc. entered into a First Incremental
Amendment to the Original Credit Agreement (the “Amendment,” and together with the Original Credit Agreement, the “2020 Credit Agreement”) to increase the 2020 Term
Loan Facility by $350.0 million and increase the 2020 Revolver capacity by $1.0 million to a revised $800.0 million 2020 Term Loan Facility and $51.0 million 2020 Revolver.
The 2020 Credit Agreement was fully repaid and refinanced by the 2022 Credit Agreement. The unused balance of the 2020 Revolver as of December 31, 2021 was
$51.0 million.

Under the Original Credit Agreement, Olaplex, Inc. incurred original issue discount (“OID”) costs of $10.0  million, and $0.53  million of third-party issuance costs. In
connection with the incremental borrowing pursuant to the Amendment, Olaplex, Inc. incurred OID costs of $3.5 million and $1.6 million of third-party issue costs.

The 2020 Credit Agreement included reporting, financial, and maintenance covenants that require, among other things, for Olaplex, Inc. to comply with certain maximum
secured leverage ratios, which Olaplex, Inc. was in compliance with on December 31, 2021. Substantially all the assets of Olaplex, Inc. constituted collateral under the 2020
Term Loan Facility and 2020 Revolver facilities.

2022 Credit Agreement

On February 23, 2022, Olaplex, Inc., an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Olaplex Holdings, Inc., together with Penelope Intermediate Corp. acting as the parent guarantor,
entered into a Credit Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2022 (the “2022 Credit Agreement”), by and among Olaplex, Inc., Penelope Intermediate Corp, Goldman Sachs Bank
USA (“Goldman Sachs”), as administrative agent (the “Administrative Agent”), collateral agent and swingline lender, and each lender and issuing bank from time to time party
thereto (the “Lenders”). The 2022 Credit Agreement refinanced and replaced the 2020 Credit Agreement with a seven-year $675.0 million senior-secured term loan facility (the
“2022 Term Loan Facility”) and a five-year $150.0 million senior-secured revolving credit facility (the “2022 Revolver”), which includes a $25.0 million letter of credit sub-
facility and a $25.0 million swingline loan sub-facility.

The refinancing of the 2020 Credit Agreement resulted in recognition of loss on extinguishment of debt of $18.8 million which is comprised of $11.0 million in deferred
financing fee write off, and $7.8 million of prepayment fees for the 2020 Credit Agreement. We incurred costs directly related to the 2022 Credit Agreement of $11.9 million,
consisting primarily of lender fees of $1.7 million and third-party fees of $10.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2022. These fees were allocated between the 2022
Revolver and the 2022 Term Loan Facility. 2022 Term Loan Facility fees are capitalized and recorded as a reduction of the carrying amount of non-current debt, and 2022
Revolver fees are capitalized and recorded as Other Assets on the balance sheet.

The 2022 Term Loan Facility bears interest at a rate of one-month adjusted SOFR + initially 3.75% per annum (with a 0.25% leverage based step-down, tied to achieving a first
lien net leverage ratio of 1.20x), and matures on February 23, 2029. The 2022 Revolver bears interest at a rate of adjusted SOFR for dollar denominated borrowings + initially
3.75% (with a 0.25% leverage based step-down, tied to achieving a first lien net leverage ratio of 1.20x), and matures on February 23, 2027. The 2022 Term Loan Facility is
repayable in mandatory quarterly installments equal to $1,688, with the balance payable at maturity. The 2022 Term Loan Facility and 2022 Revolver can each be prepaid at
any time without any penalty or premium (subject to any applicable breakage costs). The 2022 Term Loan Facility is subject to customary mandatory prepayments with respect
to excess cash flow,
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net proceeds from non-ordinary course asset dispositions and the issuance of additional non-permitted debt or certain refinancing debt, in each case as set forth in the 2022
Credit Agreement.

The 2022 Credit Agreement contains a number of covenants that, among other things, restrict Olaplex, Inc.’s ability to (subject to certain exceptions) (i) pay dividends and
distributions or repurchase its capital stock, (ii) prepay, redeem, or repurchase certain indebtedness, (iii) incur additional indebtedness and guarantee indebtedness, (iv) create or
incur liens, (v) engage in mergers, consolidations, liquidations or dissolutions, (vi) sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of assets, (vii) make investments, acquisitions, loans or
advances and (viii) enter into certain transactions with affiliates. The 2022 Credit Agreement also includes, among other things, customary affirmative covenants (including
reporting covenants) and events of default (including a change of control) for facilities of this type. In addition, the 2022 Credit Agreement includes a springing first lien
leverage ratio financial covenant, which is applicable only to the lenders under the 2022 Revolver. Such affirmative and negative covenants and events of default are
substantially similar to those contained in the 2020 Credit Agreement, subject to certain exceptions and thresholds set forth in the 2022 Credit Agreement. The Company was in
compliance with these affirmative and negative covenants on December 31, 2023.

The 2022 Term Loan Facility and the 2022 Revolver are secured by substantially all of the assets of Olaplex, Inc. and the other guarantors, subject to certain exceptions and
thresholds, which is substantially the same as the collateral that secured the obligations under the 2020 Credit Agreement.

Olaplex, Inc. must pay the Administrative Agent, on account of the Lenders under the 2022 Revolver, a quarterly commitment fee based upon the product of (i) the applicable
rate as described below and (ii) the average daily amount of the unused revolving commitments. Olaplex, Inc. also must pay the issuing banks customary fees based upon the
amount available to be drawn under such letters of credit.

The applicable rate for the commitment fee described in the immediately preceding paragraph is equal to (x) 0.50% if the First Lien Leverage Ratio is greater than 1.20:1.00,
(y) 0.375% if the First Lien Leverage Ratio is less than or equal to 1.20:1.00 but greater than 0.70:1.00, and (z) 0.25% if the First Lien Leverage Ratio is less than or equal to
0.70:1.00.

Interest Rate Cap Transaction

The Company’s results are subject to risk from interest rate fluctuations on borrowings under the 2022 Credit Agreement, including the 2022 Term Loan Facility. The Company
may, from time to time, utilize interest rate derivatives in an effort to add stability to interest expense and to manage its exposure to interest rate movements. On August 11,
2022, the Company entered into an interest rate cap transaction in connection with the 2022 Term Loan Facility, with a notional amount of $400 million. The interest rate cap
expires on July 31, 2024. Fair value and the related classification of the Company’s interest rate cap is discussed in Note 6 - Fair Value Measurement.

During the year ended December  31, 2023, the Company’s interest rate cap generated an unrecognized pre-tax loss of $1.8 million, recorded in Accumulated other
comprehensive income on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. During the same period, the Company also recognized a $4.2 million reduction in interest expense
related to the Company’s receipt of funds as a result of an interest rate cap settlement with the Company’s counterparty, partially offset by $1.1 million of interest expense
related to amortization of the interest rate cap premium paid by the Company in connection with the interest rate cap.

During the year ended December  31, 2022, the Company’s interest rate cap generated an unrecognized pre-tax gain of $3.4 million, recorded in Accumulated other
comprehensive income on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. During the same period, the Company also recognized Interest expense of $0.4 million related to
amortization of the interest rate cap premium paid by the Company in connection with the interest rate cap.

The Company performed an initial effectiveness assessment on the interest rate cap and determined it to be an effective hedge of the cash flows related to the interest rate
payments on the 2022 Term Loan Facility. The hedge is evaluated qualitatively on a quarterly basis for effectiveness. Changes in fair value are recorded in Accumulated other
comprehensive income and periodic settlements of the interest rate cap will be recorded in Interest expense, net along with the interest on amounts outstanding under the 2022
Term Loan Facility. Payment of the up-front premium of the interest rate cap is included within Other assets and liabilities within cash flows from operating activities on the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

The Company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes, nor does it hold or issue leveraged derivative instruments. By using derivative
financial instruments to hedge exposures to interest rate fluctuations, the Company exposes itself to counterparty credit risk. The Company manages exposure to counterparty
credit risk by entering into derivative financial instruments with highly rated institutions that can be expected to fully perform under the terms of the applicable contracts.
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NOTE 10 - INCOME TAXES

The Company’s breakdown of its income before provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
U.S. $ 76,580  $ 305,192  $ 275,554 
Foreign 140  49  55 

Total income before taxes $ 76,720  $ 305,241  $ 275,609 

The components of the provision for income taxes were as follows:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Current provision:

Federal $ 10,701  $ 44,063  $ 44,660 
State & Local 2,618  7,918  7,668 
Foreign 40  9  11 

Total current provision 13,359  51,990  52,339 
Deferred provision:

Federal 1,395  8,172  2,772 
State & Local 379  1,007  (286)
Foreign —  —  — 

Total deferred provision 1,774  9,179  2,486 
Total provision for income taxes $ 15,133  $ 61,169  $ 54,825 

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Deferred Tax Assets: December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022
Inventory adjustments $ 4,248  $ 1,289 
Capitalized transaction costs 2,301  2,667 
Deferred revenue 150  424 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 4,264  3,488 
Capitalized research & development expense 2,249  1,273 
Interest expense limitation 3,297  — 
Lease liability 473  — 
Share-based compensation 2,307  1,380 
Other 176  — 

Total deferred tax assets $ 19,465  $ 10,521 

Deferred tax liabilities:
Intangible assets $ 10,128  $ 2,484 
Goodwill 9,128  6,962 
Other current assets 1,175  1,141 
Fixed assets 1,169  769 
Right of use asset 473  — 
Unrealized gain on derivatives 408  787 

Total deferred tax liabilities 22,481  12,143 
Net deferred tax (liabilities) assets $ (3,016) $ (1,622)
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The following table provides a reconciliation between the U.S. federal statutory rate and the Company’s effective tax rates for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and
2021:

December 31, 2023 December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
U.S. federal statutory income tax rate 21.0 % 21.0 % 21.0 %
Foreign derived intangible income deduction (3.9)% (2.9)% (3.0)%
State and local income taxes, net of federal benefit 4.0 % 2.3 % 2.6 %
Share-based compensation (0.1)% (0.4)% (1.2)%
Tax Receivable Agreement (2.0)% (0.2)% (0.3)%
Other 0.7 % 0.2 % 0.8 %

Effective Tax Rate 19.7 % 20.0 % 19.9 %

In 2023, the effective tax rate was lower than the U.S. Federal statutory tax rate primarily due to the foreign derived intangible income (“FDII”) deduction, and the non-taxable
income associated with the Tax Receivable Agreement, partially offset by the effect of state and local income taxes. The FDII deduction results in income from the Company’s
sales to foreign customers being taxed at a lower effective tax rate. In 2022 and 2021 the effective tax rate was lower than the U.S. federal statutory tax rate primarily due to the
FDII deduction and excess tax benefits associated with share-based compensation, partially offset by the effect of state and local income taxes.

The Company assesses positive and negative evidence for each jurisdiction to determine whether it is more likely than not that existing deferred tax assets will be realized. As
of December 31, 2023 and 2022, no valuation allowance was recorded as the Company has concluded that its net deferred tax assets are more likely than not to be realized.

The Company recognizes the tax benefit of an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the position is sustainable upon examination by the taxing authority
based on the technical merits. The Company had no uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and does not expect any significant change in its unrecognized
tax benefits within the next 12 months.

In the normal course of business, the Company and its subsidiaries may be examined by various taxing authorities, including the U.S. Internal Revenue Service. As of
December 31, 2023, the Company remained subject to examination in the U.S. and the U.K. for the 2020 through 2023 tax years.

Tax Receivable Agreement

During the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had a net payment to the Pre-IPO Stockholders of $16.6 million and $4.2 million, respectively, as required
pursuant to the terms of the Tax Receivable Agreement. The tax liability is calculated based on current tax laws and the assumption that the Company and its subsidiaries earn
sufficient taxable income to realize the full tax benefits subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement. Updates to the Company’s blended state tax rate, allocation of U.S. versus
foreign sourced income and changes in tax rules on the amortization and depreciation of assets may significantly impact the established liability and changes would be recorded
to other (expense) income in the period the Company made the determination. The Company expects that future payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement relating to the
Pre-IPO Tax Assets could aggregate to $198.2 million over the 12-year remaining period under the Tax Receivable Agreement. Payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement,
which began in fiscal year 2022, are not conditioned upon the parties’ continued ownership of equity in the Company.

The Tax Receivable Agreement payment obligation was recorded as of September 30, 2021 as a non-current liability of $232.9 million on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, with
a corresponding decrease in Additional paid-in capital. During the fourth quarters of 2023, 2022 and 2021, the Company recognized other income of $7.4 million, $3.1 million
and $3.6 million, respectively, for reductions to the liability for the Tax Receivable Agreement resulting primarily from an update to the blended state income tax rate and a
decrease in the effective federal tax rate used to measure the obligation. The decrease in the effective federal tax rate was due to an increase in the portion of federal taxable
income that is eligible for the FDII deduction. The adjusted liability as of December 31, 2023 is recorded as $198.2 million, of which $185.5 million was recorded in long term
liabilities and $12.7 million was recorded in current liabilities. The adjusted liability as of December 31, 2022 was recorded as $222.1 million, of which $205.7 million was
recorded in long term liabilities and $16.4 million was recorded in current liabilities.

NOTE 11 – SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

2021 Equity Incentive Plan

On September 17, 2021, the Company adopted the Olaplex Holdings 2021 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan (the “2021 Plan”), which provides for the grant of incentive stock
options, non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock,
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unrestricted stock, stock units, including restricted stock units, performance awards, and other stock-based awards to employees, directors and consultants of the Company and
its subsidiaries. The number of shares of common stock originally authorized under the 2021 Plan (subject to adjustment as described in the next paragraph below) was
92,292,025 shares of common stock, plus the number of shares of common stock underlying awards granted under the Penelope Holdings Corp. 2020 Omnibus Equity
Incentive Plan (the “2020 Plan”) that on or after September 17, 2021 expire or become unexercisable, are forfeited to, or repurchased for cash by, the Company, are settled in
cash, or otherwise become available again for grant. As of December 31, 2023, a total of 111,794,766 shares have been authorized for issuance under the 2020 Plan and 2021
Plan, with 70,512,560 shares available for issuance under the 2021 Plan and no shares available for issuance under the 2020 Plan.

The total number of shares of common stock of the Company available for issuance under the 2021 Plan will increase automatically on January 1 of each year beginning in
2023 and continuing through and including 2031 by the lesser of (i) three percent (3%) of the number of shares of common stock outstanding as of such date and (ii) the
number of shares of common stock determined by the Company’s Board of Directors on or prior to such date for such year. The number of shares available for issuance under
the 2021 Plan will not be increased by any shares of common stock delivered under the 2021 Plan that are subsequently repurchased using proceeds directly attributable to
stock option exercises.

2020 Equity Incentive Plan

On August 2, 2023, the Company adopted the Amended and Restated 2020 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan, effective September 27, 2021, which amended and restated the
2020 Plan solely to reflect the Reorganization Transactions and the assumption by the Company of the 2020 Plan.

Prior to the IPO and the Reorganization Transactions, Penelope previously granted share-based options to purchase common stock of Penelope under the 2020 Plan with
vesting based on either service or market (performance) conditions. Immediately prior to the Reorganization Transactions, each option to purchase shares of common stock of
Penelope was converted into an option to purchase 675 shares of common stock of Olaplex Holdings, with a corresponding adjustment to the option’s exercise price to preserve
its spread value, and each cash-settled unit of Penelope was converted to 675 cash-settled units of Olaplex Holdings, with a corresponding adjustment to the unit’s base price to
preserve its spread value, as further described in this Note 11. No further awards will be made under the 2020 Plan.

Converted Cash-Settled Units

On February 23, 2022 (the “modification date”), the Company modified the settlement terms of its outstanding unvested time- and performance-based cash-settled units from
net cash settlement to net stock-settled stock appreciation rights (“SARs”). In addition, the vesting condition that the weighted average closing price per share over the thirty
(30) consecutive trading days ending on the day immediately prior to the applicable vesting date equals or exceeds the IPO price of $21 on each applicable vesting date was
removed for such SARs. Under the amended award agreements, the Company will settle all vested SARs with shares of Company common stock measured as the difference
between the stock price on the date of settlement and the base price per share of $2.97. All performance conditions were removed concurrently with the modification of the
settlement terms. Other terms of the SAR grants remain unchanged. The modification results in a change of the awards’ classification from liability to equity.

The modified awards were accounted for as equity awards going forward from the modification date with a fair value measured on the modification date and recognized on a
straight-line basis over the remaining requisite service period. The Company compared the fair value of the awards granted immediately before the modification date to the fair
value of the modified awards and determined there was no change in the fair value at the modification date. Performance awards prior to the modification date were not
expensed, given they were contingent upon achieving a market condition, until such market condition was achieved. Therefore, on the modification date, the Company
reclassified the amounts previously recorded as a share-based compensation liability to a component of equity in the form of a credit to additional paid-in capital (“APIC”). As
of the modification date, the Company converted 585,900 time-based and 301,050 market and performance-based cash-settled units into solely time-based stock-settled SARs.
For the period through the modification date, the Company had recognized $1,632 as compensation expense in selling, general, and administrative expenses in the consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive income with a corresponding recording to liability which was reclassified to APIC on the modification date.

On the modification date, the Company used the Black-Scholes valuation model in determining the fair value of the outstanding SARs, which required the application of certain
assumptions, including the expected life of the SARs, stock price volatility, dividend rate and risk-free interest rate. The assumptions used in determining the fair value of the
SARs on the modification date were as follows:
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Time-Based Market and Performance-Based
Expected term (in years) 2.50 1.85
Expected volatility 30 % 30 %
Risk-free interest rate 1.68 % 1.58 %
Expected dividend yield —  — 
Share price on valuation date $ 17.06  $ 17.06 

These modified SARs are included in the weighted average diluted shares outstanding calculation set forth below in “Note 15 – Net Income Per Share”. Through the
modification date, the Company recognized a recovery of cash-settled expense of $974 as a result of decline in the fair value of the awards since December 31, 2021.

IPO Option Grants

In connection with the IPO, the Company granted, under the 2021 Plan, time-based options to purchase an aggregate of 351,058 shares of common stock of the Company to
certain employees. The options are eligible to vest in four equal installments on the first four anniversaries of the grant date, subject to the option holder’s continued service
through the applicable vesting date and are ratably expensed over a four-year service period from the grant date.

Outstanding Option Grants and SARs

As of December 31, 2023, there were outstanding options to purchase an aggregate of 15,786,501 shares, with 5,639,748 shares outstanding issued under the 2021 Plan and
10,146,753 shares outstanding issued under the 2020 Plan. As of December  31, 2023, there were forfeited options to purchase an aggregate of 14,736,290 shares, with
12,373,790 options forfeited under the 2021 Plan and 2,362,500 options forfeited under the 2020 Plan.

The following tables summarize the stock options, cash-settled units and stock-settled SARs activity for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022:

Time-based options and stock-settled SARs Performance-based options
Cash-settled units converted to stock-

settled SARs
Number of options
and stock-settled

SARs

Weighted Average
Exercise Price Per

Share
Aggregate Intrinsic

Value Number of options

Weighted Average
Exercise Price Per

Share
Aggregate Intrinsic

Value Time based Performance based

Outstanding at December
31, 2022 41,023,493  $ 1.46  $ 162,748  3,773,876  $ 1.06  $ 15,034  —  — 

Granted 4,334,788  2.58  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Cancelled/Forfeited (9,923,410) 1.18  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Options Exercised and
Issued for Shares (7,516,627) 0.91  32,185  (3,013,781) 0.84  6,727  —  — 

Options Withheld and
Cancelled (12,782,218) 0.76  —  —  —  —  —  — 

SARS Exercised (26,119) 2.97  186  —  —  —  —  — 
SARs Withheld and
Cancelled (83,501) 2.97  —  —  —  —  —  — 

Outstanding at December
31, 2023 15,026,406  $ 2.35  $ 9,009  760,095  $ 2.03  $ 601  —  — 

Vested and Exercisable 4,083,463  $ 3.04  $ 3,631  760,095  $ 2.03  $ 601  —  — 
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Time-based options and stock-settled SARs Performance-based options
Cash-settled units converted to stock-

settled SARs
Number of options
and stock-settled

SARs

Weighted Average
Exercise Price Per

Share
Aggregate Intrinsic

Value Number of options

Weighted Average
Exercise Price Per

Share
Aggregate Intrinsic

Value Time based Performance based

Outstanding at December
31, 2021 42,687,518  $ 1.24  $ 798,404  3,979,461  $ 1.17  $ 111,278  596,700  306,450 

Granted 1,030,000  8.83  —  —  —  —  —  — 
Cancelled/Forfeited (2,382,500) 1.19  —  —  —  —  (10,800) (5,400)
Converted Cash Settled
Units 886,950  2.97  —  —  —  —  (585,900) (301,050)

Options Exercised and
Issued for Shares (984,095) 1.26  5,280  (205,585) 3.12  2,274  —  — 

SARS Exercised (107,658) 2.97  2,243  —  —  —  —  — 
SARs Withheld and
Cancelled (106,722) 2.97  —  —  —  —  —  — 

Outstanding at December
31, 2022 41,023,493  $ 1.46  $ 162,748  3,773,876  $ 1.06  $ 15,034  —  — 

Vested and Exercisable 13,595,012  $ 1.07  $ 58,178  3,773,876  $ 1.06  $ 15,034  —  — 

The total fair value of options vested during the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 was $5,346 and $3,367, respectively. The intrinsic value represents the difference
between the fair value of the Company’s common stock on the date of exercise and the exercise price of each option.

Restricted Stock Units

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company issued time-based restricted stock units (“RSUs”) to its non-employee directors pursuant to the 2021 Plan. The RSUs
granted to the Company’s non-employee directors vest on the first anniversary of the date of grant, subject to the non-employee director’s continued service through such date.
Upon vesting, one share of the Company’s common stock is issued for each RSU. The fair value of each RSU granted is equal to the market price of the Company's stock at the
date of grant, and expense is recognized straight line over the vesting period.

Additionally during the year ended December 31, 2023 the Company issued RSUs to eligible employees. The vesting period of these awards range from one to four years.
Upon vesting, one share of the Company’s common stock is issued for each RSU. The fair value of each RSU granted is equal to the market price of the Company's stock at the
date of grant, and expense is recognized straight line over the vesting period.

The table below summarizes the status of the Company’s time-based RSUs activity for the year ended December 31, 2023;
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Time-based restricted stock units

Number of Awards

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair Value

Per Share

Unvested Shares at December 31, 2022 83,964  $ 17.27 
Granted 7,126,999  3.00 
Vested (83,964) 17.27 
Forfeited (312,642) 3.78 
Outstanding at December 31, 2023 6,814,357  $ 2.96 

The following table summarizes share-based compensation expense and the weighted average grant date fair value of options granted for the years ended December 31, 2023,
2022 and 2021:

Year Ended
December 31,

2023
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021

Share-based compensation expense $ 9,072  $ 7,275  $ 3,963 
Unrecognized compensation costs of stock options 13,015  17,968  11,638 
Unrecognized compensation costs of restricted stock unit awards 16,816  795  — 
Weighted average remaining recognition period, time-based options (years) 1.51 years 2.48 years 3.31 years
Weighted average remaining recognition period, performance-based options (years) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Weighted average remaining recognition period, RSU Awards (years) 0.60 0.55 0.00

The fair value of time-based options granted was calculated using the following assumptions during the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021:

Year Ended
December 31,

2023
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021

Expected term (years) 6.25 6.25 6.25 - 7.00

Expected volatility (%) 38 - 40 37 - 42 25 - 30

Risk-free interest rate (%) 4.22 - 4.26 1.58 - 2.82 1.07 - 1.62
Expected dividend yield (%) —  —  — 

The Company did not grant any performance-based options during the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. The fair value of performance-based options granted were
calculated using the following assumptions during the years ended December 31 2021:

Year Ended
December 31,

2023
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021

Expected term (years) 0.00 0.00 0.40

Expected volatility (%) —  —  30

Risk-free interest rate (%) —  —  1.48 - 1.62

Expected dividend yield (%) —  —  49

The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to calculate value of stock options were:

Expected term

The expected term of the options represents the period of time that the options are expected to be outstanding. Options granted have a maximum contractual life of 10 years.
Prior to the IPO, the Company estimated the expected term of the option based on the estimated timing of potential liquidity events. For grants upon or after the IPO, the
Company estimated the expected term based upon the simplified method described in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, as the Company does not have sufficient
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historical exercise data to provide a reasonable basis upon which to estimate expected term due to the limited period of time its equity shares have been publicly traded.

Expected volatility

As the Company does not have sufficient trading history for its common stock, the expected stock price volatility for the common stock was estimated by taking the average
historic price volatility for certain industry peers based on daily price observations over a period equivalent to the expected term of the stock option grants. Industry peers
consist of several public companies within the same industry.

The Company intends to continue to consistently apply this process using the same or similar set of industry peers until a sufficient amount of historical information regarding
the volatility of its own share price becomes available, or unless circumstances change such that the identified companies are no longer similar to the Company, in which case,
more suitable companies whose share prices are publicly available would be used in the calculation.

Risk-free interest rate

The risk-free interest rate was based on the U.S. Constant Maturity Treasury rate, with maturities similar to the expected term.

Expected dividend yield

The Company does not anticipate paying any dividends in the foreseeable future. As such, the Company uses an expected dividend yield of zero.

NOTE 12 - EQUITY

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company issued 109,620 shares of its common stock upon vesting and settlement of net stock-settled SARs. The Company
withheld 83,501 of such shares of its common stock for the net settlement of SARs for payment of exercise price and taxes related to such SARs, which were accounted for as a
share retirement.

Additionally, during the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company issued 23,396,654 shares of its common stock as a result of stock options exercised. The Company
withheld 12,782,218 of such shares of its common stock for the net settlement payment of exercise price and taxes related to options exercised, which were accounted for as a
share retirement.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company converted 886,950 cash-settled units into SARs, with a fair value liability of $1,632 and reclassified from Accrued
expenses and other current liabilities to additional paid-in capital. The Company issued 214,380 shares of its common stock upon vesting and settlement of net stock-settled
SARs. The Company withheld 106,722 of such shares of its common stock for the net settlement of SARs for payments of exercise price and taxes related to such SARs, which
were accounted for as a share retirement.

Additionally, during the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company issued 1,189,681 shares of its common stock as a result of stock options exercised.

NOTE 13 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In July 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with CI&T, an information technology and software company, in which certain investment funds affiliated with Advent
International L.P., the holder of a majority of the Company’s common stock (collectively the “Advent Funds”), hold a greater than 10% equity interest. During the fiscal years
ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, the Company paid CI&T $12, $367, and $195 respectively, for services related to the development, maintenance and enhancement
of the Olaplex professional application, as well as other digital marketing services, all of which were negotiated on an arm’s length basis and on market terms.

Tax Receivable Agreement

In connection with the Reorganization Transactions, the Company entered into the Tax Receivable Agreement with the Pre-IPO Stockholders. See further discussion in “Note 2
– Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – Tax Receivable Agreement”. During the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company made a payment to the Pre-
IPO Stockholders of $16.6 million and $4.2 million, respectively as required pursuant to the terms of the Tax Receivable Agreement.

NOTE 14 - CONTINGENCIES

From time to time, the Company is subject to various legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. The Company cannot predict with reasonable assurance the
outcome of these legal actions brought against the Company as they are subject to uncertainties. Accordingly, any settlement or resolution in these legal actions may occur and
affect the Company’s net income in such period as the settlement or resolution.

Pending Legal Proceedings:
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On November 17, 2022, a putative securities class action was filed against the Company and certain of its current and former officers and directors in the United States District
Court for the Central District of California, captioned Lilien v. Olaplex Holdings, Inc. et al., No. 2:22-cv-08395. A consolidated complaint was filed on April 28, 2023, which
names as additional defendants the underwriters for the Company’s IPO and various stockholders that sold shares of common stock of the Company in the IPO. The action is
brought on behalf of a putative class of purchasers of the Company’s common stock in or traceable to the Company’s IPO and asserts claims under Sections 11, 12, and 15 of
the Securities Act of 1933. The action seeks certification of the putative class, compensatory damages, attorneys’ fees and costs, and any other relief that the court determines is
appropriate. The defendants moved to dismiss the consolidated complaint on July 19, 2023. The court held a hearing on the defendants’ motions to dismiss on October 16,
2023, and a decision has yet to be issued. The underwriter defendants have notified the Company of their intent to seek indemnification from the Company pursuant to the IPO
underwriting agreement regarding the claims asserted in this action. The Company intends to vigorously defend the pending lawsuit.

On November 15, 2023, a purported derivative action was filed against the Company, Advent International Corporation, and certain of the Company’s current and former
officers and directors in the United States District Court for the Central District of California, captioned Ciuffo v. Dagousset, et al., No. 2:23-cv-09712-SVW-SK. This action is
premised on allegations similar to those asserted in the Lilien federal securities litigation. On February 1, 2024, the parties filed a joint stipulation to stay the purported
derivative action pending a decision on the motions to dismiss filed in the Lilien federal securities action.

On February 9, 2023, twenty-eight plaintiffs filed Albahae, et al. v. Olaplex Holdings, Inc., et al., No. 2:23-cv-00982, a complaint alleging personal and economic injury and
asserting claims for breach of warranty, negligence/gross negligence, products liability, unjust enrichment, and violations of California False Advertising Law and Unfair
Competition Law, against the Company and Cosway Company, Inc., the Company’s primary contract manufacturer, in the United States District Court for the Central District
of California. On March 2, 2023, the plaintiffs amended the complaint to include seventy-three additional plaintiffs. The plaintiffs allege that certain ingredients used in some
Company products have purportedly caused irritation or posed a hazard to consumers, and that the Company engaged in misrepresentation with respect to those products. The
plaintiffs seek actual and consequential damages, punitive damages, restitution in the form of disgorgement of profits, attorneys’ fees and costs, and any other relief that the
court determines is appropriate. On April 17, 2023, the Company moved to dismiss and to sever the plaintiffs’ claims. On July 11, 2023, the Court granted the Company’s
motion to sever and dismissed all but the first named plaintiff. The Court also dismissed the operative complaint with leave to re-file on the grounds that it now contained
allegations that were not relevant to the claims of the one, remaining plaintiff. On July 24, 2023, the remaining plaintiff filed a notice, voluntarily dismissing her claims without
prejudice. As of the date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements, none of the plaintiffs have re-filed their claims.

Any potential loss associated with these pending legal proceedings is not probable or reasonably estimable at this time.

As of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, the Company was not subject to any other currently pending legal matters or claims that could have a material adverse effect
on its financial position, results of operations, or cash flows should such litigation be resolved unfavorably. During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company expensed
approximately $14,250 included in selling, general and administrative costs in the accompanying consolidated financial statements associated with the amounts paid by the
Company in connection with the final resolution of certain litigation and contingency matters involving a predecessor entity to the Company, as required pursuant to the
purchase agreement with respect to the 2020 acquisition of the legacy Olaplex business.
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NOTE 15 – NET INCOME PER SHARE

The following is a reconciliation of the numerator and denominator in the basic and diluted net income per common share computations:
Year Ended

December 31,
2023

December 31,
2022

December 31,
2021

Numerator:
Net income $ 61,587  $ 244,072  $ 220,784 

Denominator:
Weighted average common shares outstanding – basic 654,592,923  649,092,846  648,166,472 
Dilutive common equivalent shares from equity options and awards 22,985,322  41,913,000  41,757,320 
Weighted average common shares outstanding – diluted 677,578,245  691,005,846  689,923,792 

Net income per share:
Basic $ 0.09  $ 0.38  $ 0.34 
Diluted $ 0.09  $ 0.35  $ 0.32 

Options to purchase 4,372,562, 1,194,967 and zero shares of the Company’s common stock for the twelve months ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, were not included
in the computation of diluted net income per share because the exercise prices of these options were greater than the average market price per share of the Company’s common
stock for the applicable period, and therefore would have been anti-dilutive.
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NOTE 16 - CONDENSED PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Condensed Financial Statements of Olaplex Holdings, Inc. (parent company only) are presented below:

OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.

SCHEDULE I - PARENT COMPANY CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET

(amounts in thousands, except shares)

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022*

Assets
Investment in subsidiaries $ 1,058,308  $ 998,751 
Prepaid expenses 146  — 
Income tax receivable —  4,464 
Deferred income tax asset 446  436 

Total assets $ 1,058,900  $ 1,003,651 

Liabilities and stockholders' equity
Current Liabilities:
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 2,435  $ 639 
Due to affiliates 13,326  — 
Current portion of Related Party payable pursuant to Tax Receivable Agreement 12,675  16,380 
Total current liabilities 28,436  17,019 
Related Party payable pursuant to Tax Receivable Agreement 185,496  205,675 

Total liabilities 213,932  222,694 

Stockholders' equity:
Common stock, $0.001 par value per share; 2,000,000,000 shares authorized, 660,731,935 and 650,091,380 shares issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively

671  649 

Additional paid-in capital 475,079  471,465 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 1,365  2,577 
Retained Earnings 367,853  306,266 

Total stockholders' equity 844,968  780,957 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 1,058,900  $ 1,003,651 

*See Note 1. Basis of Presentation for Condensed Financial Information (Schedule 1)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Condensed Financial Information (Schedule I)
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OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.

SCHEDULE I- PARENT COMPANY CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(amounts in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2023

Year Ended December 31,
2022

Year Ended December 31,
2021

Operating expenses:
Selling, general, and administrative expenses $ 6,580  $ 4,723  $ 9,857 
Stock compensation expenses 1,800  960  315 

Total operating expenses 8,380  5,683  10,172 
Interest expense 195  —  — 
Other income

Tax receivable agreement liability adjustment 7,404  3,084  3,615 
Equity in undistributed earnings 60,768  245,001  67,531 

Total other income 68,172  248,085  71,146 
Income before benefit for income taxes 59,597  242,402  60,974 

Income tax (expense) benefit 1,990  1,671  1,220 
Net income 61,587  244,073  62,194 
Comprehensive income $ 61,587  $ 244,073  $ 62,194 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Condensed Financial Information (Schedule I)

79



OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.

SCHEDULE I - PARENT COMPANY CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(amounts in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2023

Year Ended December 31,
2022*

Year Ended December 31,
2021

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 61,587  $ 244,073  $ 62,194 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operations
provided by operating activities:

Equity in undistributed earnings (60,768) (245,001) (67,531)
Tax receivable agreement liability adjustment (7,404) (3,084) (3,615)
Share-based compensation expense 1,800  960  315 
Deferred income tax asset (11) (239) (197)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of
acquisition:

Prepaid expenses (146) —  — 
Income taxes 5,754  (9,369) 4,906 
Accrued and other current liabilities 507  (465) 1,105 
Due to Affiliates 20,598  6,262  — 
Other assets and liabilities (29) (4,140) — 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 21,888  (11,003) (2,823)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Due from affiliates —  —  1,685 
Distribution of earnings from subsidiaries —  9,901  — 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 4,974  1,876  1,138 
Payment to pre-IPO stockholders pursuant to tax receivable agreement (16,452) —  — 
Payment related to shares withheld and retired to cover tax
withholding obligations for options

(10,346) —  — 

Payment related to shares withheld and retired to cover tax
withholding obligation for SARs

(64) (774) — 

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (21,888) 11,003  2,823 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents —  —  — 
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period —  —  — 
Cash and cash equivalents - end of period $ —  $ —  $ — 
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:

Increase in Related Party payable pursuant to Tax Receivable
Agreement

$ —  $ —  $ 232,893 

*See Note 1. Basis of Presentation for Condensed Financial Information (Schedule 1)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Condensed Financial Information (Schedule I)
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OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE 1.

(amounts in thousands, except shares)

1. Basis of Presentation

Olaplex Holdings, Inc. (“Olaplex Holdings”) was incorporated on June 8, 2021 as a Delaware corporation and is a holding company with no direct operations. Olaplex
Holdings conducts substantially all of its operations through its investment in Olaplex, Inc., its wholly owned indirect subsidiary. These statements should be read in
conjunction with Olaplex Holdings Consolidated Financial Statements and notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. There are significant restrictions over
Olaplex Holdings’ ability to obtain funds from its subsidiaries through dividends, loans or advances as contained in the 2022 Credit Agreement. These condensed parent
company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Rule 12-04, Schedule I of Regulation S-X, as the restricted net assets of Olaplex Holdings subsidiaries
under the 2022 Credit Agreement exceeds 25 percent of the consolidated net assets of Olaplex Holdings. See Note 9 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Restatement of 2022 Parent Company Condensed Balance Sheet

Subsequent to the issuance of the Company’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company identified classification errors in the Parent Company
Condensed Financial Statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022 relative to the amounts included in the Parent Company Condensed Balance Sheet. Certain
transactions previously disclosed within Stockholders’ equity should have been reflected within Investment in subsidiary, Due from affiliates, Income tax receivable, Accrued
expenses and Other current liabilities, and Due to affiliates within the Parent Company Condensed Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2022. Further, there were corresponding
classification errors affecting the Parent Company Condensed Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2022 arising from the classification errors identified in
the Parent Company Condensed Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2022. Although the Company concluded that these errors were not material, either individually or in the
aggregate, the Company elected to revise its previously issued Parent Company Condensed Financial Statements to correct for these misstatements.

The revision to the accompanying Parent Company Condensed Balance Sheet and Parent Company Condensed Statements of Cash Flows are detailed in the tables below.

December 31, 2022
Schedule 1 - Parent Company Condensed Balance Sheet As previously reported Corrections As restated

Assets
Investment in subsidiaries $ 1,004,188  $ (5,437) $ 998,751 
Due from affiliates $ 3,041  $ (3,041) $ — 
Income tax receivable $ —  $ 4,464  $ 4,464 
Total assets $ 1,007,665  $ (4,014) $ 1,003,651 

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 4,653  $ (4,014) $ 639 
Total current liabilities $ 21,033  $ (4,014) $ 17,019 
Total liabilities $ 226,708  $ (4,014) $ 222,694 

Stockholders’ equity:
Additional paid-in capital $ 536,235  $ (64,770) $ 471,465 
Accumulated other comprehensive income $ —  $ 2,577  $ 2,577 
Retained Earnings $ 244,073  $ 62,193  $ 306,266 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 1,007,665  $ (4,014) $ 1,003,651 
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Year ended December 31, 2022
Schedule 1 - Parent Company Condensed Consolidated

Statements of Cash Flows As previously reported Corrections As restated
Cash flows from operating activities
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from
operations provided by operating activities:
Deferred income tax asset $ (436) $ 197  $ (239)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of
acquisition:
Income taxes $ —  $ (9,369) $ (9,369)
Accrued and other current liabilities $ 4,653  $ (5,118) $ (465)
Due to affiliates $ —  $ 6,262  $ 6,262 
Other assets and liabilities $ —  $ (4,140) $ (4,140)
Net cash used in operating activities $ 1,165  $ (12,168) $ (11,003)

Cash flows from financing activities
Due from affiliates $ (3,041) $ 3,041  $ — 
Distribution of earnings from subsidiaries $ —  $ 9,901  $ 9,901 
Payment related to shares withheld and retired to cover tax
withholding obligation for SARs $ —  $ (774) $ (774)
Net cash provided by financing activities $ (1,165) $ 12,168  $ 11,003 
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:

(Decrease) Increase in Related Party payable pursuant to Tax
Receivable Agreement $ (7,224) $ 7,224  $ — 

2. Investment in subsidiaries

Olaplex Holdings records its investment in subsidiaries under the equity method of accounting. Such investment is presented as “Investment in subsidiaries” on the condensed
balance sheet, and Olaplex Holdings’ share of the subsidiaries profits is presented as “Equity in undistributed earnings” on the condensed Statement of Operations.

3. Restricted net assets

Olaplex Holdings’ subsidiaries are restricted in their ability to transfer certain of their net assets to Olaplex Holdings in the form of dividends, loans or advances under the 2022
Credit Agreement. The restricted net assets of Olaplex Holdings’ subsidiaries amount to $915,473 and $687,901 as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The restricted
net assets of Olaplex Holdings’ subsidiaries for the period ended December 31, 2022 were corrected based on the adjustments discussed in Note 1. Basis of Presentation
included within Note 16. Condensed Parent Company Financial Information.

4. Tax receivable agreement liability adjustment

Tax Receivable Agreement liability adjustment reflects adjustments due to an update to the blended state income tax rate and the effective federal tax rate used to measure the
related party payable pursuant to Tax Receivable Agreement.

5. Commitments and contingencies

Olaplex Holdings is party to a Tax Receivable Agreement with the Pre-IPO Stockholders that provides for the payment by Olaplex Holdings to the Pre-IPO Stockholders of
85% of the amount of any tax benefits that Olaplex Holdings actually realizes, or in some cases are deemed to realize, as a result of certain transactions. See Note 10 to the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements for more information regarding the Tax Receivable Agreement. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, liabilities under
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the Tax Receivable Agreement totaled $198.2 million and $222.1 million, respectively, of which $12.7 million and $16.4 million is a current liability, respectively.

See Note 14 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements for information regarding pending and threatened litigation.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains a system of disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange
Act”)) that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in its reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission’s (“SEC”) rules and forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to management, including, as appropriate, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosures. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well
designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives.

Based on their evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at a reasonable
level of assurance as of December 31, 2023.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange
Act. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements, errors, or fraud. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree or compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of the end of the period covered by this report. In making this assessment,
management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in Internal Control – Integrated Framework
(2013). Based on its assessment and those criteria, management concluded that Olaplex’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2023.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm has issued their report on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2023, which appears in this Annual Report.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2023 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the shareholders and the Board of Directors of Olaplex Holdings, Inc.

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Olaplex Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2023, based on criteria established
in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). In our opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by COSO.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated financial statements as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, of the Company and our report dated February 29, 2024, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk,
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Los Angeles, California
February 29, 2024
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable.

ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS

Not applicable.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information required to be included in Part III Item 10 will be included in our proxy statement for our 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (“2024 Proxy Statement”), which
we intend to file with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our fiscal 2023 year, and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required to be included in Part III Item 11 will be included in our 2024 Proxy Statement, which we intend to file with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our
fiscal 2023 year, and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information required to be included in Part III Item 12 will be included in our 2024 Proxy Statement, which we intend to file with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our
fiscal 2023 year, and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information required to be included in Part III Item 13 will be included in our 2024 Proxy Statement, which we intend to file with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our
fiscal 2023 year, and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Information required to be included in Part III Item 14 will be included in our 2024 Proxy Statement, which we intend to file with the SEC within 120 days after the end of our
fiscal 2023 year, and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) List of documents filed as part of this Annual Report

1. Consolidated Financial Statements:
See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report.

2. Financial Statement Schedules:
All financial statement schedules have been omitted because the required information is not applicable or is not present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the
schedule, or because the information required is included in the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.

3. Exhibits:
Exhibit
Number Description

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Olaplex Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed on
November 10, 2021 (File No. 001- 40860)).

3.2 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Olaplex Holdings, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on January
20, 2023 (File No. 001-40860)).

4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, filed on September 20, 2021 (File No.
333-259116)).

4.2 Description of Registrant’s Securities (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed on February 28, 2023 (File No. 001-
40860)).

10.1 Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed on November 10, 2021 (File No. 001-
40860)).

10.2 Form of Director and Executive Officer Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, filed
on September 20, 2021 (File No. 333-259116)).

10.3 Income Tax Receivable Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed on November 10, 2021 (File No. 001-
40860)).

10.4 Credit Agreement, dated February 23, 2022, by and among Olaplex, Inc., Penelope Intermediate Corp., Goldman Sachs Bank USA, as the Administrative Agent, Swingline
Lender and Issuing Bank, and the Financial Institutions party thereto as Lenders and Issuing Banks (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed on February 23, 2022 (File No. 001-40860).

10.5 Manufacturing and Supply Agreement, dated August 4, 2023, by and between Olaplex, Inc. and Cosway Company Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed on August 8, 2023 (File No. 001-40860)).

10.6# Amended and Restated 2020 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed on November
7, 2023 (File No. 001-40860)).

10.7# Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement under the 2020 Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1,
filed on August 27, 2021 (File No. 333-259116)).

10.8# Offer Letter, dated January 28, 2020, by and between Olaplex, Inc. and JuE Wong (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1, filed on August 27, 2021 (File No. 333-259116)).

10.9# Termination Protection Agreement, dated January 28, 2020, by and between Olaplex, Inc. and JuE Wong (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed on August 27, 2021 (File No. 333-259116)).

10.10# Olaplex Holdings, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, filed on September
20, 2021 (File No. 333- 259116)).

10.11# Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement (Employee) under the Olaplex Holdings, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, filed on September 20, 2021 (File No. 333-259116)).

10.12# Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Director) under the Olaplex Holdings, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1/A, filed on September 20, 2021 (File No. 333-259116)).

10.13# Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Employee) under the Olaplex Holdings, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed on May 9, 2023 (File No. 001-40860).

10.14# Letter Agreement, dated October 16, 2022, by and between Olaplex Inc. and Tiffany Walden (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q, filed on November 9, 2022 (File No. 001-40860).

10.15# Amended and Restated Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement, effective as of December 31, 2022, by and between Olaplex Holdings, Inc. and Tiffany Walden
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed on November 9, 2022 (File No. 001-40860).

10.16# Offer Letter, dated May 6, 2021, by and between Olaplex, Inc. and Eric Tiziani (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K,
filed on February 28, 2023 (File No. 001-40860)).

10.17# Letter Agreement dated July 10, 2023, by and between Olaplex Holdings, Inc. and John P. Bilbrey (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K, filed on July 11, 2023 (File No. 001-40860)).

10.18# Transition and Separation Agreement, dated October 10, 2023, by and between Olaplex, Inc. and JuE Wong.
10.19# Amended and Restated Letter Agreement, dated December 11, 2023, by and among Olaplex, Inc., Olaplex Holdings, Inc. and Amanda Baldwin.

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant.
23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2* Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

97 Olaplex Holdings, Inc. Policy for Recoupment of Incentive Compensation.
101 Interactive Data Files Pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T formatted as Inline XBRL: [(i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Operations, (iii)

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (v) Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity, and (vi) Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements].

104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

# Indicates a management contract or compensation plan, contract or arrangement
* This certification will not be deemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise subject to the liability of that section. Such certification will not be deemed to be
incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, except to the extent specifically incorporated by reference into such filing.

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872621000010/ex31-restatedcertificateof.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872621000010/ex31-restatedcertificateof.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872623000005/secondamendedandrestatedby.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872623000005/secondamendedandrestatedby.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521276679/d164089dex41.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521276679/d164089dex41.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872623000021/ex42descriptionoftheregist.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872623000021/ex42descriptionoftheregist.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872621000010/ex101-registrationrightsag.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872621000010/ex101-registrationrightsag.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521276679/d164089dex102.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521276679/d164089dex102.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872621000010/ex102-incometaxreceivablea.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872621000010/ex102-incometaxreceivablea.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872622000008/exhibit101debtagreement.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872622000008/exhibit101debtagreement.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872623000064/ex101executedcoswayagreeme.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872623000064/ex101executedcoswayagreeme.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872623000096/ex102amendedrestated2020om.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872623000096/ex102amendedrestated2020om.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521259313/d164089dex107.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521259313/d164089dex107.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521259313/d164089dex108.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521259313/d164089dex108.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521259313/d164089dex109.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521259313/d164089dex109.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521276679/d164089dex1015.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521276679/d164089dex1015.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521276679/d164089dex1016.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521276679/d164089dex1016.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521276679/d164089dex1017.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/0001868726/000119312521276679/d164089dex1017.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872623000037/ex102formofrsuagreement.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872623000037/ex102formofrsuagreement.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872622000058/exhibit101letteragreementd.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872622000058/exhibit101letteragreementd.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872622000058/exhibit102amendedandrestat.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872622000058/exhibit102amendedandrestat.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872623000021/ex1019offerletterdatedmay6.htm
https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872623000021/ex1019offerletterdatedmay6.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872623000051/exhibit101letteragreementd.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1868726/000186872623000051/exhibit101letteragreementd.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex1018transitionseparation.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex1018transitionseparation.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex1019amendedrestatedoffer.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex1019amendedrestatedoffer.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex211subsidiariesoftheregi.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex211subsidiariesoftheregi.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex231consentofdeloittetouc.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex231consentofdeloittetouc.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex311-q42023ceocertificati.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex311-q42023ceocertificati.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex312-q423cfocertificate.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex312-q423cfocertificate.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex321-q423ceocertificate.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex321-q423ceocertificate.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex322-q423cfocertificate.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex322-q423cfocertificate.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex97policyforrecoupmentofi.htm
https://content.equisolve.net/olaplex/sec/0001868726-24-000010/for_pdf/ex97policyforrecoupmentofi.htm


ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY

None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.
   

By: /s/ Amanda Baldwin
February 29, 2024 Name: Amanda Baldwin

Title: Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities
and on the date indicated.
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Signature Title

/s/ Amanda Baldwin Chief Executive Officer and Director
Amanda Baldwin (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Eric Tiziani Chief Financial Officer
Eric Tiziani (Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Kristi Belhumeur Senior Vice President, Accounting
Kristi Belhumeur (Principal Accounting Officer)

/s/ John P. Bilbrey Executive Chair of the Board
John P. Bilbrey

/s/ Tricia Glynn Lead Director
Tricia Glynn

/s/ Christine Dagousset Director
Christine Dagousset

/s/ Deirdre Findlay Director
Deirdre Findlay

/s/ Janet Gurwitch Director
Janet Gurwitch

/s/ Martha Morfitt Director
Martha Morfitt

/s/ David Mussafer Director
David Mussafer

/s/ Emily White Director
Emily White

/s/ Michael White Director
Michael White

/s/ Paula Zusi Director
Paula Zusi

February 29, 2024

90



Exhibit 10.18

October 10, 2023

JuE Wong

Dear JuE:

The purpose of this letter agreement (this “Agreement”) is to confirm the terms of the remainder of your employment with Olaplex, Inc.
(the “Company”) and your separation from the Company, as follows. Capitalized words that are used but not defined herein shall have the
meanings ascribed to such terms in the Termination Protection Agreement by and between you and the Company made and entered into as of
January 28, 2020 (the “Termination Protection Agreement”).

1. Transition Period, Separation Date and Resignation.

(a) Effective as of the date hereof (the “Transition Date”) and continuing through the date on which your employment
terminates (the “Separation Date”), you will continue to be employed by the Company on a full-time basis. Provided that you comply in full with
your obligations hereunder, it is expected that the Separation Date will be October 20, 2023. The period beginning on the Transition Date and
concluding on the Separation Date is hereinafter referred to as the “Transition Period”.

(b) During the Transition Period, you will continue to receive your base salary, payable at the rate in effect as of the date hereof,
and to participate in all employee benefit plans of the Company in accordance with the terms of those plans. You will also perform such duties as
may be reasonably assigned to you from time to time by the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Olaplex Holdings, Inc. (“Holdings”) or its
designees and assist with the transition of your duties and responsibilities to any Company designees. You will continue to devote your best
professional efforts to the Company and to abide by all Company policies and procedures as in effect from time to time. You will not incur any
business expenses during the Transition Period without the advance approval of the Interim Chief Executive Officer or such person’s designee.

(c) The Company may terminate your employment at any time before and during the Transition Period upon notice to you. If
the Company terminates your employment for Cause or if you voluntarily resign, you will not be eligible to receive the severance pay described in
Section 3 hereof.

(d) You hereby resign, effective as of October 12, 2023, from all of your positions at the Company and its Affiliates (including
without limitation your position as Chief Executive Officer and as a member of the Board and excluding only your position as an employee of the
Company, which will terminate as of the Separation Date without any further action required) and any officer, director, manager, trustee or other
position with any subsidiary or other Affiliate of the Company, without any further action required therefor (collectively, the “Resignations”). The
Company, on its own behalf and on behalf of its subsidiaries and Affiliates, hereby accepts the Resignations as of October 12, 2023, and you agree
to execute such additional documentation as the Company may request to effectuate the foregoing.



2. Final Salary. You will receive on the Company’s first regular payday following the Separation Date pay for all work you
performed for the Company through the Separation Date, to the extent not previously paid. You will receive the payment described in this Section
2 regardless of whether or not you sign this Agreement.

3. Severance Benefits. In consideration of your acceptance of this Agreement and in full consideration of any rights you have under
the Termination Protection Agreement, and subject to your meeting in full your obligations hereunder, including your obligation to execute a post-
employment general release and waiver of claims in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Release”) and your Continuing Obligations, and
provided that your employment is not terminated by the Company for Cause, the Company will provide you with the following payments and
benefits:

(a) The Company will pay you your salary, at your final base rate of pay (the “Severance Payments”) for a period of twelve
(12) months following the Separation Date (such period, the “Severance Period”). The Severance Payments will be made in the form of salary
continuation and will begin on the next regular Company payday which is at least five (5) days following the later of the effective date of the
Release or the date it is received by the Company. The first payment will be retroactive to the day following Separation Date.

(b) If you are enrolled in the Company’s group medical, dental and/or vision plans on the Separation Date, and you elect to
continue your participation and that of your eligible dependents in those plans for a period of time pursuant to the federal law known as “COBRA”
or similar applicable state law (together, “COBRA”), the Company will contribute to the full premium costs of COBRA continuation coverage for
you and your eligible dependents for group medical, dental and/or vision insurance premiums until the earlier of (i) the conclusion of the
Severance Period and (ii) the date that you cease to be eligible for coverage under COBRA or Company plans. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in
the event that the Company’s payment of the COBRA premium contributions, as described in this Section, would subject the Company to any tax
or penalty under Section 105(h) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act, as amended,
any regulations or guidance issued thereunder, or any other applicable law, in each case, as determined by the Company then you and the
Company agree to work together in good faith to restructure such benefit.

(c) You will remain eligible to earn your fiscal year 2023 annual bonus (the “FY 2023 Bonus”), as if you had remained
employed through the date of payment, pro rated to reflect the number of days you were employed with the Company in fiscal year 2023. The
Company will pay you the FY 2023 Bonus, if any, less applicable taxes and withholding, on the same date and on the same basis that the
Company pays fiscal year 2023 annual bonuses to executives generally, with the amount of such bonus to be based on the Company’s actual
achievement of its fiscal year 2023 performance goals, as determined by the Board (or the Compensation Committee of the Board) in its sole
discretion. In the event that the Company does not pay fiscal year 2023 annual bonuses to executives generally, the FY 2023 will not be payable to
you.

(d) The parties acknowledge and agree, that as of the Separation Date (assuming it occurs on October 20, 2023), you will hold
18,091,305 vested options (less any options you exercise, pursuant to the preclearance procedures set forth in the Company’s Insider Trading
Policy, between the date hereof and the Separation Date) (your “Vested Options”) and 8,836,470 unvested options (your Vested Options and
unvested options, collectively, your “Options”) to purchase shares of common stock of Holdings granted to you under the Penelope Holdings
Corp. 2020 Equity Incentive Plan (as assumed by Holdings in connection with the IPO, the “Plan”) on February 3, 2020 pursuant to the
Nonqualified Stock
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Option Award Agreement between you and Holdings, as amended and restated effective March 26, 2020 (the “Award Agreement”).
Notwithstanding the terms of the Plan and the Award Agreement, your Vested Options shall remain exercisable for a period of 120 days following
the Separation Date (subject to earlier termination as set forth in Section 11 of the Plan), and following such period, the Vested Options, if not
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Plan and the Award Agreement, shall no longer be exercisable and shall automatically terminate with
no consideration due to you.

4. Acknowledgement of Full Payment and Withholding.

(a) You acknowledge and agree that the payments provided under Section 2 of this Agreement are in complete satisfaction of
any and all compensation or benefits due to you from the Company or any of its Affiliates, whether for services provided to the Company or any
of its Affiliates, under the Termination Protection Agreement or otherwise, through the Separation Date and that, except as expressly provided
under this Agreement, no further compensation or benefits are owed or will be provided to you.

(b) All payments made by the Company under this Agreement shall be reduced by any tax or other amounts required to be
withheld by the Company under applicable law and all other lawful deductions authorized by you.

5. Status of Employee Benefits, Paid Time Off, Expenses and Equity.

(a) Except for any right you may have to continue your participation and that of your eligible dependents in the Company’s
group health plans under COBRA, your participation in all employee benefit plans of the Company will end as of the Separation Date, in
accordance with the terms of those plans. You will not continue to be eligible for paid time off or other similar benefits after the Separation Date.
You will receive information about your COBRA continuation rights under separate cover.

(b) Within two (2) weeks following the Separation Date, you must submit your final expense reimbursement statement
reflecting all business expenses you incurred through the Separation Date, if any, for which you seek reimbursement, and, in accordance with
Company policy, reasonable substantiation and documentation for the same. The Company will reimburse you for your authorized and
documented expenses within thirty (30) days of receiving such statement pursuant to its regular business practice.

(c) You acknowledge and agree that (i) all vesting of your Options will cease as of the Separation Date and (ii) your rights and
obligations with respect to your Options shall continue to be governed by the terms of the Plan and the Award Agreement, except as expressly
modified by Section 3(d) of this Agreement.

6. Continuing Obligations, Non-Disparagement and Confidentiality.

(a) Subject to Section 9(b) of this Agreement, you acknowledge that you continue to be bound by your obligations under the
Termination Protection Agreement, the Employee Agreement dated as of January 28, 2020, and the Restrictive Covenants Agreement (the “RCA”)
by and among you, the Company and Holdings made and effective as of February 3, 2020 that, in each case, survive the termination of your
employment (including, without limitation, Sections 2(a)-2(d) of the Termination Protection Agreement, Sections 1 and 2 of the Employee
Agreement and Sections 1, 2 and 3 of the RCA) (collectively, the “Continuing Obligations”). For the avoidance of doubt, the parties agree that the
only non-competition obligations with respect to the Company and its Affiliates to which you are
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subject, and will continue to be subject following the termination of your employment, are set forth in Section 3 of the RCA.

(b) Subject to Section 9(b) of this Agreement, you agree that you will never disparage or criticize any of the Released Parties
(as defined below) or the Company or any of its Affiliates, or any of their respective businesses, management, products or services, and that you
will not otherwise do or say anything that could disrupt the good morale of employees of the Company or any of its Affiliates or harm the interests
or reputation of the Company or any of its Affiliates. The Company agrees (i) to instruct its officers and directors as of the Separation Date not to
disparage or criticize you and (ii) not to disparage or criticize you in authorized corporate communications to third parties. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing herein shall prevent either you or any of the Company’s officers or directors from testifying truthfully in any legal or
administrative proceeding where such testimony is compelled or requested, from filing truthful legal pleadings in connection with any claim for
breach of this Agreement by the other party or from otherwise complying with applicable legal requirements.

(c) You agree that on and after the date hereof you will not make any social media posting, or engage in any social media
activity that (a) could be perceived as official corporate communications of the Company or any of its Affiliates or otherwise as you posting on
behalf of or expressing views of the Company or any of its Affiliates, (b) discloses any Confidential Information (as defined in the RCA), (c)
violates your obligations under Section 6(b) of this Agreement or (d) without the prior written consent of the Interim Chief Executive Officer or its
designee (which shall not be unreasonably withheld), otherwise references the Company or any of its Affiliates beyond the fact of your service as
Chief Executive Officer and as a member of the Board.

(d) Subject to Section 9(b) of this Agreement, you agree that, prior to the date on which this Agreement is publicly filed, you
will not disclose this Agreement or any of its terms or provisions, directly or by implication, except to members of your immediate family and to
your legal and tax advisors, and then only on condition that they agree not to further disclose this Agreement or any of its terms or provisions to
others.

7. Return of Company Documents and Other Property. In signing this Agreement, you agree that you will return to the Company,
on or before the Separation Date, any and all documents, materials and information (whether in hardcopy, on electronic media or otherwise)
related to the business of the Company and its Affiliates (whether present or otherwise), and all keys, access cards, credit cards, computer
hardware and software, telephones and telephone-related equipment and all other property of the Company or any of its Affiliates in your
possession or control. Such materials and property should be sent to the Company’s General Counsel at [ ]. Further, you agree that you will not
retain any copy or derivation of any documents, materials or information (whether in hardcopy, on electronic media or otherwise) of the Company
or any of its Affiliates following the Separation Date. Recognizing that your employment with the Company will terminate as of the Separation
Date, you agree that you will not, following the Separation Date, for any purpose, attempt to access or use any computer or computer network or
system of the Company or any of its Affiliates, including without limitation the electronic mail system, whether from a Company-issued computer
or a personal computer or device. Further, you agree to disclose to the Company, on or before the Separation Date, any and all passwords
necessary or desirable to obtain access to, or that would assist in obtaining access to, all information which you have password-protected on any
computer equipment, network or system of the Company or any of its Affiliates.

    -4-



8. Cooperation. For the three (3)-year period following the Separation Date, you agree to reasonably cooperate with the Company
and its Affiliates hereafter with respect to all matters arising during or related to your employment, including but not limited to all matters in
connection with any shareholder litigation, consumer litigation, and any other governmental investigation, litigation or regulatory or other
proceeding which may have arisen, or which may arise following the signing of this Agreement. Without limiting the foregoing, during the
Severance Period, you will serve as an outside senior advisor to the Company and provide certain consulting services to the Company, for no
additional compensation beyond that described in Section 3 of this Agreement, as may be reasonably requested by the Company from time to
time, including, without limitation, providing information, advice and other consulting services upon the request of the Chief Executive Officer,
the Lead Director of the Board and/or the Chair of the Board and cooperating with the Company and its Affiliates in accordance with preceding
sentence.

9. General Release and Waiver of Claims.

(a) In exchange for the special severance benefits provided to you under this Agreement, to which you would not otherwise be
entitled, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which you hereby acknowledge, on your own behalf and that of
your heirs, executors, administrators, beneficiaries, personal representatives, successors and assigns, and all others connected with or claiming
through you, you agree that this Agreement shall be in complete and final settlement of any and all causes of action, suits, rights and claims,
demands, damages and compensation, whether at law or in equity, whether now known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, accrued or
unaccrued, contingent or otherwise, which you have had in the past, now have, or might now have, against the Company, Insperity PEO Services,
L.P. (“Insperity”), or any of their respective Affiliates of any nature whatsoever, including but not limited to those in any way related to, connected
with or arising out of your employment, its termination, or your other associations with the Company, Insperity, or any of their respective
Affiliates, under the Termination Protection Agreement, the Award Agreement or the Plan, or pursuant to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, the
Americans with Disabilities Act, the Family and Medical Leave Act, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, as amended by the Older
Workers Benefit Protection Act, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, the wage and hour, wage payment and fair employment practices
laws and statutes (each as amended from time to time) of the state or states in which you have provided services to the Company or any of its
Affiliates, and/or any other federal, state or local law, regulation or other requirement (collectively, the “Claims”), and you hereby release and
forever discharge the Company, Insperity, each of their respective Affiliates and all of their respective past, present and future directors,
shareholders, officers, members, managers, general and limited partners, employees, employee benefit plans, administrators, trustees, agents,
representatives, predecessors, successors and assigns, and all others connected with any of them, both individually and in their official capacities
(collectively, the “Released Parties”), from, and you hereby waive, any and all such Claims.

(b) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to prohibit you from filing a charge with or participating in any
investigation or proceeding conducted by the federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or a comparable state or local agency,
provided, however, that you hereby agree to waive your right to recover monetary damages or other individual relief in any such charge,
investigation or proceeding or any related complaint or lawsuit filed by you or by anyone else on your behalf. Nothing in this Agreement limits,
restricts or in any other way affects your communicating with any governmental agency or entity, or communicating with any official or staff
person of a governmental agency or entity, concerning matters relevant to such governmental agency or entity.
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(c) You agree that the additional compensation to be paid under this Agreement is due solely from the Company and that
Insperity has no obligation to pay the additional compensation, even though its payment may be processed through Insperity.

(d) This Agreement, including the general release and waiver of claims set forth in Section 9(a), creates legally binding
obligations and the Company and its Affiliates therefore advise you to consult an attorney before signing this Agreement. In signing this
Agreement, you give the Company and its Affiliates assurance that you have signed it voluntarily and with a full understanding of its terms; that
you have had sufficient opportunity of not less than twenty-one (21) days, before signing this Agreement, to consider its terms and to consult with
an attorney, if you wished to do so, or to consult with any other of those persons to whom reference is made in Section 6(d) above; and that you
have not relied on any promises or representations, express or implied, that are not set forth expressly in this Agreement.

(e) You agree to sign the Release by the later of date that is seven (7) days following the Separation Date and twenty-one (21)
days following the date hereof (and in no event before the Separation Date). You further agree that a signed and unrevoked Release is an express
condition to your receipt and retention of the payments and benefits described in Section 3 above.

10. Section 409A.

(a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, if at the time your employment terminates, you are a
“specified employee,” as defined below, any and all amounts payable under this Agreement on account of such separation from service that would
(but for this provision) be payable within six (6) months following the date of termination, shall instead be paid on the next business day
following the expiration of such six (6)- month period or, if earlier, upon your death; except (A) to the extent of amounts that do not constitute a
deferral of compensation within the meaning of Treasury regulation Section 1.409A-1(b) (including without limitation by reason of the safe
harbor set forth in Section 1.409A- 1(b)(9)(iii), as determined by the Company in its reasonable good faith discretion); (B) benefits which qualify
as excepted welfare benefits pursuant to Treasury regulation Section 1.409A- 1(a)(5); or (C) other amounts or benefits that are not subject to the
requirements of Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Section 409A”).

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, all references to “termination of employment” and correlative phrases shall be construed
to require a “separation from service” (as defined in Section 1.409A-1(h) of the Treasury regulations after giving effect to the presumptions
contained therein), and the term “specified employee” means an individual determined by the Company to be a specified employee under
Treasury regulation Section 1.409A-1(i).

(c) Each payment made under this Agreement shall be treated as a separate payment and the right to a series of installment
payments under this Agreement is to be treated as a right to a series of separate payments.

(d) In no event shall the Company have any liability relating to the failure or alleged failure of any payment or benefit under
this Agreement to comply with, or be exempt from, the requirements of Section 409A.

11. Miscellaneous.
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(a) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between you and the Company and supersedes all prior and
contemporaneous communications, agreements and understandings, whether written or oral, with respect to your employment, its termination and
all related matters, excluding only the Continuing Obligations, the Award Agreement and the Plan, which shall remain in full force and effect in
accordance with their terms.

(b) If any portion or provision of this Agreement shall to any extent be declared illegal or unenforceable by a court of
competent jurisdiction, then the remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such portion or provision in circumstances other than those as
to which it is so declared illegal or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each portion and provision of this Agreement shall be valid
and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law; provided, however, and for the avoidance of doubt, in no event shall the Company be
required to provide payments or benefits to you pursuant to Section 3 of this Agreement if all or part of the general release in Section 9 of this
Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable.

(c) This Agreement may not be modified or amended, and no breach shall be deemed to be waived, unless agreed to in writing
by you and the Board (or the Compensation Committee thereof or its other expressly authorized designee). The captions and headings in this
Agreement are for convenience only, and in no way define or describe the scope or content of any provision of this Agreement.

(d) The obligation of the Company to make payments or provide benefits to you or on your behalf under this Agreement, and
your right to retain the same, is expressly conditioned upon your continued full performance of your obligations under this Agreement and of the
Continuing Obligations.

(e) This is a New York contract and shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York,
without regard to any conflict of laws principles that would result in the application of the laws of another jurisdiction. You agree that any dispute
shall be brought only in, and you agree to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of, the courts of and in the State of New York in connection with any
dispute arising out, connected with, or relating to this Agreement or your employment or other association with the Company or the termination of
the same.

(f) This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, any of which may be executed and transmitted by
DocuSign, facsimile, electronic mail (including “pdf”), and any other means of electronic transmission complying with the U.S. federal ESIGN
Act of 2000, and each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument.

[Rest of page intentionally left blank.]
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If the terms of this Agreement are acceptable to you, please sign, date and return it to me within twenty-one (21) days of the date that you
receive it. You may revoke this Agreement at any time during the seven (7)-day period immediately following the date of your signing by
notifying me in writing of your revocation with that period, and this Agreement shall not become effective or enforceable until that seven (7)-day
period has expired. If you do not revoke this Agreement, then, on the eight (8 ) day following the date that you signed it, this Agreement shall take
effect as a legally binding agreement between you and the Company on the basis set forth above. The enclosed copy of this letter, which you
should also sign and date, is for your records.

Sincerely,
OLAPLEX, INC.

By:    /s/ John C. Duffy
    Name:    John C. Duffy
    Title:    General Counsel

Accepted and agreed:

Signature:     /s/ JuE Wong
    JuE Wong

Date:     10/10/2023

th
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Exhibit A
General Release and Waiver of Claims

For and in consideration of the continued employment and the special severance benefits provided to me under the Transition and Separation
Agreement between me and Olaplex, Inc. (the “Company”), dated as of October 10, 2023 (the “Agreement”), which are conditioned on my
signing this General Release and Waiver of Claims (this “Release of Claims”) and on my compliance with the Agreement and the Continuing
Obligations (as defined in the Agreement), and to which I am not otherwise entitled, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which I hereby acknowledge, on my own behalf and on behalf of my heirs, executors, administrators, beneficiaries, personal
representatives, successors and assigns, and all others connected with or claiming through me, I agree that the Agreement and this Release of
Claims shall be in complete and final settlement any and all causes of action, suits, rights and claims, demands, damages and compensation,
whether at law or in equity, whether now known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, accrued or unaccrued, contingent or otherwise, which I
have had in the past, now have or might now have, against the Company, Insperity PEO Services, L.P. (“Insperity”) or any of their respective
Affiliates (as defined in the Agreement) of any nature whatsoever, including but not limited to those in any way related to, connected with or
arising out of my employment, its termination, or my other associations with the Company, Insperity, or any of their respective Affiliates (as
defined in the Agreement), under the Termination Protection Agreement, the Award Agreement or the Plan, or pursuant to Title VII of the Civil
Rights Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Family and Medical Leave Act, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act, as amended by
the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act, the wage and hour, wage payment and fair employment
practices laws and statutes (each as amended from time to time) of the state or states in which I have provided services to the Company or any of
its Affiliates, and/or any other federal, state or local law, regulation, or other requirement (collectively, the “Claims”), and I hereby release and
forever discharge the Company, Insperity, each of their Affiliates and all of their respective past, present and future directors, shareholders,
officers, members, managers, general and limited partners, employees, employee benefit plans, administrators, trustees, agents, representatives,
predecessors, successors and assigns, and all others connected with any of them, both individually and in their official capacities (collectively, the
“Released Parties”), from, and I hereby waive, any and all such Claims. I understand that nothing contained in this Release of Claims shall be
construed to prohibit me from filing a charge with or participating in any investigation or proceeding conducted by the federal Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission or a comparable state or local agency, provided, however, that I hereby agree to waive my right to recover monetary
damages or other individual relief in any such charge, investigation or proceeding or any related complaint or lawsuit filed by me or by anyone
else on my behalf. I further understand that nothing contained herein limits, restricts or in any other way affects my communicating with any
governmental agency or entity, or communicating with any official or staff person of a governmental agency or entity, concerning matters relevant
to such governmental agency or entity.

I represent and warrant that, in accordance with Section 7 of the Agreement, I have returned to the Company any and all documents,
materials, information and other property of the Company and its Affiliates that I had in my possession, custody or control on the date my
employment with the Company terminated and that I have retained no such property. Without limiting the foregoing, I also represent and warrant
that I have retained no copy of any such documents, materials, information or other property.
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I agree that the additional compensation to be paid under the Agreement is due solely from the Company and that Insperity has no
obligation to pay the additional compensation, even though its payment may be processed through Insperity.

I acknowledge that this Release of Claims creates legally binding obligations, and that the Company hereby advises me to consult an
attorney before signing it. I further acknowledge that I may not sign this Release of Claims prior to the Separation Date (as such term is defined in
the Agreement). In signing this Release of Claims, I give the Company assurance that I have signed it voluntarily and with a full understanding of
its terms; that I have had sufficient opportunity of not less than twenty-one (21) days before signing this Release of Claims to consider its terms
and to consult with an attorney, if I wished to do so, or to consult with any person to whom reference is made in Section 6(d) of the Agreement;
and that I have not relied on any promises or representations, express or implied, that are not set forth expressly in this Release of Claims. I
understand that I will have seven (7) days after signing this Release of Claims to revoke my signature, and that, if I intend to revoke my signature,
I must do so in writing addressed and delivered to John Duffy, General Counsel prior to the end of the seven (7)-day revocation period. I
understand that this Release of Claims will become effective upon the eighth (8th) day following the date that I sign it, provided that I do not
revoke my acceptance in accordance with the immediately preceding sentence.

This Release of Claims constitutes the entire agreement between me and the Company and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous
communications, agreements and understandings, whether written or oral, with respect to my employment, its termination and all related matters,
excluding only the Agreement and the Continuing Obligations, the Award Agreement and the Plan, which shall remain in full force and effect in
accordance with their terms. This Release of Claims may not be modified or amended, and no breach shall be deemed to be waived, unless agreed
to in writing by me and an expressly authorized representative of the Company.

[Rest of page intentionally left blank.]
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Accepted and agreed:

Signature:    /s/ JuE Wong
    JuE Wong
    
Date:    10/10/2023
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Exhibit 10.19

December 11, 2023

Dear Amanda,

I am pleased to offer you employment with Olaplex, Inc. (the “Company”) in the position of Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
Olaplex Holdings, Inc. (“Holdings”), reporting exclusively to the Board of Directors of Holdings (the “Board”), on the terms and conditions
described in this letter. This offer letter supersedes in its entirety the offer letter dated October 7, 2023.

In addition, and without further compensation, you will be appointed as a member of the Board and agree to serve as a director and/or
officer of the Company and any of the subsidiaries of Holdings if so elected or appointed from time to time. If your employment with the Company
terminates for any reason, then concurrently with such termination, you will be deemed to have resigned from the Board and any officer, trustee,
or other positions you may hold with the Company, any of its affiliates, or any of their respective related committees, trusts, foundations, or similar
entities, in each case unless otherwise agreed in writing by Holdings, the Company and you.

If you accept this offer, your first date of employment with the Company will be December 11, 2023 (the “Start Date”). Your initial salary
will be at the rate of $1,000,000 per year (subject to increase from time to time at the discretion of the Board), less taxes and other legally
required deductions, payable bi-weekly in accordance with the regular payroll practices of the Company.

Beginning with fiscal year 2024, you will be eligible to receive an annual bonus under Holdings’ annual bonus plan. The annual bonus
plan pay-out in a given year is based on Holdings’ achievement of revenue, EBITDA and other objectives set by the Board (or the Compensation
Committee of the Board) following consultation with you. Your annual bonus target is 50% of your base salary, and the pay-out amount in any
year in which a bonus is paid will be determined by the Board (or the Compensation Committee of the Board) based on its determination of the
Company’s achievement of the applicable performance objectives. Each bonus payment under the annual bonus plan is subject to your
continued employment on the date the payment is made, which shall be at the same time as bonuses are made to other Company executives in
the year subsequent to the year for which the bonus is payable.

You will receive a sign-on bonus in cash (the “Sign-on Bonus”), payable within thirty (30) days after the Start Date equal to nine-hundred
and fifty thousand dollars ($950,000). If, prior to the one (1)-year anniversary of the Start Date, the Company terminates your employment for
Cause (as defined below) or you voluntarily terminate your employment without Good Reason (as defined below), you agree to repay the Sign-on
Bonus in full within thirty (30) days following such termination of employment.

Not later than ten (10) days following the Start Date, you will be granted (i) a stock option award (the “Option Award”) with value equal to
five million dollars ($5,000,000) on the grant date (with the number of options issued determined by dividing such amount by the Black-Scholes
value of an option on the grant date), and (ii) a restricted stock unit award (the “RSU Award” and, together with the Option Award, the “Initial
Awards”) with a value equal to eight million dollars ($8,000,000) on the grant date based on the closing price of Holdings’ common stock on the
grant date, which RSU Award will reflect an at-hire grant valued at three million dollars ($3,000,000) and your annual grant for 2024 valued at five
million dollars ($5,000,000). The Initial Awards will be granted under and subject to the terms of the Olaplex Holdings, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive
Plan and an agreement in the form of a stock option award agreement and the form of a restricted stock unit agreement, as applicable, attached
hereto as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively. Beginning in 2025, you will be eligible to be granted annual equity awards with a target aggregate
grant date value of not less than five million dollars ($5,000,000), subject in each case to the approval of the Board (or the Compensation
Committee of the Board).

In addition, not later than thirty (30) days after the Start Date, the Company will reimburse your legal fees in connection with the review,
negotiation and execution of this offer letter and the other agreements with the Company and/or Holdings related hereto, up to $20,000 in the
aggregate.



Upon the Start Date, Holdings and you shall enter into an Indemnification Agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit C. Holdings
shall maintain for your benefit customary directors’ and officers’ (D&O) liability insurance on the same terms and conditions as applicable to other
directors and officers.

Severance Payments upon Termination of Employment without Cause or for Good Reason. If your employment is terminated by the
Company without Cause (as defined below) or you resign for Good Reason (as defined below), the Company or Holdings (as applicable) (i) will
pay you an amount equal to twelve (12) months of your base salary, payable in substantially equal installments for twelve (12) months following
your termination of employment in accordance with the Company’s normal payroll practices, (ii) will pay you any earned but unpaid bonus for a
prior year (but treating all individual performance factors as achieved at not less than target level) (the “Prior Year’s Bonus”), paid when annual
bonuses are paid to senior executives generally, (iii) will pay you a pro rata annual bonus (based on the number of days you worked in the
applicable fiscal year) for the year of termination based on actual performance (but treating all individual performance factors as achieved at not
less than target level) (a “Pro Rata Bonus”), paid when annual bonuses are paid to senior executives generally, (v) provide that all time-vesting
equity awards you and your permitted transferees then hold will become vested on a pro rata basis with respect to the time-vesting tranche next
scheduled to vest under each such award (based on the number of days you worked since the last scheduled time-vesting date (or the grant date
if no time-vesting dates have yet occurred) in the applicable time-vesting period for the then-applicable time-vesting tranche) and (vi) subject to
your timely and proper election of continuation coverage under the Consolidated Omnibus Reconciliation Act (“COBRA”), pay you a monthly
amount for twelve (12) months equal to the COBRA premiums at the full COBRA rate for your and your eligible dependents’ level of coverage in
effect immediately prior to your termination of employment.

In addition, if your employment with the Company terminates due to your death or disability (as determined under the Company’s long-
term disability plan), then upon such termination the Company the Company and/or Holdings (as applicable): (i) will pay you or your estate (as
applicable) any applicable Prior Year’s Bonus, paid when annual bonuses are paid to senior executives generally; (ii) will pay you or your estate
(as applicable) the Pro Rata Bonus, paid when annual bonuses are paid to senior executives generally, and (iii) provide that all time-vesting
equity awards you and your permitted transferees then hold will become vested on a pro rata basis (based on the number of days you worked in
the applicable performance period for the then-applicable vesting tranche).

For purposes of this offer letter:

“Cause” means your (i) substantial failure to perform your duties and responsibilities to Holdings or any of its subsidiaries (it being
understood that the foregoing shall not be triggered based the perceived quality of your performance of such duties and responsibilities so
long as you have performed your duties and responsibilities); (ii) commission of a felony or a crime involving moral turpitude; (iii)
commission of theft, fraud, embezzlement, material breach of trust or any material act of dishonesty involving Holdings or any of its
subsidiaries; (iv) significant violation of the code of conduct of Holdings or any of its subsidiaries of any material policy of Holdings or any
of its subsidiaries, or of any statutory or common law duty of loyalty to Holdings or any of its subsidiaries; or (v) material breach of any of
the terms of this offer letter, any restrictive covenant agreement in favor of Holdings and its subsidiaries, or any other material agreement
between you and Holdings or any of its subsidiaries or (vi) other conduct that could reasonably be expected to be materially harmful to the
business, interests or reputation of Holdings or any of its subsidiaries; provided in the cause of clauses (i), (iv) and (v), to the extent able
to be cured, you have failed to cure the circumstances giving rise to Cause within fifteen (15) days following written notice of from the
Company citing the specific clause relied upon and providing reasonable detail regarding the circumstances alleged to give rise to Cause.

“Good Reason” means any of the following events without your written consent: (A) a material adverse change to your authority,
duties, or responsibilities, (B) a material reduction in your base compensation or annual bonus target (except in the case of a general
reduction throughout the Company of not greater than 10%); (C) you no longer report exclusively and directly to the Board; provided that
this clause (C) shall not apply following a Change in Control
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(as defined in the stock option award agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A) where the buyer is a strategic acquirer; (D) any required
relocation of your principal place of employment outside of Manhattan or the Company’s current offices in New Jersey or Pearl River, New
York; or (E) a material breach by Holdings or its subsidiaries of this offer letter, any equity agreement or any other material compensation
agreement between you and Holdings or any of its subsidiaries; provided, however, that an event will not give rise to a termination for
Good Reason unless you have notified the Company within ninety (90) days of the initial occurrence of such event, setting forth, in
reasonable detail, the nature of such event and the Company has failed to correct the event within a period of thirty (30) days after the
Company’s receipt of such notice.

Conditions to and Timing of Severance Payments. Any obligation of the Company or Holdings to provide you the severance payments
and benefits described above in this offer letter is conditioned on your signing and returning to the Company, and not revoking, a timely and
effective separation agreement containing a general release of claims in the Company’s then-standard form for senior executives, which shall be
provided to you by the Company at the time of your termination of employment (the “Separation Agreement”) (provided that the Separation
Agreement (i) shall contain no new non-competition or non-solicitation restrictive covenants by which you not already bound as of immediately
prior to your termination (it being understood that the Separation Agreement may restate existing restrictive covenants with any such changes as
may be required by law), and (ii) shall not include releases of claims (x) for severance payments and benefits due hereunder; (y) with respect to
indemnification (including related advancement of expenses) or under a directors or officers liability insurance policy; or (z) with respect to
accrued but unpaid compensation, employee benefits due under the terms of an applicable employee benefit plan or equity that is vested or
eligible to vest by its then existing terms (which shall remain outstanding subject to such terms)), and your continued material compliance with all
restrictive covenant obligations (which, in the case of alleged material noncompliance that is reasonably capable of cure, have not been cured by
you within fifteen (15) days of written notice of alleged violations thereof) by which you are bound. The Separation Agreement must become
irrevocable and effective, if at all, by the sixtieth (60th) calendar day following the date your employment is terminated.

Section 409A. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this offer letter, if at the time your employment terminates, you are a “specified
employee,” as defined below, any and all amounts payable under this offer letter on account of such separation from service that would (but for
this provision) be payable within six (6) months following the date of termination, shall instead be paid on the next business day following the
expiration of such six (6) month period or, if earlier, upon your death; except (i) to the extent of amounts that do not constitute a deferral of
compensation within the meaning of Treasury regulation Section 1.409A-1(b) (including without limitation by reason of the safe harbor set forth in
Section 1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii), as determined by the Company in its reasonable good faith discretion); (ii) benefits which qualify as excepted welfare
benefits pursuant to Treasury regulation Section 1.409A-1(a)(5); or (iii) other amounts or benefits that are not subject to the requirements of
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Section 409A”). For purposes of this offer letter, all references to “termination
of employment” and correlative phrases shall be construed to require a “separation from service” (as defined in Section 1.409A-1(h) of the
Treasury regulations after giving effect to the presumptions contained therein), and the term “specified employee” means an individual
determined by the Company to be a specified employee under Treasury regulation Section 1.409A-1(i). Each payment made under this offer
letter shall be treated as a separate payment and the right to a series of installment payments under this offer letter is to be treated as a right to a
series of separate payments. In no event shall the Company have any liability relating to the failure or alleged failure of any payment or benefit
under this offer letter to comply with, or be exempt from, the requirements of Section 409A to the extent amounts are paid in accordance with the
terms hereof.

As a full-time employee, you will be eligible to participate in the Company’s benefit plans on the first day of employment. The Company’s
comprehensive benefits package includes medical insurance, dental insurance, vision insurance, basic and voluntary life and AD&D insurance,
short-term and long-term disability insurance, flexible spending accounts for health, and an employee assistance program. Participation in all
employee benefit plans is subject to the terms and conditions of the plan documents, summary plan descriptions and other plan materials.
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    Your employment will be subject to the Company’s Code of Conduct and Ethics and all other applicable policies and procedures, as outlined in
the Employee Handbook and elsewhere. Paid sick leave will be made available to you in accordance with applicable law, as described in the
Employee Handbook.

The Immigration Reform and Control Act requires the Company to verify your identity and employment eligibility within three business
days of your commencement of employment with the Company. During your onboarding, you will be provided with the Form I-9 that you will be
required to complete. Please bring the appropriate documents listed on that form with you when you join our day one orientation. We will not be
able to employ you if you fail to comply with this requirement, and your job offer is contingent upon such compliance.

You further agree that during the period of your employment with the Company and the Company, you will not use or disclose to the
Company or the Company, or cause the Company or the Company to use or benefit from, any confidential, proprietary, or trade secret
information of any former employer or any other person or entity.

This letter and your response are not meant to constitute a contract of employment for a specific term. Employment with the
Company is at-will. This means that, if you accept this offer, both you and the Company will retain the right to terminate your
employment at any time, with or without notice or cause.

This offer letter may not be modified or amended, and no breach shall be deemed to be waived, unless agreed to in writing by you and an
expressly authorized officer of the Company. This is a New York contract and shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of
the State of New York, without regard to any conflict of laws principles that could result in the application of the laws of another jurisdiction.

By your signature below accepting this conditional offer, you confirm that (i) you have not relied on any agreements or representations,
express or implied, with respect to your employment that are not set forth expressly in this letter; (ii) you are able to accept this job and carry out
the work involved without breaching any legal restrictions on your activities, such as restrictions imposed by a current or former employer, and (iii)
you have informed the Company about any restrictions that could possibly be construed as impacting your ability to accept this job and carry out
the work involved, and provided the Company with copies of any agreements between you and your current or former employer describing
restrictions on your activities.

If you wish to accept this conditional offer, please sign, date and return this letter electronically no later than 48 hours after this offer has
been sent, after which date the offer of employment described in this letter will expire. Please retain a copy of this letter agreement and the
enclosed Confidentiality, Non-Disclosure & Assignment Agreement for your records.
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    Sincerely,

    OLAPLEX, INC.

    /s/ John C. Duffy
    John Duffy

    General Counsel

    
    OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.

    /s/ John C. Duffy
    John Duffy

    General Counsel

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]
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I have read and understood the provisions of this offer of employment, and I accept the above job offer on the terms and
conditions described therein.

Signature: /s/ Amanda Baldwin
    Amanda Baldwin
    
Date:     12/13/2023
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Exhibit A

Name: Amanda Baldwin
Number of Shares of Stock subject to the Stock Option: [_________]
Exercise Price Per Share: $[_________]
Date of Grant: [_________]
Vesting Commencement Date: [_________]

OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.
2021 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement (Employee)

This agreement (this “Agreement”) evidences a stock option granted by Olaplex Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the
“Company”), to the individual named above (the “Participant”), pursuant to and subject to the terms of the Olaplex Holdings, Inc.
2021 Equity Incentive Plan (as from time to time amended and in effect, the “Plan”). Except as otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms
used herein have the same meaning as in the Plan.

1. Grant of Stock Option. On the date of grant set forth above (the “Date of Grant”), the Company granted to the Participant an
option (the “Stock Option”) to purchase, pursuant to and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and in the Plan, up to the
number of shares of Stock set forth above (the “Shares”), with an exercise price per Share as set forth above, in each case subject to adjustment
pursuant to Section 7 of the Plan in respect of transactions occurring after the date hereof.

The Stock Option evidenced by this Agreement is a non-statutory option (that is, an option that is not intended to qualify as an incentive
stock option) and is granted to the Participant in connection with the Participant’s Employment.

2. Vesting.

(a) The term “vest” as used herein with respect to the Stock Option or any portion thereof means to become exercisable and the term
“vested” as used herein with respect to the Stock Option (or any portion thereof) means that the Stock Option (or portion thereof) is
then exercisable.

(b) Unless earlier terminated, forfeited, relinquished or expired, the Stock Option will vest as to twenty-five percent (25%) of the
underlying Shares on each of the first four anniversaries of the Vesting Commencement Date, in each case, subject to the
Participant’s continued Employment through the applicable vesting date.

(c) In the event of a Change in Control, the Stock Option, to the extent then unvested, will vest in full as of immediately prior to such
Change in Control, subject to the Participant’s continued Employment through such Change in Control. For purposes hereof,
“Change in Control” shall mean the consummation of (i) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company on a
consolidated basis to an unrelated individual, entity or group (within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the Exchange
Act) (a “Person”); (ii) a merger, reorganization or consolidation pursuant to which the holders of the Company’s outstanding
voting power immediately prior to such transaction do not own a majority of the outstanding voting power of the surviving or
resulting entity (or its ultimate
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parent, if applicable); (iii) the acquisition of all or a majority of the outstanding voting stock of the Company in a single transaction
or a series of related transactions by any Person; or (iv) the complete dissolution or liquidation of the Company; provided, however,
that any subsequent public offering of the Company’s equity or another capital raising event, a merger effected solely to change the
Company’s domicile or any acquisition by the Company or any employee benefit plan (or related trust) sponsored or maintained by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates shall not constitute a “Change in Control”.

3. Exercise of the Stock Option. No portion of the Stock Option may be exercised until such portion vests. Each election to exercise
any vested portion of the Stock Option will be subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan and must be in written or electronic form acceptable
to the Administrator, signed (including by electronic signature) by the Participant or, if at the relevant time the Stock Option has passed to the
estate or beneficiary of the Participant or a permitted transferee, by such estate or beneficiary or permitted transferee. Each such written or
electronic exercise election must be received by the Company at its principal office or at such other place or by such other party as the
Administrator may prescribe and must be accompanied by payment in full of the exercise price by cash or check, through a broker-assisted
exercise program acceptable to the Administrator (which the Company acknowledges has been established as of the date hereof), or as otherwise
provided in the Plan. Subject to earlier termination as set forth herein or in the Plan (including Section 6(a)(4) of the Plan), the latest date on which
the Stock Option or any portion thereof may be exercised is the tenth (10 ) anniversary of the Date of Grant (the “Final Exercise Date”) and, if
not exercised on or prior to such date, the Stock Option or any remaining portion thereof will thereupon immediately terminate.

4. Cessation of Employment. If the Participant’s Employment ceases for any reason, the Stock Option, to the extent not then vested,
will be immediately forfeited for no consideration, and any vested portion of the Stock Option that is then outstanding will remain exercisable for
the period, if any, described in Section 6(a)(4) of the Plan.

5. Restrictions on Transfer. The Stock Option may not be transferred except as expressly permitted under Section 6(a)(3) of the Plan.

6. Forfeiture; Recovery of Compensation. By accepting, or being deemed to have accepted, the Stock Option, the Participant
expressly acknowledges and agrees that his or her rights, and those of any permitted transferee, with respect to the Stock Option, including the
right to any Shares acquired under the Stock Option and any amounts received in respect thereof, are subject to Section 6(a)(5) of the Plan
(including any successor provision). The Participant further agrees to be bound by the terms of any applicable clawback or recoupment policy of
the Company. Nothing in the preceding sentence will be construed as limiting the general application of Section 8 of this Agreement.

7. Taxes. The Participant expressly acknowledges and agrees that the Participant’s rights hereunder, including the right to be issued
Shares upon exercise of the Stock Option, are subject to the Participant promptly paying to the Company in cash or by check (or by such other
means as may be acceptable to the Administrator, which the Company agrees shall include a broker-assisted sale program acceptable to the
Administrator (which the Company acknowledges has been established as of the date hereof)) all taxes and other amounts required to be withheld.
No Shares will be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Stock Option unless and until the person exercising the Stock Option has remitted to the
Company an amount in cash sufficient to satisfy any withholding requirements, or has made other arrangements satisfactory to the Company with
respect to such amounts (including by the methods described in the immediately preceding sentence). Subject to the foregoing, the Participant
authorizes the Company and its subsidiaries

th
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to withhold any amounts due in respect of any required withholdings from any amounts otherwise owed to the Participant, but nothing in this
sentence will be construed as relieving the Participant from any liability for satisfying his or her obligation under the preceding provisions of this
Section 7.

8. Provisions of the Plan. This Agreement is subject in its entirety to the provisions of the Plan, which are incorporated herein by
reference, as modified below with respect to this Award. A copy of the Plan as in effect on the Date of Grant has been made available to the
Participant, as modified below with respect to this Award. By accepting, or being deemed to have accepted, the Stock Option, the Participant
agrees to be bound by the terms of the Plan, as modified below with respect to this Award, and this Agreement. Subject to the foregoing, in the
event of any conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the Plan, the terms of the Plan will control. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary herein or in the Plan, in connection with a Covered Transaction (as defined in the Plan) the Stock Option, to the extent it is not vested and
does not become vested as of immediately prior to the Covered Transaction, shall in connection with such Covered Transaction be assumed,
continued or “rolled over” into an award settled in cash or public company acquirer shares (following vesting) with the value of the Stock Option
immediately prior to such Covered Transaction maintained (as determined as of immediately following such Covered Transaction) on terms that
are not less favorable to the Participant (or her permitted transferees, as applicable) than those that applied to the original Stock Option.

9. Restrictive Covenants Agreement. Concurrent with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Participant shall execute and
deliver to the Company the Restrictive Covenants Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the
Participant will be bound by the provisions set forth in such Restrictive Covenants Agreement, which for the avoidance of doubt, shall survive any
termination, expiration, forfeiture, transfer or other disposition of the Stock Option.

10. Acknowledgements. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that (i) this Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which will be an original and all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument, (ii) this Agreement may be
executed and exchanged using facsimile, portable document format (PDF) or electronic signature, which, in each case, will constitute an original
signature for all purposes hereunder, and (iii) such signature by the Company will be binding against the Company and will create a legally
binding agreement when this Agreement is countersigned by the Participant.

11. Amendments. This Agreement may not be modified or amended, and no breach shall be deemed to be waived, unless agreed to in
writing by the Participant and an expressly authorized officer of the Company.

[Signature page follows.]
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    The Company, by its duly authorized officer, and the Participant have executed this Agreement.

                            OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.

By: ______________________________

Name: ___________________________

Title: ______________________________

Agreed and Accepted:

By_______________________________
Amanda Baldwin
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Exhibit B

Name: Amanda Baldwin
Number of Restricted Stock Units: [_________]
Date of Grant: [_________]
Vesting Commencement Date: [_________]

OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.
2021 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (Employee)

This agreement (this “Agreement”) evidences an award (the “Award”) of Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs”) granted by Olaplex Holdings,
Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), to the individual named above (the “Participant”), pursuant to and subject to the terms of the
Olaplex Holdings, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (as from time to time amended and in effect, the “Plan”). Except as otherwise defined herein,
all capitalized terms used herein have the same meaning as in the Plan.

1. Grant of RSUs. On the date of grant set forth above (the “Date of Grant”), the Company granted to the Participant the number of
Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs”) set forth above, giving the Participant the conditional right to receive, without payment and pursuant to and
subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and in the Plan, one share of Stock (a “Share”) with respect to each RSU subject to
this Award, subject to adjustment pursuant to Section 7 of the Plan in respect of transactions occurring after the date hereof.

The RSUs are granted to the Participant in connection with the Participant’s Employment with the Company.

2. Vesting.

(a) Unless earlier terminated, forfeited, relinquished or expired, the RSUs will vest as to twenty-five percent (25%) of the RSUs on
each of the first four anniversaries of the Vesting Commencement Date, in each case, subject to the Participant’s continued
Employment through the applicable vesting date.

(b) In the event of a Change in Control, the RSUs, to the extent then unvested, will vest in full as of immediately prior to such Change
in Control, subject to the Participant’s continued Employment through such Change in Control. For purposes hereof, “Change in
Control” shall mean the consummation of (i) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company on a consolidated basis
to an unrelated individual, entity or group (within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act) (a “Person”);
(ii) a merger, reorganization or consolidation pursuant to which the holders of the Company’s outstanding voting power
immediately prior to such transaction do not own a majority of the outstanding voting power of the surviving or resulting entity (or
its ultimate parent, if applicable); (iii) the acquisition of all or a majority of the outstanding voting stock of the Company in a single
transaction or a series of related transactions by any Person; or (iv) the complete dissolution or liquidation of the
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Company; provided, however, that any subsequent public offering of the Company’s equity or another capital raising event, a
merger effected solely to change the Company’s domicile or any acquisition by the Company or any employee benefit plan (or
related trust) sponsored or maintained by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates shall not constitute a “Change in
Control”.

3. Cessation of Service. If the Participant’s Employment ceases for any reason, the RSUs, to the extent not then vested, will be
immediately forfeited for no consideration.

4. Delivery of Shares. The Company shall, as soon as practicable upon the vesting of any RSUs (but in no event later than thirty (30)
days following the date on which such RSUs vest or, if later, as soon thereafter as is reasonably practicable to avoid any restriction on, or adverse
result due to, a Sell to Cover transaction under the Company’s insider trading policy, Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act or other applicable law
while also avoiding adverse results under Section 409A), effect delivery of the Shares with respect to such vested RSUs to the Participant (or, in
the event of the RSUs have passed to the estate or beneficiary of the Participant or a permitted transferee, to such estate or beneficiary or permitted
transferee).

5. Restrictions on Transfer. The RSUs may not be transferred except as expressly permitted under Section 6(a)(3) of the Plan.

6. Forfeiture; Recovery of Compensation. By accepting, or being deemed to have accepted, the RSUs, the Participant expressly
acknowledges and agrees that his or her rights, and those of any permitted transferee, with respect to the RSUs, including the right to any Shares
acquired in respect of the RSUs and any amounts received in respect thereof, are subject to Section 6(a)(5) of the Plan (including any successor
provision). The Participant further agrees to be bound by the terms of any applicable clawback or recoupment policy of the Company. Nothing in
the preceding sentence will be construed as limiting the general application of Section 8 of this Agreement.

7. Taxes.

(a) The Participant expressly acknowledges and agrees that the vesting and/or settlement of the RSUs acquired hereunder may give
rise to “wages” subject to withholding. Except as otherwise prescribed by the Administrator, the number of Shares necessary to
satisfy the maximum statutory withholding tax (to the extent permitted by the Company’s stock plan administrator, and otherwise,
minimum) obligations on the vesting date or settlement date, as applicable, will automatically be released by the Participant from
the Shares otherwise deliverable to the Participant hereunder on such date to a broker or other third-party intermediary acceptable
to the Company (the “Broker”) and sold in order to satisfy such withholding tax obligations (any such sale, the “Sell to Cover”).
The Participant will be responsible for all third-party administration processing fees in connection with the Sell to Cover. In
addition, the Participant may be subject to and taxed in respect of short-term capital gains or losses that reflect the difference in the
withholding tax liability determined on the date that the Award vests and/or settles hereunder and the sales price actually achieved.
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(b) In connection with the implementation of the Sell to Cover provision described in Section 7(a) above, the Participant hereby
authorizes the Company to instruct the Broker to sell a number of Shares to be issued upon the vesting or settlement of the Award
to satisfy the maximum (to the extent permitted by the Company’s stock plan administrator, and otherwise, minimum) statutory
withholding tax obligations, as described in Section 7(a) above.

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the Participant acknowledges and agrees that the Sell to Cover
provision may not cover the Participant’s full tax liability as it relates to the vesting and settlement of the Award and that the
Participant shall remain fully responsible for his or her tax obligations in respect of the Award in all cases.

(d) The Participant further acknowledges and agrees as follows:

(i) The Sell to Cover provision contemplated by this Agreement is intended to permit the Participant to sell a number of Shares
issued upon the vesting or settlement of the Award sufficient to pay the statutory maximum (to the extent permitted by the
Company’s stock plan administrator, and otherwise, minimum) amount of withholding taxes that become due as a result of
the vesting or settlement of the Award.

(ii) The Broker is under no obligation to arrange for any sale in connection with the Sell to Cover provision at any particular
price.

(iii) The Participant hereby authorizes the Broker to remit directly to the Company the proceeds necessary to cover the
Participant’s tax liability as it relates to the vesting and settlement of the Award as provided in Section 7(a) above, and to
retain the amount required to cover all applicable fees and commissions due to, or required to be collected by, the Broker
relating to the Sell to Cover.

(iv) The Participant hereby appoints the Company as his or her agent and attorney-in-fact to instruct the Broker with respect to
the number of Shares to be sold under the Sell to Cover provision contemplated by this Agreement.

(v) The Participant hereby waives any claims he or she may have against the Company and its directors, officers or employees
now or in the future related to the Company’s instructions to a Broker or any actions taken by the Broker in effecting sales
or otherwise and shall indemnify and hold the Company and its directors, officers, employees and agents harmless from any
losses, costs, damages, or expenses relating to any sale under the Sell to Cover provision contemplated by this Agreement.

(vi) It may not be possible to sell Shares due to, among other reasons, (A) a legal or contractual restriction applicable to the
Participant or to the Broker, (B) a market disruption, (C) rules governing order execution
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priority on the Nasdaq Global Select Market or (D) if the Company determines in its sole discretion that sales may not be
effected under the Sell to Cover provision.

(e) No Shares will be delivered pursuant to the Award unless and until the Participant has remitted to the Company in cash or by check
(or by such other means as may be acceptable to the Administrator) an amount sufficient to satisfy all taxes required to be withheld
in connection with the vesting or settlement of the Award, whether through the Sell to Cover (to the extent available) or otherwise.
Subject to the foregoing, the Participant authorizes the Company and its subsidiaries to withhold any amounts due in respect of any
required tax withholdings or payments from any amounts otherwise owed to the Participant, but nothing in this sentence may be
construed as relieving the Participant of any liability for satisfying his or her obligation under the preceding provisions of this
Section 7.

8. Provisions of the Plan. This Agreement is subject in its entirety to the provisions of the Plan, which are incorporated herein by
reference. A copy of the Plan as in effect on the Date of Grant has been made available to the Participant. By accepting, or being deemed to have
accepted, the Award, the Participant agrees to be bound by the terms of the Plan and this Agreement. In the event of any conflict between the terms
of this Agreement and the Plan, the terms of the Plan will control.

9. Restrictive Covenants Agreement. Concurrent with the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Participant shall execute and
deliver to the Company the Restrictive Covenants Agreement attached as Exhibit A to the Participant’s Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement of
even date herewith. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that the Participant will be bound by the provisions set forth in such Restrictive
Covenants Agreement, which for the avoidance of doubt, shall survive any termination, expiration, forfeiture, transfer or other disposition of the
RSUs or the Shares received upon settlement of the RSUs.

10. Acknowledgements. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that (i) this Agreement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which will be an original and all of which together will constitute one and the same instrument, (ii) this Agreement may be
executed and exchanged using facsimile, portable document format (PDF) or electronic signature, which, in each case, will constitute an original
signature for all purposes hereunder, and (iii) such signature by the Company will be binding against the Company and will create a legally
binding agreement when this Agreement is countersigned by the Participant.

11. Amendments. This Agreement may not be modified or amended, and no breach shall be deemed to be waived, unless agreed to in
writing by the Participant and an expressly authorized officer of the Company.

[Signature page follows.]
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    The Company, by its duly authorized officer, and the Participant have executed this Agreement.

                            OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.

                    

By:
Name:
Title:

Agreed and Accepted:

By_______________________________
Amanda Baldwin
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Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Entity Jurisdiction
Olaplex Intermediate, Inc.
Olaplex Intermediate II, Inc.
Penelope Holdings Corp.
Penelope Intermediate Corp.
Olaplex, Inc.
Olaplex UK Limited

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
United Kingdom



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-260016 on Form S-8 of our reports dated February 29, 2024,
relating to the financial statements of Olaplex Holdings, Inc. and the effectiveness of Olaplex Holdings, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Los Angeles, California
February 29, 2024



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Amanda Baldwin, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Olaplex Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: February 29, 2024 By: /s/ Amanda Baldwin
Amanda Baldwin
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Eric Tiziani, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Olaplex Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: February 29, 2024 By: /s/ Eric Tiziani
Eric Tiziani
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Amanda Baldwin, Chief Executive Officer of Olaplex Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”), do hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: February 29, 2024 By: /s/ Amanda Baldwin
Amanda Baldwin
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Eric Tiziani, Chief Financial Officer of Olaplex Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”), do hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: February 29, 2024 By: /s/ Eric Tiziani
Eric Tiziani
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)



Exhibit 97

OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.
POLICY FOR RECOUPMENT OF INCENTIVE COMPENSATION

1. Introduction. In accordance with Section 10D of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and the
regulations thereunder, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Olaplex Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) has adopted this policy (the “Policy”)
providing for the Company’s recoupment of certain incentive-based compensation received by Covered Executives (as defined below) in the event
that the Company is required to prepare an accounting restatement due to its material noncompliance with any financial reporting requirement
under the securities laws, which shall replace the Company’s Clawback Policy, dated September 29, 2021 (the “Prior Policy”), as of the Effective
Date (as defined below) with respect to Covered Compensation (as defined below), except as set forth in Section 3 hereof.

2. Administration. Administration and enforcement of this Policy is delegated to the Compensation Committee of the Board (as
constituted from time to time, and including any successor committee, the “Committee”); provided, however, that for as long as the Company is a
“controlled company” or subject to the phase-in rules for a company that ceases to be a “controlled company” under the Nasdaq Stock Market
Rules, to the extent that the conditions of paragraphs (b)(1)(iv)(A), (B), or (C) of Rule 10D-1 under the Exchange Act are met, a majority of the
independent directors serving on the Board (the “Independent Directors”) shall make a determination in their sole discretion as to whether any
recovery under this Policy would be impracticable. Determinations of the Committee and the Independent Directors under this Policy need not be
uniform with respect to any or all Covered Executives and will be final and binding.

3. Effective Date. This Policy shall be effective as of October 31, 2023 (the “Effective Date”) and shall apply only to Covered
Compensation (as defined below) that is received (as such term is used in Exchange Act Rule 10D-1(d)) by Covered Executives on or after
October 2, 2023, except to the extent otherwise agreed with any Covered Executive. The Prior Policy shall remain in effect with respect to any
Covered Compensation (as defined in the Prior Policy) received by Covered Executives (as defined in the Prior Policy) prior to October 2, 2023.

4. Covered Executives. This Policy covers each current or former officer of the Company subject to Section 16 of the Exchange Act
(each, a “Covered Executive”).

5. Covered Compensation. This Policy applies to any cash-based or equity-based incentive compensation, bonus, and/or award that
is or was received by a Covered Executive and that is or was based, wholly or in part, upon the attainment of any financial reporting measure
(“Covered Compensation”). For the avoidance of doubt, none of the following shall be deemed to be Covered Compensation: (i) base salary,
except to the extent of an increase in base salary earned wholly or in part based on the attainment of a financial measure performance goal; (ii) a
bonus that is paid solely at the discretion of the Committee or Board and not paid from a bonus pool determined by satisfying a financial reporting
measure performance goal; and (iii) cash or equity-based awards that are earned solely upon satisfaction of one or more subjective or strategic
standards. This Policy shall apply to any Covered Compensation received by an employee who served as a Covered Executive at any time during
the performance period for that Covered Compensation.

6. Financial Restatements; Recoupment. In the event that the Company is required to prepare an accounting restatement due to the
material noncompliance of the Company with any financial reporting requirement under the securities laws, including any required accounting
restatement to correct an error in previously issued financial statements that is material to the previously issued financial statements, or that would
result in a material misstatement if the error
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were corrected in the current period or left uncorrected in the current period (such an accounting restatement, a “Restatement”), the Committee
shall review the Covered Compensation received by a Covered Executive during the three-year period preceding the Required Financial
Restatement Date (as defined below) as well as any transition period that results from a change in the Company’s fiscal year within or
immediately following those three completed fiscal years. Regardless of whether the Company files the restated financial statements, the
Committee shall, to the fullest extent permitted by governing law, seek recoupment of any Covered Compensation, whether in the form of cash or
equity, received by a Covered Executive (computed without regard to any taxes paid), if and to the extent:

a.        the amount of the Covered Compensation was calculated based upon the achievement of certain financial results that were
subsequently the subject of such Restatement; and

b.        the amount of the Covered Compensation that would have been received by the Covered Executive had the financial results been
properly reported would have been lower than the amount actually awarded (any such amount, “Erroneously Awarded Compensation”).

To the extent Covered Compensation was based on the achievement of a financial reporting measure, but the amount of such Covered
Compensation was not awarded or paid on a formulaic basis, the Committee shall determine in its sole discretion the amount, if any, of such
Covered Compensation that will be deemed to be Erroneously Awarded Compensation for purposes of this Policy.

For purposes of this Policy, the “Required Financial Restatement Date” is the earlier to occur of:

a.    the date the Board, a committee of the Board, or any officer or officers authorized to take such action if Board action is not required,
concludes, or reasonably should have concluded, that the Company is required to prepare a Restatement; or

b.    the date a court, regulator, or other legally authorized body directs the Company to prepare a Restatement.

For the avoidance of doubt, a Covered Executive will be deemed to have received Covered Compensation in the Company’s fiscal period
during which the financial reporting measure specified in the award is attained, even if the Covered Executive remains subject to additional
payment conditions with respect to such award.

7. Method of Recoupment. The Committee will determine, in its sole discretion, the method for recouping Erroneously Awarded
Compensation, which may include, without limitation:

a. requiring reimbursement of cash incentive compensation previously paid;

b. cancelling or rescinding some or all outstanding vested or unvested equity (and/or equity-based) awards;

c. adjusting or withholding from unpaid compensation or other set-off to the extent permitted by applicable law; and/or

d. reducing or eliminating future salary increases, cash-based or equity-based incentive compensation, bonuses, awards or severance.
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8. Impracticability Exceptions. The Committee shall not seek recoupment of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation to the extent
the Independent Board determines that:

a.        the direct expense paid to a third party to assist in enforcing this Policy would exceed the amount of Erroneously Awarded
Compensation to be recovered;

b.    recovery would violate home country law where that law was adopted prior to November 28, 2022; and/or

c.        recovery would likely cause an otherwise tax-qualified retirement plan, under which benefits are broadly available to Company
employees, to fail to meet the requirements of Sections 401(a)(13) and 411(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended,
and the regulations thereunder.

9. No Indemnification. For the avoidance of doubt, the Company shall not indemnify any Covered Executive against the loss of any
Erroneously Awarded Compensation or any Covered Compensation that is recouped pursuant to the terms of this Policy, or any claims relating to
the Company’s enforcement of its rights under this Policy.

10. Acknowledgement by Covered Executives. The Committee shall cause the Company to provide notice and seek written
acknowledgement (in the form attached hereto or in any other form that the Company may accept from time to time) of this Policy from each
Covered Executive as soon as practicable after the later of (i) the Effective Date and (ii) the date on which the employee is designated as a
Covered Executive; provided, however, that failure to obtain such acknowledgement shall have no impact on the enforceability of this Policy.

11. Severability. If any provision of this Policy or the application of any such provision to any Covered Executive shall be adjudicated
to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions of this
Policy, and the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provisions shall be deemed amended to the minimum extent necessary to render any such
provision or application enforceable.

12. Amendments. The Committee may amend, modify or terminate this Policy in whole or in part at any time in its sole discretion and
may adopt such rules and procedures that it deems necessary or appropriate to implement this Policy or to comply with applicable laws and
regulations.

13. No Impairment of Other Remedies. The remedies under this Policy are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any legal and equitable
claims the Company may have, the Company’s ability to enforce, without duplication, the recoupment provisions set forth in any separate
Company policy or in any Company plan, program or agreement (each a “Separate Recoupment Policy” and collectively, the “Separate
Recoupment Policies”), or any actions that may be imposed by law enforcement agencies, regulators or other authorities. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, in the event that there is a conflict between the application of this Policy to a Covered Executive in the event of a Restatement and any
additional recoupment provisions set forth in a Separate Recoupment Policy to which a Covered Executive is subject, the provisions of this Policy
shall control. The Company may also adopt additional Separate Recoupment Policies in the future or amend existing requirements as required by
law or regulation.

Effective: October 31, 2023
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OLAPLEX HOLDINGS, INC.

CLAWBACK POLICY ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Reference is made to the Olaplex Holdings, Inc. Policy for Recoupment of Incentive Compensation, effective as of October 31, 2023 (the
“Clawback Policy”). By signing in the space indicated below, you acknowledge and agree that you have received and understand the Clawback
Policy and that effective as of ______________ the Clawback Policy applies and will continue to apply to you during and after your employment
or other service in accordance with its terms.

EXECUTIVE:

____________________________________
Name: ______________

DATE ______________

4


